\ s
N CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

»

N

Vd

Notice of a public meeting of
Customer and Corporate Services Scrutiny Management
Committee (Calling In)

To: Councillors Crawshaw (Chair), Fenton (Vice-Chair),
Baker, Hollyer, Musson, Norman, Orrell, Pearson and
Rowley

Date: Monday, 6 December 2021

Time: 5.30 pm

Venue: The George Hudson Board Room - 1st Floor West

Offices (F045)

AGENDA

1. Declarations of Interest
At this point, Members are asked to declare:
e any personal interests not included on the Register of
Interests
e any prejudicial interests or
e any disclosable pecuniary interests
which they may have in respect of business on this agenda.

2. Public Participation
At this point in the meeting members of the public who have
registered to speak can do so. Members of the public may speak
on agenda items or on matters within the remit of the committee.

Please note that our registration deadlines have changed to 2
working days before the meeting, in order to facilitate the
management of public participation at our meetings. The
deadline for registering at this meeting is 5.00pm on Thursday, 2
December 2021.

www.york.gov.uk



To register to speak please visit
www.york.gov.uk/AttendCouncilMeetings to fill in an online
registration form. If you have any questions about the registration
form or the meeting please contact Democratic Services on the
details at the foot of the agenda.

Webcasting of Public Meetings

Please note that, subject to available resources, this meeting will
be webcast including any registered public speakers who have
given their permission.

The meeting can be viewed live and on demand at
www.york.gov.uk/webcasts. During coronavirus, we've made
some changes to how we're running council meetings. See our
coronavirus updates (www.york.gov.uk/COVIDDemocracy) for
more information on meetings and decisions.

Minutes (Pages 3 - 6)
To approve and sign the minutes of the meeting held on 25
January 2021.

Called-in Item: Strategic Reviews of City (Pages 7 - 130)
Centre Access and Council Car Parking

To consider two of the decisions made by the Executive on 18
November 2021 in relation to the above item, which have been
called in by Councillors Kilbane, Looker and Melly in accordance
with the Council’s Constitution.

A cover report is attached setting out the reasons for the call-in
and the remit and powers of the Customer & Corporate Services
Scrutiny Management Committee (Calling-In) in relation to the
call-in, together with the original report and relevant annexes,
and the decisions of the Executive.

Urgent Business
Any other business which the Chair considers urgent under the
Local Government Act 1972.



Democratic Services officer:

Name: Fiona Young
Telephone: 01904 552030
E-mail: flona.young@york.gov.uk

For more information about any of the following please
contact the Democratic Services officer responsible for
servicing this meeting:

Registering to speak

Business of the meeting

Any special arrangements

Copies of reports and

For receiving reports in other formats

Contact details are set out above.

This information can be provided in your own language.
EMEAEMESRMEEREISS (cantonese)
g2 ®T AR e o T (TS SN | (Bengali)

Ta informacja moze byC dostarczona w twoim

wiasnym jezyku. {Palish

Bu bilgiyi kendi dilinizde almaniz miimkiindiir. (Turkish)
-J’o’t e Ly € () i T oo 2 (Urdu)
T (01904) 551550




This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 Agenda Annex

Coronavirus protocols for attending Committee Meetings at West Offices

If you are attending a meeting in West Offices, you must observe the following protocols.

Good ventilation is a key control point, therefore, all windows must remain open within the meeting
room.

If you’re displaying possible coronavirus symptoms (or anyone in your household is displaying symptoms),
you should follow government guidance. You are advised not to attend your meeting at West Offices.

Testing

The Council encourages regular testing of all Officers and Members and also any members of the public in
attendance at a Committee Meeting. Any members of the public attending a meeting are advised to take a
test within 24 hours of attending a meeting, the result of the test should be negative, in order to attend.
Test kits can be obtained by clicking on either link: Find where to get rapid lateral flow tests - NHS (test-
and-trace.nhs.uk), or, Order coronavirus (COVID-19) rapid lateral flow tests - GOV.UK (www.goV.uk).
Alternatively, if you call 119 between the hours of 7am and 11pm, you can order a testing kit over the
telephone.

Guidelines for attending Meetings at West Offices

Please do not arrive more than 10 minutes before the meeting is due to start.

You may wish to wear a face covering to help protect those also attending.

You should wear a face covering when entering West Offices.

Visitors to enter West Offices by the customer entrance and Officers/Councillors to enter using the

staff entrance only.

Ensure your ID / visitors pass is clearly visible at all time.

¢ Regular handwashing is recommended.

e Use the touchless hand sanitiser units on entry and exit to the building and hand sanitiser within the
Meeting room.

e Bring your own drink if required.

e Only use the designated toilets next to the Meeting room.

Developing symptoms whilst in West Offices
If you develop coronavirus symptoms during a Meeting, you should:

e Make your way home immediately
e Avoid the use of public transport where possible
¢ Follow government guidance in relation to self-isolation.

You should also:

o Advise the Meeting organiser so they can arrange to assess and carry out additional cleaning
e Do not remain in the building any longer than necessary
o Do not visit any other areas of the building before you leave

If you receive a positive test result, or if you develop any symptoms before the meeting is due to take place,
you should not attend the meeting.

EJAV312.08.21

Page 1of1


https://maps.test-and-trace.nhs.uk/
https://maps.test-and-trace.nhs.uk/
https://www.gov.uk/order-coronavirus-rapid-lateral-flow-tests

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 3 Agenda Item 3

City Of York Council Committee Minutes

Meeting Customer and Corporate Services Scrutiny
Management Committee (Calling In)

Date 25 January 2021

Present Councillors Crawshaw (Chair), Hunter,
Hollyer, Kilbane, Mason, Musson, Pearson
and Rowley

Apologies Councillor Fenton

14. Declarations of Interest

15.

16.

17.

Members were invited to declare at this point in the meeting any
personal, disposable or pecuniary interests not included on their
Register of Interests, which they might have in the business on
the agenda. None were declared.

Public Participation

It was reported that there had been no registrations to speak at
the meeting under the Council’s Public Participation Scheme.

Minutes

Resolved: That the minutes of the meeting of the Committee
held on 21 December 2020 be approved as a
correct record, to be signed at a later date by the
Chair.

Called-in Item: Make It York - Impact of Covid-19

Members considered a report which set out the reasons for the
call-in of one of the decisions made by Executive on 15
December 2020 in respect of a guarantee for Make It York
(MIY), along with the Committee’s remit and powers in relation
to the call-in.

The relevant decision was highlighted in the Decision Sheet at
Annex 1 to the report. The original report to Executive was
attached as Annex 2. The decision, which related to a letter of



Page 4

guarantee of access to funding to MIY, had been called in by
Cllrs Douglas, Lomas and Heaton for the following reasons:

a) The £1m guarantee over two years is an unacceptable
financial risk to council taxpayers at a time when a new
two year service level agreement (SLA) between City of
York Council and Make it York is in the process of
being drawn up and due to be agreed by March 2021,

b) The 2021-2023 SLA may not include all existing
functions so the £1m guarantee should be halted for a
short period ensuring that if and when agreed, it
reflects the level of Make it York’s future council-
commissioned activities;

Under the provisions of the council’s constitution and the
requirements of Local Government Act 2000, the following
options were available:
e A —not to refer the matter to Executive, in which case the
original decision would be confirmed, or
e B - refer the matter to Executive with specific
recommendations.

Prior to inviting Cllr Douglas to address the committee on behalf
of the Calling-In Members, the Chair called for a short
adjournment to the meeting to receive advice on the
participation of 2 representatives from Make It York who had
made themselves available to join the remote meeting but had
not expressly been invited.

Following receipt of advice from the Monitoring Officer during
the adjournment, the meeting resumed and the Monitoring
Officer explained her advice to the Committee, suggesting that
the Chair not invite the 2 MIY representatives to join the meeting
in light of the business being primarily focussed upon a funding
guarantee in their favour.

The Chair then invited Cllr Douglas to proceed. She then
explained in more detail the reasons for the calling-in, and
responded to questions put by Members. The Executive
Members for Finance & Performance and Economy & Strategic
Planning then outlined the reasons for the original decisions,
and responded to Members’ questions.



Page 5

Officers then responded to questions which had been raised
during the meeting, particularly in relation to the specific
rationale for the proposed guarantee, how the sum had been
arrived at and the implications of deferring the guarantee until
March 2021.

Members went on to debate the options in full and to consider
whether they wished to make any additional observations or
recommendations arising from the call in.

A proposal to refer the decision on the proposed guarantee to
access to funding back to the Executive for reconsideration was
moved and seconded and it a named vote was taken as follows:

Councillor Vote
Daubeney Against
Hollyer Against
Hunter Against
Kilbane For
Mason Against
Musson For
Pearson Against
Rowley For
Crawshaw For
(Chair)

The motion was lost by 5 votes to 4. A motion to endorse and
reaffirm the original Executive decision was therefore moved
and seconded. That being carried by 5 votes to 4.

A further proposal was then put by the Chair and seconded by
Councillor Musson for enhanced monitoring arrangements of
the Service Level Agreement (SLA) with MIY, as follows:

“In order to better ensure value for public money and full
delivery of the contract between CYC and Make it York, this
Committee recommends that Executive review and reform both
the contract monitoring procedures carried out by CYC Officers
and the MIY scrutiny functions carried out by Members.”

That motion being lost by 5 votes to 4, it was

Resolved: That the original decision made by the Executive at
its meeting on 15 December 2020 in relation to the



Page 6

proposed letter giving a guarantee of access to
funding to Make It York, be re-affirmed.

Reason: To secure the future of Make It York.

Cllr J Crawshaw, Chair
[The meeting started at 5.30 pm and finished at 8.21 pm].



Page 7 Agenda ltem 4

COUNCIL

Customer and Corporate Services Scrutiny 6 December 2021
Management Committee (Calling In)

Report of the Director of Governance

Called-in Item: Strategic Reviews of City Centre Access and Council Car
Parking

Summary

1. This report sets out the reasons for the call-in of two of the decisions
made by the Executive on 18 November 2021 in respect of the above
item. The report also sets out the powers and role of the Customer and
Corporate Services Scrutiny Management Committee (Calling-In) in
dealing with the call-in.

Background

2. An extract from the Decision Sheet published after the Executive
meeting on 18 November 2021 is attached as Annex A to this report.
This sets out all the decisions taken on the called-in item, with the
decisions that have been called in highlighted in bold. The original report
to the Executive, together with the annexes relevant to the called-in
decisions, is attached at Annex B.

3. Resolutions (iii) and (iv) on the Decision Sheet have been called in for
review by the Customer and Corporate Services Scrutiny Management
Committee (Calling-In) by Clirs Melly, Kilbane and Looker, in accordance
with the Constitutional requirements, for the following reasons:-

e the review failed to provide accurate data on parking use across
council managed car parks over a reasonable period of time post
lockdown, making strategic decisions on car park investment in the
future premature;

e a decision on whether or not to develop a new multi-storey car park at
St George’s Field was delayed to establish how people are using car
parks following Covid lockdowns, yet this data was inadequate in the
review report;



Page 8

e the Executive’s approach is solely asset-based, coming as it does
long before the fourth Local Transport Plan has been drawn up and
agreed, meaning strategic decision making on transport is completely
absent;

e the review fails to factor in private car parking in reviewing York’s
parking activity and needs, other than to suggest any reduction in
council car parks could result in private operators filling a supposed
gap, without any supporting evidence.

Consultation

4. In accordance with the requirements of the Constitution, the calling-in
Members have been invited to attend and/or speak at the Calling-in
meeting, as appropriate.

Options

5.  The following options are available to the CCSMC (Calling-In) in relation
to dealing with this call-in, in accordance with the constitutional and
legal requirements under the Local Government Act 2000:

a) To decide that there are no grounds to make specific
recommendations to the Executive in respect of the decisions
called in. If this option is chosen, the original decisions taken on
the item at the Executive meeting on 18 November 2021 will be
confirmed and will take effect from the date of the CCSMC
(Calling-in) meeting; or

b) To make specific recommendations to the Executive on the
decisions called in, in light of the reason given for post-decision
call-in. If this option is chosen, the matter will be considered at a
meeting of Executive (Calling-In).

Analysis

6. Members need to consider the reasons for the call-in and the original
report to the Executive and form a view on whether there is a basis to
make specific recommendations to the Executive in respect of the
decisions called in.

Council Plan

7.  There are no direct implications for this call-in in relation to the delivery
of the Council Plan and its priorities for 2019-23.



Page 9

Implications

8. There are no known Financial, HR, Legal, Property, Equalities, or Crime
and Disorder implications in relation to the following in terms of dealing
with the specific matter before Members; namely, to determine and
handle the call-in.

Risk Management

9. There are no risk management implications associated with the call in of
this matter.

Recommendations

10. Members are asked to consider the reason for calling in these decisions
and decide whether they wish to confirm the affected decisions or to
refer it back for reconsideration and make specific recommendations to
the Executive on the decisions called in.

Reason: To enable the called-in matter to be dealt with efficiently and

in accordance with the requirements of the Council’s
Constitution.

Contact Details

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the report:
Dawn Steel Janie Berry

Head of Democratic Services Director of Governance
dawn.steel@york.gov.uk Tel: 01904 555385

Tel: 01904 551030

Report Approved v Date: 25/11/21

Wards Affected: All N

For further information please contact the author of the report


mailto:dawn.steel@york.gov.uk

Page 10

Annexes

Annex A — Extract from the Decision Sheet produced following the Executive

meeting on 18 November 2021, setting out the decisions made on the called-
in item.

Annex B — Report of the Corporate Director of Place to the Executive
Meeting on 18 November 2021.



Page 11
Annex A

Executive
Thursday, 18 November 2021

Decisions

Strategic Reviews of City Centre Access and Council Car

Parking

Resolved:

Reason:

Reason:

Reason:

(i)  That the Strategic Review of City Centre
Access and associated Action Plan at Annex 1 to
the report be approved, including the creation of an
Access Officer post.

To agree a clear strategy for access to and through
the city centre footstreets and approve the action
plan (subject to the success of identified funding
bids) to implement the improvements to access that
have been developed through public and
stakeholder engagement.

(i)  That the City Centre Access model set out in
the Strategic Review of City Centre Access be
approved as a key principle in Local Transport Plan
4.

To ensure the council’s strategic priorities are
aligned and consistent.

(ili) That the Strategic Review of Council Car
Parking and associated Action Plan at Annex 2
be approved.

To allow the council to define and invest strategically
In its priority car parks and to inform future decisions
on which car parks could be used for alternatives
uses should future parking demand decline through
either market conditions or policy based decisions.

(iv) That it be noted that a future report on
whether to re-commence the paused
procurement of a contractor to build St George’s
Field MSCP will be brought to Executive as part



Reason:

Reason:

Reason:

Page 12

of a wider delivery update on the Castle Gateway
project in February 2022.

To consider whether to proceed with St George’s
Field MSCP in light of the outcomes of the Strategic
Review of Council Car Parking, a review of the
business case, and the wider progress of the
masterplan.

(v) That the Access Officer be asked to bring
updates on the progress of implementing the Access
Action Plan to the relevant portfolio holder for
review.

To ensure that the progress of the plan is monitored.

(vi) That more opportunities be explored for blue
badge parking on the edge of the footstreets.

To increase the availability of blue badge parking
close to the city centre where possible.



a,

Page 13

COUNCIL

Executive 18 November 2021

Report of the Corporate Director for Place
Portfolio of the Executive Members for Transport & Finance and
Performance

Strategic Reviews of City Centre Access and Council Car Parking

Summary

1.

This report sets out the outcomes of the Strategic Review of City Centre
Access and Council Car Parking that was commissioned by the Executive
in November 2020. The review has been broken down in to two separate
strategies which sit together as sister documents.

. The review of access is based on extensive public and stakeholder

engagement and proposes a clear strategy for how people and modes of
transport travel to and through the city centre and sets out how access to
and through the city centre footstreets can be improved for disabled
people, delivery couriers, cyclists and residents.

. The second review relates to council car parks and has two elements.

The first is to identify where there are information gaps in car parking
usage and provision that can be improved to guide future evidence based
decision making in Local Transport Plan 4 about the role city wide car
parking plays within our integrated transport system. The second is to
create a hierarchy of council car parks to inform immediate investment
decisions and how to respond should there be any future natural or policy
driven decline in parking demand.

. This cover report summarises the outcomes of both reviews and

recommends that both are adopted by the council, as are the associated
action plans to improve city centre access and parking, which includes
the creation of an Access Officer post.

. The decision regarding the procurement of a contractor for the new St

George’s Field multi-storey car park (MSCP) will be considered as part of
a future delivery report on Castle Gateway which is due to be brought to



Page 14

Executive in February, including consideration of the outcome of the
parking review.

Recommendations

6.

The Executive is asked to:

1) Approve the Strategic Review of City Centre Access and associated

Action Plan (Annex 1), including the creation of an Access Officer post

Reason: To agree a clear strategy for access to and through the city
centre footstreets and approve the action plan (subject to the success
of identified funding bids) to implement the improvements to access
that have been developed through public and stakeholder
engagement

2) Approve the City Centre Access model set out in the Strategic Review

of City Centre Access as a key principle in Local Transport Plan 4

Reason: To ensure the council’s strategic priorities are aligned and
consistent

3) Approve the Strategic Review of Council Car Parking and associated

Action Plan (Annex 2)

Reason: To allow the council to define and invest strategically in its
priority car parks and to inform future decisions on which car parks
could be used for alternatives uses should future parking demand
decline through either market conditions or policy based decisions

4) Note that a future report on whether to re-commence the paused

procurement of a contractor to build St George’s Field MSCP will be
brought to Executive as part of a wider delivery update on the Castle
Gateway project in February 2022

Reason: To consider whether to proceed with St George’s Field
MSCP in light of the outcomes of the Strategic Review of Council Car
Parking, a review of the business case, and the wider progress of the
masterplan



Page 15

Background

7.

10.

11.

12.

In November 2020, Executive instructed officers to undertake a strategic
review of the city centre access and parking, to be completed by summer
2021. The review was commissioned at the same time as the
Executive’s decision to commence the statutory consultation on
extending the geography of the pedestrianised footstreet area - this is a
separate decision that will be also considered by the Executive on the
same agenda.

The main purpose of the access element of the review was to explore
through public and stakeholder engagement how access could be
improved to and through the footstreets - regardless of their geographical
extent — with a particular focus on disabled people, cycling and e-
scooters, deliveries, taxis and residents who live within the footstreets.

The parking review is linked to the above, in understanding and
identifying improvements for disabled parking, but also has a separate
purpose to improve evidence bases on the role of parking in the city and
guiding immediate investment decisions. This was closely related to the
decision by the council’'s Executive to pause the procurement of a
construction contractor to build the new St George’s Field multi-storey
car park (MSCP) as part of the Castle Gateway regeneration masterplan
until the impact of Covid on parking demand had become clear.

The purpose of the MSCP is to consolidate two large surface car parks in
to a smaller more land efficient car park, reducing the overall number of
spaces, moving car journeys outside the inner-ring road and allowing
Castle Car Park and the remainder of St George’s Field to be replaced
with new public parks and event spaces. Whilst the MSCP received
planning permission in January 2021 the Executive had decided to
pause the procurement process until the impact of Covid on car parking
demand had been understood and the review of car parking was
complete to understand whether St George’s Field was identified as a
priority location for city centre car parking.

Both reviews are annexes to this report but the outcomes are
summarised in the following sections.

Strategic Review of City Centre Access

The review followed the council’s ‘My’ approach to public engagement
that has been successfully pioneered on other projects and issues in the



13.

14.

15.

16.

Page 16

city. This involved placing the public and stakeholders at the heart of
understanding and defining the challenges, producing an open brief,
establishing a draft vision, and then testing and refining that vision
through further engagement.

The initial engagement ran across almost 12 months, using 3 surveys
distributed online and to every household in York — with freepost return —
in the council’s Our City publication. Whilst surveys play an important
role in allowing a broad range of voices to participate, the cornerstone of
the engagement approach has been workshops and insight meetings
allowing the council to gain a deeper understanding of the access issues
facing specific groups. During the summer of 2020 the council co-
facilitated two online workshops and events with the York Disability
Rights Forum. The events, which were signed by British Sign Language
interpreters, were attended by 30 people. Officers also attended specific
insight meetings with the disability rights forum, My Sight York, the Older
People’'s Advocacy Group and others with a combined membership of
several thousand. In 2021, we then held a further seven targeted events
to discuss the disabled access routes through the city centre,
Shopmobility services, cycling and couriers, deliveries and taxis.

All of these events went in to producing an Open Brief (Annex 4) on the
Issues raised, capturing the wide range of views and feedback that were
received. The draft recommendations and strategy were then based on
that Open Brief and the findings of two independent reviews that
considered York’s accessibility challenges. The final engagement on the
draft recommendations received over 1,000 survey responses and 300
interactions on social media and helped to refine the final strategic
review document. These responses are set out in Annex 5. In addition
two independent reviews commissioned by the council and conducted in
2020 and 2021 by Disabled Motoring UK (Annex 6) and Martin Higgitt
Associates (MHA) (Annex 7) explored a range of issues and helped
guide the outcomes as set out in the strategy document.

The key issues raised can be summarised by audience:
Disabled access

Much of the engagement over disabled access has been dominated by
the separate decision on the geography of the footstreets, and the issues
relating to that are set out in the report that considers that decision. The
engagement relating to the Strategic Review of City Centre Access
focused on the issues that impact on access to and through the
footstreets and how this can be improved.



17.

18.

19.

20.

Page 17

The discussions highlighted a need for more benches to provide resting
points in strategic locations, and that current accessible toilet provision is
insufficient. There are significant challenges presented by poor quality
and narrow pavements and footpaths in the city centre. Whilst
pedestrianised areas do allow people to use the wider, smoother road
surfaces there needs to be more dropped kerbs to allow people with
mobility aids to get back on to pavements to access shops and services.
Similarly outdoor seating for cafes needs clearly defined areas that don’t
spread out beyond their licenced area and block routes; tap rails for
people with visual impairments to prevent trip hazards; and greater
consideration of how people get back on to the pavement at either side.

Disabled residents use a variety of transport modes to reach the city
centre, with buses being the most popular, and being particularly
important for blind and partially sighted people. However, for many blue
badge holders being able to park as close as possible to where they
need to be is of primary importance. For others distance is less of an
iIssue than the quality of the parking space, with the ability to safely
unload their wheelchair or mobility aid, and the quality of access routes
to their destination. Multi-storey car parks with single lifts are unpopular
as if it is out of use then people cannot get back to their vehicle. For the
people that use Shopmobility it is a very popular service, but wider
awareness and demand is low, providing a real growth opportunity to
improve the offer and increase the number of customers. The idea of an
accessible land train/shuttle service was also raised.

There was a general consensus that there needs to be improved levels
of up to date information on where blue badge holders can park in the
city centre, where seats and toilets are located, and information to help
people plan their journeys. It was also suggested that the council should
employ an Access Officer to help educate those making decisions and
responsible for services and projects so that accessibility is ‘designed-in’
to future initiatives.

Cycling, e-scooters and e-bikes

Cycling and e-scooters in the city centre remains a contentious issue
amongst residents. While some cycle campaigners would like to see the
restriction on cycling through the pedestrianised areas removed entirely,
others have proposed a dedicated route through the footstreets to create
a quicker route through the city centre. However, such spaces are
unpopular with some residents, who feel that sharing pedestrianised
spaces with cycles and e-scooters impacts on their perception of safety.



21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

Page 18

Cyclists, or potential cyclists, also feel perceptions of safety is a major
barrier to increased cycling to the city centre, with roads like the inner
ring road in particular deemed unsuitable if travelling with young children.
The workshops also identified that safe and segregated cycle routes are
welcome, but often require cyclists to navigate less-safe roads in order to
reach them. Regardless of routes and exemptions, many residents
believe that active travel to the city centre would increase with improved,
secure cycle parking which responds to the variety of sizes, weights and
wheelbases of modern bikes.

Deliveries

Traditional pallet based deliveries to city centre businesses broadly work
well with the 10.30am start time for the footstreets, with a sufficient
window for vehicles serving the city centre before it starts to get busy.
However, WalkYork provided supporting feedback from a pedestrian’s
viewpoint, expressing frustration at delivery bottlenecks in the city centre,
particularly the market, due to the large number of vehicles making it
difficult to walk through the centre before 10.30am.

For some that rely on regular small scale deliveries to and from their
business during the day there are challenges of being located in
pedestrianised areas, and whilst delivery couriers are able to viably
provide this service on foot it does result in pressure on loading bays at
busy times. The biggest challenges relate to the increase in food
deliveries during the pandemic, which has become part of the everyday
business model of many food outlets. These are serviced by both
vehicles and cycle couriers, although the large app based operators
increasingly seek to incentivise vehicle deliveries due to their wider
delivery reach.

Cycle couriers have asked for exemptions to be able to cycle in the
pedestrianised areas in order to reduce delivery times and improve
performance, although many of the problems outlined by couriers related
to issues with the apps and wait times at pick up points that the council
do not control. As noted in the cycling section there are also many
residents who feel unsafe sharing these spaces with cyclists, particular
cyclists who have an incentive to travel quickly. In response to the
concerns a self-organised union of delivery cyclists have proposed
signing up to code of conduct to reassure the public that they would use
any exemption responsibly.

Delivery hubs for larger goods were proposed to avoid bottle necks in
popular delivery points across the city centre. It was also referenced that



26.

27.

28.

Page 19

other cities are investing in cargo bikes and breaking deliveries into
smaller, more regular deliveries, particularly to offices and small
businesses. The dual use of loading bays with disabled parking in
Duncombe Place was welcomed by couriers, but this contradicts the
views of some blue badge holders who find the location dangerous or
unavailable due to the high levels of delivery activity.

Taxis and private hire

Taxi drivers would like to see clearer signage indicating the location of
taxi ranks. There was a shared opinion between both taxi and hackney
carriage groups that there is insufficient space to park up during busy
periods, particularly as certain areas are now shared spaces with
delivery drivers and Blue Badge holders. This is exacerbated by a steep
increase in food delivery drivers, especially in the shared areas of
Duncombe Place.

Disabled residents expressed concern over the lack of taxi operators’
understanding of accessibility and the availability of accessible vehicles.
The council has been asked to consider establishing a forum between
taxi operators and disabled groups to improve the taxi offer.

Based on the findings of the Open Brief a number of proposals were
taken forward for a final round of public and stakeholder engagement to
help refine the final recommendations in the strategic review. These
proposals covered a number of themes:

e whether the footstreet hours should run until 7pm in the evening to
deliver the My City Centre vision of a family friendly early evening
economy

e whether the footstreet hours could start at 12 noon to during
weekdays in the less busy period of the year to allow longer period
of access for blue badge holders

e creating further disabled bays in Duncombe Place/Blake Street
e investing in the Shopmobility and Dial-&-Ride service, identifying
users and additional locations, and the intention to expanded

provision of mobility aids

e a feasibility study for a dedicated EV shuttle service for disabled
people and those with mobility issues



29.

30.

31.

Page 20

e providing additional seating at key points across the city centre,
improving the availability and quality of disabled toilets, and
improving poor quality pavements

e the aim for all city centre business deliveries being undertaken by
ultra-low emission vehicles or cargo bikes by 2030

e that in principle cycling should not be permitted in the footstreets

e but whether there should be exemptions for people who use a cycle
as a mobility aid or for cycle couriers

e improving existing city centre cycle routes, and investing in more
secure cycle parking spaces

The response to this engagement is set out in detail in Annex 5. Overall
the ideas which received the most support were; improving accessibility
with better facilities for disabled people; that cycling, e-bikes and e-
scooters should not be able to access the footstreets area during
pedestrianised hours; working with cyclists to co-design secure cycle
storage in key cycle park hubs; and all city centre business deliveries to
be ultra-low emission vehicles (e.g electric vehicles) or cargo bike. Other
ideas which received strong support were for trans-shipment hubs;
working with cyclists to co-design improvements to the existing cycle
routes around the edge of the footstreet area; and an EV shuttle service
for disabled people.

There was far less certainty in the views around exemptions for different
cycling groups. Around half of respondents were in favour and half
against exemptions for disabled people who consider their cycle as a
mobility aid, and for cargo bikes. There was less support for cycle courier
exemptions, although more for allowing couriers after 5pm than them
rather than an exemption all times.

In terms of footstreet hours, the My City Centre vision that is also
considered at this Executive sets out a number of ambitions for the future
of the city centre, including creating a family friendly mid-week early
evening economy, spreading events across the city centre, and
encouraging the outdoor café culture that has emerged in recent years in
the footstreet areas. These were all well received during the engagement
on that vision, and as a consequence the Strategic Review of City Centre
Access engagement sought to test the proposal for the long term



Page 21

footstreet hours to run until 7pm in the evening. This was well received,
with only 23% of respondents stating their preference for the footstreet
hours to end at 5pm. 44% supported them ending at 7pm, and 18%
supported the hours ending even later. Based on this feedback, and to
deliver the My City Centre vision, it is proposed that the long term
footstreet hours should run until 7pm in the evening. Any changes to the
footstreet hours would however require a future full statutory consultation
to allow all views to be considered in making the decision.

Final recommendations

32. Having considered all of the above feedback an overarching guiding
principle has developed to create a City Centre Access model on which
the recommendations in the review are based. This centres on three key
principles — that the footstreets is an area where people walk or use their
mobility aids; that cyclist, e-scooters, buses and blue badge holders are
encouraged to be within the city centre but to pass around or park on the
edge of the footstreet area; and where people choose to use cars and
vehicles rather than public transport they are encouraged to use, and
park outside of, the inner ring road.

Figure 1 — City Centre Access model

Cycling, e-scooters, buses
Walking and mobility aids and blue badge parking Cars

A N
W

Footstreets area ‘ ) City centre Area outside inner ringroad

33. The recommendations in the review are consistent with this City Centre
Access model, which it is proposed will also be adopted for use in Local
Transport Plan 4. The recommendations are as follows:



Page 22

General recommendations

As noted above once the Covid response has finished the
footstreet hours should operate until 7pm in the evening

A review of all existing footstreets exemptions will be undertaken
as part of the design and implementation of the Hostile Vehicle
Mitigation measures

Disabled access recommendations

The creation of an Access Officer post

Further dedicated disabled bays to be created wherever possible
on the edge of the footstreets

Investing in the Shopmobility and Dial-&-Ride services, to raise
awareness of the service offer and ensuring this offer better meets
the needs of a wider audience, and expanding the provision of
mobility aids

Work with Tier to explore the potential roll of out of mobility aids at
key points across the city

Carry out a feasibility study for a dedicated EV shuttle service for
disabled people and those with mobility issues

Install additional seating at key points in the city centre to be
identified with disabled groups

Improve the availability and quality of disabled toilets by working
with partners and businesses across the city

Improve accessibility of key routes in to and through the city centre
by investing in poor quality pavements and dropped kerbs

Improve the information available on the services and facilities
available to improve disabled access to the city centre, including
those listed above

Work with disabled people to identify two gold standard disabled
car parks for upgrade

Develop a York Standard for the quality of city centre streets and
spaces with disabled groups



Page 23

Cycling, e-scooters and e-bikes

e Confirm the existing position that cycling is not permitted in the
footstreets during footstreet hours

e |mprove existing city centre cycle routes (subject to Active Travel
Fund bid)

e |nvest in improving secure city centre cycle parking in strategic
locations, including for adapted cycles (subject to Active Travel
Fund bid)

Deliveries

e The aim is for all city centre business deliveries to be by ultra-low
emission vehicles or cargo bikes by 2030

e Explore options for a trans-shipment hub for city centre (DEFRA
funding secured)

e Work with the BID to continue to understand the evolving nature of
food delivery businesses in the city centre

Taxis
o Clearer signage indicating location of taxi ranks
e Potential new evening rank on Piccadilly

e Facilitate a forum between taxi operators and disabled groups to
improve the taxi offer

34. There are several key issues which were considered as part of the
review but ultimately discounted at this stage. The first of these related to
the starting time of the footstreet hours. Consideration was given to
whether they could start later on weekday mornings at less busy times to
allow an increased period for deliveries and blue badge parking. There
were a mix of views, with 34% of respondents in favour and 44% against
the proposal. Blue badge holders were more likely to agree with the
proposal as it would give them longer to access the city centre by
vehicle. However, at this stage there remains unresolved officer
concerns as to how traffic regulations could allow the times to change
regularly based on how busy the city centre is, and consequently it is not
proposed to revise the morning start times at this stage.



35.

36.

37.

38.

39.

Page 24

The second was in response to a request from York Cycle Campaign to
provide a new cycle route through the city centre via Parliament Street,
Davygate and Blake Street. This proposal was also considered by MHA
in their review (Annex 7) which looked at what would be required for this
to be feasible. They concluded that a route could work with a dedicated
contraflow cycle lane, pinch-points where the width of the road narrows,
a suspension of the cycle lane during any events in Parliament Street,
and cyclists being required to dismount during the busiest periods when
there are high volumes of pedestrians.

Having considered their proposal officers are of the view that they are
unworkable in practice without a complete redesign of the existing road
network and public realm, and could only be considered should there be
future plans and funding to redesign the whole of that area of the city and
footstreets. It was also considered impractical to operate on the basis of
cyclists judging the need to dismount when the route was too busy,
which in effect is the pedestrianised footstreet hours, and how that would
be enforced. The regular events programme for Parliament Street would
also require frequent suspension of the cycle lane.

The other major areas that was considered but ultimately discounted was
the proposal to trial exemptions for certain groups to allow them to cycle
through the footstreets. This would have primarily extended to two
groups, those with a disability who use a cycle as a mobility aid and
cycle couriers. The public engagement reflected a mix of views on the
subject, and we received personal testimony from respondents over the
impact of sharing pedestrianised areas with cyclists, with particular
concern over cycle couriers who have a vested interest in travelling
quickly from location to location.

On balance these proposals were not included in the recommendations
in the review at this stage. There were concerns over how the scheme
would be enforced, requiring the development of a permit scheme for
those with exemptions; that it would cause confusion as to whether
cycling is permitted within the footstreets leading to an increase in the
number of cyclists in the area; and during a period of flux where the
geography of the footstreets and hours of operations are currently under
review and change is the wrong time to trial any exemptions.

In terms of food cycle couriers there are also wider issues to understand
about how the city centre will continue to develop in response to food
deliveries. Whilst cycle couriers provide a vital service and are the
preferred mode of sustainable delivery, food outlets are also serviced by
vehicles, and major delivery operators often seek to incentivise those



40.

4].

Page 25

deliveries due to the expanded reach of the offer. As a consequence the
city centre operating as food delivery hub attracts more vehicle journeys
and leads to significant pressure on pinch points on the edge of the
footstreets such as Duncombe Place which are problematic.

Therefore it is proposed to keep this issue under review. The council will
look to undertake further work with the BID and businesses to
understand how the food delivery models are likely to develop and
explore ways in which food deliveries, particularly from larger chains, can
be facilitated outside of the footstreets and from locations that can be
more easily accessed by cyclists and delivery drivers. In terms of
disabled people who use their cycle as a mobility aid this will be explored
further by the newly created Access Officer post to consider how a
potential exemption scheme could work.

Action Plan

The review is accompanied by an Action Plan which sets out a series of
recommendations to deliver the strategy; identifies the proposed or
secured funding sources for delivery; who will be responsible for delivery;
and the target date for completion. This provides a clear approach to
improving city centre access and tangible outcomes.

Strategic Review of Council Car Parking

42.

43.

44.

The council’s priority is for people to use sustainable modes of transport,
but car parking also has a role to play in a successful city centre
economy, in allowing the city centre to compete with out of town retail
and other local centres that offer free or discounted car parking. As set
out in the My City Centre vision, people and footfall are crucial to the
ongoing economic and social success of the city centre, and for some
cars will remain the preferred mode of transport.

The council has 19 car parks across the city, from the park and ride sites
that are a key part of our sustainable transport network, to large car
parks servicing the city centre, and small local car parks serving
secondary centres. Collectively the car parks generate in the region of
£7m each year, which is an important income stream in funding the wider
services provided by the council.

It is important to note that the council cannot use its own car parks in
isolation to influence car journeys. Should the city seek to take a future
proactive approach to reducing car journeys through car parking it needs



Page 26

to be determined through Local Transport Plan 4 and supported by
appropriate planning policy. If the council tried to reduce car journeys
through the closure of any of its car parks without this policy framework it
could result in the private sector capitalising on the demand created by
the reduced supply and responding with the building of new car parks.

45. Instead the review creates a hierarchy of council car parks that can be
used to inform a strategy of how any potential future decline in parking
demand is managed, and which council car parks should be prioritised
for investment and improvements. This is achieved by creating a profile
of each council car park and assessing them to compare and rank them
in priority for investment. The assessment process has two stages. The
first is to assess the car parks against Tier 1 Threshold questions. This
process identifies which car parks should be automatically excluded from
the hierarchy as they are already predetermined to remain as car parks
(park and ride) or have already been identified for closure (Castle Car
Park).

Figure 2 — How car parks assessed against Tier 1 Threshold questions

l. Is it part of our Sustainable Transport System?
This automatically puts Park and Ride car parks at the top of the priority
list and excludes them from the Tier 2 consideration.

NO - Bootham Row / Castle / Esplanade /
Fossbank / Nunnery Lane / Marygate / Monk Bar /
Piccadilly / St George's Field / Union Terrace

YES - Grimston Bar / Monks Cross / Poppleton
Bar / Askham Bar / Rawcliffe Bar

2. Has it been identified for closure as part of an
on going programme’
This identifies where there is already a committment or requirement to close
a car park through Executive decision, planning or statutory requirement.

NO - Bootham Row / Castle / Esplanade /
YES - Castle Fossbank / Nunnery Lane / Marygate / Monk Bar /
Piccadilly / St George's Field / Union Terrace

46. The second stage is to then assess the remaining car parks against Tier
2 Hierarchy questions, to rank and establish a hierarchy of the councils’
car parks to guide future investment decisions. The Tier 2 questions run
in order of importance from left to right on a matrix grid, to create a
sequential ranking system aligned on the council’s priorities.



Page 27

Figure 3 — How car parks are assessed to create a matrix of car parks

Tier 2 / Hierarchy Questions

4lsi 8. Current usage/current iy
) .; 't 5.1sit 6. Does it 7.What is | revenue generation based 9.C 10.D c ’ |
Oauctcselzs:eodr accessed have an its estimated on revenue per space SL;rfaLé:i::::l ca;' a?flf idl:::?;il;g
directly from through a alternative | land value? arking ba curantI as part of
the iﬁner residential | development | (value per Q2019720 | P qual?ty Y have toile?:'s’ Ionng term
? ? :
ring road? area? use? acre) Q2 2021/22 2|O|9f20 EV strategy
ncome
Yes Yes Yes Ieﬁs? g;in less than £2,000 / space High Yes Yes
between
No No No £15mand | PEEVee szgea”d £400071 Medium No No
£25m P
more than
£9 Sm/acre more than £4000 / space Low

Council car parking hierarchy

All the council car parks within the scope of the study and not excluded in the first stage have been
assessed against the Tier 2 questions to create the hierarchy below. Working from the left each car
park is determined under each question to either be a high priority or low priority for investment.
By assessing question by question on a priority basis this allows the car parks to be ranked in order.

High priority for parking investmenit

Low priority for parking investment

47. The hierarchy is to be used as a tool to indicate priority car parks for
investment and which car parks may be appropriate for alternative uses.
This is not a definitive decision making tool. Any future decisions on
investment or alternative uses would be subject to individual business
cases and Executive decisions.

48. In descending order of importance the matrix assess:

e If the car park is outside or accessed directly from the inner-ring
road (in line with strategies to reduce vehicles in the city centre)

e Whether the location of the car park has a negative impact on
surrounding residential communities

e If it has an alternative development use that would reduce
greenbelt pressure for residential or employment land

¢ Its potential land value

e The current level of car park occupancy and revenue generated
e The existing quality of the car park

e If it has toilet provision

e If it has been identified as a priority for EV charging



Page 28

49. Based on this assessment the following is the final hierarchy of council
car parks:

Figure 4 — the hierarchy of council car parks

Tier 2 / Hierarchy Questions

.
.. |4sitouside|  S.lsit 6. Does it . 8. Current usagejcurrent
High priority or accessed accessed have an 7.What s its | revenue generation based on | 9. Current 10. Does Currently
for par‘king directly from through a alternative estimated land revenue per space surface and | car park identified
. ? i
investment | the inner ring | residential | development value! parkmg bay currer.'tly as part of
& 3 ) (value peracre) | 32 2021/22 Q2 2019/20 quality have toilets? | longer term
road? area? use! - : EV strategy
o Yes Yes Yes less than £1.5m less than £2,000 / space High Yes Yes
Low pr\o_m:y No No No between £1.0m between £2,000 and Medium No No
for parking and £2.5m £4,000 / space
investrent more than
/
£2 Srfacre more than £4000 / space Low
st i::;;ges Yes MNo Mo less than £1.0m | £4.2k/space | £3.8k/ space Mediurm Yes Yes
Nunnery Lane fes No No less than £1.5m | £4.5k /space | £2.7k/ space Medium Yes Yes
Esplanade Yes MNo Mo less than £1.5m | £3.7k/space | £2.2k/ space Mediurn MNe MNe
Union Terrace Yes MNo Yes more than £4.1k / space | £3.6k/ space Mediurm Yes Yes
£2.5m /acre
Fossbank Yes MNo Yes £1.2k /space | £1.1k/ space Mediurm Mo Mo
MSCP
Bootham Row Yes Yes ‘Yes between £15m £52k [ space | £4.4k/ space Medium No Yes
and £2m
Monk Bar fes Yes Yes between £1om £4.4k [ space | £2.2k/ space Medium No Yes
and £2.5m
between £1.5m .
/
Marygate Yes Yes Yes and £2.5m £5.5k / space £2k / space Mediurm No fes
Co;%ecrgate No No Yes £3.5k / space | £2.9k [ space Medium Yes No

50. This approach identifies that the council’s car parks which are outside
the inner ring road, have the lowest impact on our communities as they
are not accessed through residential streets, and have no alternative
development use and therefore low land value should be prioritised for
investment. These car parks are Nunnery Lane, St George’s Field and
Esplanade.

51. In addition to the hierarchy of car parks the review makes a series of

recommendations set out in the action plan:

e Undertake a business case to roll out pay on exit in high priority for
investment car parks, including a review of detailed data collected
and analysis from Marygate and Coppergate pay on exit to date

e Bring forward future rolling investment plan to improve high priority
investment for car parks



52.

53.

Page 29

e Reinstate vehicle counters and variable messaging signs which
give real time updates on the number of available spaces to
customers

e Explore the expansion of the BIDs Moving Insight data through
LTP4 to cover car parks to provide an improved data set including
where people have travelled from, their onward route on foot in the
city centre, and spend once there

e Work with disabled groups to identify two car parks within the
hierarchy for priority investment for improvement of disabled
parking facilities and onward access routes in to the city centre

e Carry out a feasibility study with First on options for Park & Ride
sites to become multi-functional hubs, providing overnight parking
for city centre visitors and better inter-city bus links

e Continue the roll out of EV charging strategy across the council’s
car parks

During the public engagement on city centre access some disabled
people identified that proximity to the city’s pedestrianised footstreets
was less important to them, and they would rather park in car parks with
high standard disabled parking bays, better facilities, and high quality
access routes in to the city centre. Whilst it is recommended car parks
will undergo ongoing investment to improve the customer offer over time
it was agreed that identifying two council car parks within the hierarchy
for priority investment in improving both the facilities for disabled people
and the access routes in to the city would help to improve York’s access
offer. These gold standard disabled access car parks would then be
promoted to residents and visitors. It is important to note that this would
not preclude those car parks from part closure or redevelopment in the
future but that the disabled parking would need to be retained.

In discussion with York Disability Rights Forum it has been agreed that
the disabled priority car parks should be identified in consultation with
disabled people, and that this should follow the associated decisions
relating to the footstreets considered in a separate item at November
Executive. This is because the geography of the footstreets, and the
decisions on where disabled people have exemptions to park within the
city centre may impact on which car park location is most appropriate.
Consequently it is recommended that officer’'s work with disabled people



54,

55.

56.

S7.

Page 30

to establish the methodology and define the priority car parks, with a
future report to Executive to agree these car parks based on the
outcome and consider the investment asks and funding routes available.

St George’s Field MSCP

In October 2021 the Executive considered a full business case review of
the Castle Gateway masterplan in light of the impact of Covid. Based on
that review the Executive agreed to proceed with the delivery of the
regeneration masterplan, procuring a contractor for Castle Mills and
preparing a planning application for the high quality public realm to
replace Castle Car Park and the Eye of York. However, at that stage due
to uncertainty of the impacts of Covid on car parking and the ongoing
considerations of the changes to city centre access, the decision was
taken to pause the procurement of a contractor for the St George’s Field
MSCP until the summer of 2021. Subsequently the Executive
commissioned the Strategic Review of Council Car Parking to help
inform the decision as to whether to proceed.

The review establishes that car parking demand has returned to and
exceeded pre-Covid levels, and has identified St George’s Field as a
priority car park given it is outside the inner-ring road, isn't accessed
through residential streets, and has no alternative development value.

The decision as to whether to proceed with St George’s Field will be
brought back to a future Executive in February 2022, as part of a wider
delivery report on the Castle Gateway. This will need to be considered at
the same time as the decision to proceed with Castle Mills based on the
tender price for that project. This was due to also be considered at this
Executive, however it has been deferred as there has been a delay in the
contractor providing the tender price due to current market uncertainty
owing to Covid and Brexit. As such it is prudent to consider whether to
proceed with St George’s Field as part of that wider business case
review.

Officers are aware that there is a separate piece of analysis that has
been undertaken by the York Cycle Campaign and a local resident
campaigning on the basis that the council should not proceed with the St
George’s Field MSCP. As noted earlier in the report the council review is
based on creating a hierarchy of its own car parks to inform future
investment decisions, and any decision relating to a specific car park will
require its own business case and Executive approval. At set out above,



Page 31

at this stage there is no decision being taken on whether to proceed with
St George’s Field.

Consultation

58. The Strategic Review of City Centre Access is the product of extensive
public engagement that is set out in detail in the main body of this report.
The report was also considered by Customer and Corporate Services
Scrutiny Management Committee on Monday 8 November and made a
number of recommendations to Executive. These will be shared with
Executive as an agenda supplement.

Council Plan

59. This strategic reviews have strong links with the council plan:
Well Paid Jobs and an Inclusive Economy: Both reviews are important
parts of helping to deliver the My City Centre vision in seeking to provide

a vibrant city centre with good footfall at all times to support jobs and the
economy.

Greener & Cleaner City: Both strategies set out a number of sustainable
transport improvements, including the ambition for all city centre
deliveries to be by ultra-low emission vehicles or cargo bike by 2030; a
feasibility study in to a trans-shipment hub; improvements to cycle routes
and parking; EV charging policies; and a strategy to manage any future
natural or policy led reduction in car parking demand.

Good Health & Wellbeing: The Strategic Review of City Centre Access
recommends a number of improvements to access in the city centre,
particularly for disabled people, and investment in active transport.

Safe Communities & Culture for All: The Strategic Review of City Centre
Access considers how access to all groups can be improved to the city
centre and proposes a number of recommendations and funded projects
to deliver the vision.

An Open and Effective Council: The Strategic Review of City Centre
Access has been developed through an open, transparent, wide-ranging
and inclusive engagement approach following the ‘My’ principles set out
in the report.




Page 32

Implications

60. The relevant implications are set out below:

Financial - The accompanying action plans to the strategic reviews
detail the recommendations proposed and identifies the funding
sources for each of the recommendations.

In relation to the Strategic Review of City Centre Access the identified
costs within the action plan are £1,085k of which £320k has been
currently identified. The balance of £765k is dependent on the
success of bids for external funding and or additional external funding
awards.

Should the council be successful in its bids the funding will be added
in to the capital programme to fund the associated schemes. Should
the council be unsuccessful or receive lower values than required it
will be necessary to review the levels of schemes that can be funded.
Alternatively funds from other Transport programmes could be
reprioritised to deliver these ambitions. Executive will be updated
through the annual capital budget report and ongoing monitoring
reports.

The Access Officer post will be funded from existing budgets.

In relation to the Strategic Review of Council Car Parking the majority
of the plan details further officer work that is required to identify the
improvements proposed and financial costs. Other measures are
dependent on the success of funding bids or external grant funding.
Further reports will need to be presented to Executive should further
funding be required or to the Executive Member should they be
funded from existing Highways and Transport budgets.

Human Resources (HR) — the report proposes the creation of a new
Access Officer post which will require a job description to be
produced and may require a recruitment process.

Equalities - In line with the Equalities Act 2010 requirements an
Equality Impact Assessment (Annex 3) has been produced for this
report and will be required for any projects or decisions that arise
from it to determine potential impacts and mitigation where individuals



Page 33

or groups with protected characteristics are identified. This will
ensure that equality and diversity impacts are addressed through
specific projects and programmes of work.

. Legal — This report is eligible for call-in. There are no specific legal
implications arising from this report.

. Crime and Disorder — considered to be no implications
. Information Technology (IT) — considered to be no implications

. Property — The property implications are covered within the report
and car park values on a per acre basis have been provided on an
indicative basis having regard to the prevailing property market. They
are indicative only and full checks of services and legal
encumberances would also have to be undertaken which could have
a possible bearing on land values should there be any future proposal
to consider alternative land uses.

Risk Management

61.

62.

The report proposes two key strategies for adoption. The Strategic
Review of City Centre Access is the product of extensive engagement
with the public and targeted engagement with groups who have a
specific interest in access to the city centre. The review sets out a
number of recommendations that seek to improve access in response to
the issues raised in the engagement. Some of those groups had
proposed further improvements that have not been taken forward
following wider public engagement or consideration of the practical or
technical constraints, and there may be disappointment amongst those
that their preferences have not been realised. However, the
recommendations have sought to balance the impact on all users and
the strategy is a product of those balances and deliberations.

The Strategic Review of Council Car Parking is based on an assessment
of the available data and the production of a matrix to create a hierarchy
of council car parks. The review acknowledges that the data sets on
council car parking could be improved, and sets out proposals to improve
the evidence base to assist future city wide strategic decision making in
LTP4. However, there is sufficient data to support the methodology that
has been applied and it is a clear, robust and logical assessment of the
council’s car parks. It prioritises based on the sustainability of location



Page 34

and minimising impact on residential communities, focuses on locations
with no alternative development use that could reduce the demand on
greenfield sites, or generate a high land value to offset lost parking
revenue. Importantly it is only a tool to guide investment decisions. Any
future decisions to invest or dispose of any council car park will require
its own separate Executive decision.



Page 35

Contact Details

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the report:

Andy Kerr Neil Ferris

Head of Regeneration and Corporate Director of Place

Economy

01904 554 153 Report N Date 9 November 2021
Approved

Katie Peeke-Vout
Regeneration Project
Manager

Specialist Implications Officer(s) List information for all

Financial: Legal:

Patrick Looker Heidi Lehane

Finance Manager Senior Solicitor

01904 551 633 01904 555 859

Wards Affected: [List wards or tick box to indicate all] All | X

For further information please contact the author of the report
Background Papers:

Strategic Review of City Centre Access and Parking, Executive Member for
Transport, April 2021

The future of the extended city centre footstreets, Executive, November 2020

Update on Castle Gateway and business case review, Executive, October
2020

Annexes

Annex 1 — Strategic Review of City Centre Access and Action Plan

Annex 2 — Strategic Review of Council Car Parking and Action Plan
Annex 2a — Annex 1 to the Strategic Review of Council Car Parking

Annex 3 — Equalities Impact Assessment for this report

Annex 4 — Open Brief



Page 36

Annex 5 — Summary of engagement on the Strategic Review of City Centre
Access draft recommendations

Annex 6 — Independent Review of York’s Access offer — Disabled Motoring
UK

Annex 7 — Martin Higgitt Associates report

List of Abbreviations Used in this Report

EV charging — Electrical Vehicle charging
LTP4 — Local Transport Plan 4

MHA — Martin Higgitt Associates

MSCP — Multi-storey car park



wmi Strateglc RewevV-#
Counclll Car Parkr'

YORK

o o
N CITY OF
& COUNCIL

November 202 |



Executive Summary

The Strategic Review of Council Car Parking has two primary purposes. The first is to provide an assessment of council owned car parks
in the city and create a hierarchy of those car parks to inform and prioritise immediate investment decisions. The second it so identify
information gaps in car parking usage that can be improved to guide future evidence based decision making in Local Transport Plan 4
about the city wide role of car parking in our integrated transport system.

The review establishes a hierarchy of council car parks to manage future parking demand, and which council car parks should be
prioritised for investment and improvements. The approach identifies that the council's car parks which are outside the inner ring road,
have the lowest impact on our residential communities, and have no viable alternative development use are the highest priority for
investment. That is because they are the least likely to be closed should there be any future natural or policy driven decline in parking
demand. It is important to note that there is no suggestion at this point in time that any of the car parks are to close.

It is important to note that the council cannot use its own car parks in isolation to influence car journeys. Should the city seek to take a
future approach to reducing car journeys through car parking it needs to be determined through Local Transport Plan 4 and supported
by appropriate planning policy. If the council tried to reduce car journeys through the closure of any of its car parks without this policy
framework it could result in the private sector capitalising on the demand created by the reduced supply and responding with the
building of new car parks.

In addition to establishing the hierarchy, the review includes a series of recommendations to improve the quality of evidence bases
relating to council car parks; the customer experience; encouraging the use of the park and ride and electric vehicles; and working with
disabled groups to identify two car parks within the hierarchy as priorities for investment in disabled parking bays, facilities and access
routes in to the city centre.

PAGE

g¢ obed



Background

Whilst the council's priority is for people to use sustainable modes of transport, car parking also has a role to play in a successful city
centre economy, in allowing the city centre to compete with out of town retail that offer free or discounted car parking. As set out in the
My City Centre vision, people and footfall are crucial to the ongoing economic and social success of the city centre, and for some cars
will remain the preferred mode of transport. It should be noted that a resident travelling to the city centre by car is not necessarily an

additional vehicle journey — it may replace a longer car journey that would otherwise have taken place to a supermarket or out of town
retall centre.

The council has 19 car parks across the city in addition to on street pay and display, from the park and ride sites that are a key part

of our sustainable transport network, to large car parks servicing the city centre, and small local car parks serving secondary centres.
Collectively the car parks generate £/m each year, which is an important income stream in funding the wider services provided by the
council. Charging for car parking is not just about income generation, it is also an important tool in encouraging the use of public or
active transport.

In addition to the council car parks there are many privately owned and operated car parks within and on the periphery of the city
centre. Again whilst the council's preference is for people to use alternative modes of transport where people will park, the principle is
that the council should be the parking provider of choice, enabling the revenue generated to be retained in the city and to support the
provision of council services.

This review was commissioned in November 2020 by the Executive and the scope agreed in April 2021. The primary driver of the
review is to improve the evidence bases to guide immediate council investment decisions in relation to its car parks, and on car parking
usage to inform strategic transport decisions in the upcoming Local Transport Plan 4.

PAGE

6E abed



Review methodology

The main aim of the review of parking is to create a hierarchy of council car parks that can be used in the future to inform a strategy of
how future parking demand is managed and which council car parks should be prioritised for investment and improvements.

There are four objectives identified in the review of council car parking:

a. Provide an improved evidence base for future decision making

b. Identify strategic priority council car parks for investment and retention should parking decline in the future
c. Optimise and future proof council car parks

d. Respond to disabled access parking requirements

O City Centre Car Parking O

Provide Optimise and

ldentify strategic Respond

improved riority car parks future proof to disabled
evidence base for priorty car p CYC car parks .
. for investment : . access parking
future decision including revenue

and retention requirements

consideration

making

PAGE

ot abed

4



Outcomes

Under each of these objectives are a number of outcomes:

a. Evidence Base

e Collate all the existing available data
e |dentify and implement measures to improve future evidence base

b. Priority car park locations

* Provide a matrix for assessment of car parks using available data to produce a hierarchy of council car parks
* Assess car parks against the above matrix to create a hierarchy to target future investment

c. Optimise and future proof council car parks

* Improve customer experience and the quality of council car parks

Review the pricing and payment options to allow flexibility based on demand and prioritisation
Optimise capacity within council car parks and the revenue generation

Target Electric Vehicle (EV) charging

* Maximise the use of the Park and Rides

T obed

d. Disabled access and parking

* |Implement the Strategic Review of City Centre Access recommendations
* |mplement improvements to the Shop-mobility service
e |dentify gold standard accessibility car parks with disabled people and advocacy groups

It is important to note that the council cannot influence car journeys through its car parks in isolation. Should the city seek to take a future
proactive approach to reducing car journeys through car parking it needs to be determined through Local Transport Plan 4 and supported by
planning policies. If the council tried to reduce car journeys through the closure of any of its car parks without this it could result in the private
sector capitalising on that demand and building new car parks, and the policy outcomes not necessarily being achieved.

PAGE



Evidence Base

Outputs

e Collate all available data
e |dentify and implement measures to improve future evidence base

The first step in the parking review was to identify and asses the existing evidence relating to the council's car parks, to allow an
assessment of the car parks to be undertaken at this stage and identify where there are gaps in data collection and analysis that could be
improved to aid future strategic decision making.

Using the data available, a profile of each car park was produced (annex I) that set out the following;

a. General information — The actual number of spaces in each car park fluctuates over time as different uses are flexed in
response to demand, such as cycle parking, disabled bays, EV charging. The numbers contained in this review are based on an in
person count undertaken in October 202 | and reflect the position at that date.

b. Parking Data — to understand how well used the car park is, who it is typically used by, and how much revenue it generates

c. Transport Information — to understand the impact the car park location has on the transport network and the impact on
the surrounding area and communities, location in relation to destination, and accessibility to and from the car park.

d. Property Information — to understand whether there is an alternative development use for the car park and its land
value, and also to consider whether consolidating in to a smaller footprint multi-storey car park is possible with the remaining area
developed or used for a different purpose.

e. Electric Vehicle Charging — based on the council's Electric Vehicle (EV) strategy 2020-2025, this section is to understand
the role car parks can play in provide EV charging points in the city centre, particularly in relation to providing an alternative to on
street charging for residents who live in terraced streets where installing EV charging is challenging.

f. External Influences — This section is to identify any other influences that should be considered that fall outside of the
categories above. Although this is not a demand driven assessment, the expected increase in visitor numbers to the city from
regeneration and development, such as to the world class public realm in the Castle Gateway Masterplan and York Central, and a
significant increase in the number of hotel rooms and car free developments, has been taken in to consideration.

Fach car park has a detailed profile in Annex |, but the key facts are summarised on the following map. PAGE

2t obed



Council car parks servicing the city centre

4. Bootham Row
0.4 acres
58 Standard Spaces
8 Disabled bays

5. Union Terrace
2.2 acres
|45 Standard Spaces
|3 Disabled bays

6. Monk Bar
|.5 acres
|94 Standard Spaces
8 Disabled bays

7. Fossbank MSCP
|.7 acres
316 Standard Spaces
4 Disabled bays

£339K per year £484k per year £522k per year £230k per year

£2.2K per space £4.1k per space £4.4k per space £1.2k per space
3. Marygate ) - 1#5.U F{uénv;l;é:i;é‘é R
2.3 acres % m .- ! GRS :

312 Standard Spaces
| | Disabled bays
£655k per year
£5.5k per space

2. Esplanade
0.7 acres
/5 Standard Spaces
5 Disabled bays
£153k per year
£3.7k per space

I. Nunnery Lane
1.2 acres
|39 Standard Spaces
|2 Disabled bays
£464k per year
£4.5k per space

9 2.1 Esplanade
ks :w:m

f}

:«% ‘@%ﬁ?ﬁi&z'

BNV BRI NS Y‘"M

| 9 Castle _Ca

r

Car park profiles:
- Annual revenue
generation based on
2019/20
- Revenue per space
based on Q2 2020/2 |

8. Coppergate MSCP
|l acres
248 Standard Spaces
|8 Disabled bays
£682k per year
£3.5k per space

ot abed

9. Castle
|.6 acres
280 Standard Spaces
20 Disabled bays
£1,068k per year
£6.1k per space

10. St George’s Field
2.2 acres
150 Standard Spaces
/ Disabled bays
£432k per year
£4.5k per space

PAGE

7



Park and Ride car parks

Park and Ride Car Parks

The use of Park and Rides and other public
transport remains the preferred means of accessing
the city centre after walking and cycling.

EV strategy includes significant increase in charging
points to be installed in the Park and Ride Sites.
There are also ambitions to increase the role the
Park and Ride sites in improving the inter-city
connectivity by bus.

Harrogate | o
A59 YOl'k u,b _,:53"0
C:I?tl! .P S:} \bb
Y q;‘-u\ v
A1079 -
Gnmston
— Hull 2
D
- R
AG4 )7
Dwsi
Leeds Outlet
un
>
%<
Spaces
Askham Bar (P&R) | 100
Grimston Bar P&R) 920
Poppleton Bar (P&R) 600
Rawcliffe Bar (P&R) 1000
Monks Cross (P&R) 800
Designer Outlet (P&R) 600
Total P&R provision 5020
PAGE 8



Council car park usage

A variety of mechanisms can be applied to assess usage of council car parks, though it is important to note that this is not currently a core
metric analysed in its own right as part of the council’s business intelligence or monitoring functions. As a result, data has not been available

in a full and consistent manner over a meaningful period of time. There is information held on car park income, and car park usage has been

analysed manually through CCTV since May 2020. Additionally, some count data is held in association with the management of live space

information on city centre signage, and general city traffic levels are also monitored through automatic count infrastructure.

However, these do not provide a clear and consistent data set, and this could be improved. Automatic Number Plate Recognition infrastructure
is planned at some car parks, and pay on exit recently installed at Marygate and Coppergate Centre car parks will assist by improving the

availability of accurate information. The strategy sets out recommendations elsewhere to ensure improved information and monitoring of the

council’s car parking.

The current most accurate measure of
car parking usage is the revenue that

Is generated. Analysis of these figures
shows that parking demand fluctuates
significantly during the year, with the
council's car parks at high capacity at peak
times during school holidays and the run

up to the festive period, but then much 15.000
quieter in other parts of the year and

midweek. It is important that the capacity om0
exits to meet those peak periods in
supporting the city centre economy with
sufficient car parking provision.

5.000

1]
01012019 01022019 010372019

01/04/2019

Car parking revenue by month

01/05/2019

01/06/2019

01/07/2019

01/08/2019

01/09/2019

011042019

ouI12019

0122019

PAGE

Gy abed

9



Impact of the pandemic on council car parks

The graph opposite illustrates the

usage of a series of 9 council car parks

In the city centre, established through
the observation of CCTV footage by
transport officers. This clearly illustrates
both the impacts of the pandemic
lockdowns on usage, and the fact that
occupancy is now at or above the levels
that existed pre-pandemic. Whilst the
pandemic is still happening, and current
behaviours may continue to fluctuate, the
data clearly illustrates that demand for
parking has returned, and the majority
of the observed car parks are operating
very close to capacity at peak times

(and before we even enter the typically
busiest November to December period).

120.00

100.00

80.00

60.00

40.00

20.00

0.00

Observed Average Peak Occupancy by Car Park (%) May 2020-Sept 2021

ot abed

May-20 Jun-20  Jul-20 Aug-20 Sep-20 Oct20 Now20 Dec20 Jan-21 Feb-21 Mar-21 Apr2l May-21 Jun-21  Jul-2l  Aug-2l Sep-2I

LOCKDOWN | LOCKDOWN 2 LOCKDOWN 3

e==Bootham Row Car Park == Castle Car Park

Esplanade Car Park

e==Foss Bank Car Park e==Monkbar Car Park

Marygate Car Park

e===Nunnery Lane Car Park

e Georges Field Car Park e===nion Terrace Car Park

PAGE



This view is reiterated in the additional information presented below, which shows revenue income exceeding pre-pandemic levels, with the
revenue generated by each space in summer 2019 in orange, being compared with the revenue generated in summer 2021,

REVENUE GENERATION PER SPACE Q2 2019/20 VS Q2 2021/22

EQ2 2019/20 £/Space
mQ2 2021/22 £lspace

£6,000

£5,000

£4,000

£3,000

£/space

£2,000

£1,000

Nunnery Lane St George's Field Esplanade  Fossbank MSCP Union Terrace Bootham Row  Monk Bar Marygate  Piccadilly MSCP

It should also be noted that the Rose Theatre was in place during July and August 2019, meaning that Piccadilly and St Georges Field car park
incomes were actually higher than typical at that time, meaning the increased revenue in summer 2021 is notably high. The size of the increase
at Marygate is however an anomaly as the new pay on exit parking system was experiencing operational issues, leading to revenue losses. It
should also be noted that parking charges have increased slightly since 2019, but these would not account for the size of revenue increases,
which clearly reflect the current high level of parking demand.

PAGE

)1 abed



Hierarchy of council car parks

Outputs

e Provide a matrix for assessment of car parks using available data to produce a hierarchy
e Assess car parks to create that hierarchy to target future investment

Methodology

The primary purpose of the review is to use the available information to create a matrix to assess the council’s car parks and place them
within a hierarchy. This hierarchy will then be used to prioritise investment decisions, and ensure that any spend over and above general
improvements and maintenance is focused on council car parks that are likely to remain as car parks should any natural or policy led decline in
car parking demand occur.

ranking of the council’s car parks. The assessment process has two stages. The first is to assess the car parks against Tier | or Threshold
questions. This identifies which car parks should be automatically excluded from the hierarchy as they are already predetermined to remain as
car parks (park and ride) or have already been identified for closure (Castle Car Park).

-
Based on the information contained within each of the car park profiles, an assessment matrix was established to allow a comparison and 8
@D
I
co

The second stage is to then assess the remaining car parks against Tier 2 or Hierarchy questions, to rank and establish a hierarchy of the
councils’ car parks to guide future investment decisions. The Tier 2 questions run in order of importance from left to right, to create a
sequential ranking system aligned on the council’s priorities.

The hierarchy is to be used as a tool to indicate priority car parks for investment and which car parks may be appropriate for alternative uses.
This is not a definitive decision making tool. Any future decisions on investment or alternative uses would be subject to individual business
cases and Executive decisions.

PAGE



Tier 1/Threshold stage

l. Is it part of our Sustainable Transport System?
This automatically puts Park and Ride car parks at the top of the priority
list and excludes them from the Tier 2 consideration.

NO - Bootham Row / Castle / Esplanade /
Fossbank / Nunnery Lane / Marygate / Monk Bar /
Piccadilly / St George's Field / Union Terrace

YES - Grimston Bar / Monks Cross / Poppleton
Bar / Askham Bar / Rawcliffe Bar

2. Has it been identified for closure as part of an
on going programme?
This identifies where there is already a committment or requirement to close
a car park through Executive decision, planning or statutory requirement.

NO - Bootham Row / Castle / Esplanade /
YES - Castle Fossbank / Nunnery Lane / Marygate / Monk Bar /
Piccadilly / St George's Field / Union Terrace

PAGE

61 abed



Tier 2/Hierarchy stage

The Tier 2/Hierarchy questions are listed in order of importance, with questions to the left of the table having greater influence than those on
the right. The questions are split into categories which are set out below:

a. The greatest influence is given to alignment to strategic priorities for the city centre and a sustainability/air quality measure. Questions
3 and 4 identify whether the car parks in the hierarchy align with the car free ambition to reduce the number of journeys in the city
centre, the access model for the city centre in the Strategic Review of City Centre Access that determines vehicles should where possible
use and park outside the inner-ring road, and indicate what impact the car park has on sustainability and air quality in residential areas:

3. Is it outside or accessed directly from the inner ring road? o

)

4. Is it accessed through a residential area? ‘-8
a1
o

b. Questions 5 and 6 in the hierarchy identifies which car parks have an alternative development use and the land value of the car parks
as a development asset. Those with an alternative development use that could contribute to the city’s housing or employment demand
are less likely to be retained as a car parks unless parking could be consolidated in to smaller more efficient footprint multi storeys. Those
with no alternative development use of lower land values are more likely to remain as car parks.

5. Does it have an alternative development use?
6. What is its estimated land value? (value per hectare?)

*There are two locations where the council is the leaseholder only of the property, and therefore presents no land value to the
council (Fossbank and Coppergate Centre). The land values are indicative only and final values would be subject to full checks
of services and legal encumbrances. These would be included in any potential businesses cases informing future decisions.

PAGE



c. Revenue generation is an important consideration in any future decision making given its role in funding wider council services.
Current usage is also an indication of preference, ease of use, and the desirability of a location. (This is one area where data is currently
limited and forms a recommendation for improvement). However this is not the highest priority as even if a car park is well used, if it
does not meet over city strategic priorities it could still close, as evidenced by the future redevelopment of Castle Car Park in to new
public realm.

7. Current usage/current revenue generation based on revenue per space

*Both the pre-Covid and current revenue per space figures have been included — Q2 2019/20 and Q2 2021/22
Only the pre-Covid annual revenue figure has been included due to the unpredictability of the rest of 2021/22

d. Questions 8 and 9 consider the costs of improving each of the car parks, this is assessed through the current surface and parking bay =g
quality and whether the car park has existing toilet facilities. This is a lower priority as all car parks can be improved if they meet the Widerg
strategic aims. ®
o1
H

8. Current surface and parking bay quality
9. Does car park currently have toilets?

e. Finally, the hierarchy also considers the role each car park plays in delivering the current EV strategy 2020-2025 and whether there has
been recent or planned EV installations.

10. Part of longer term EV strategy

PAGE



Tier 2 / Hierarchy Questions

4 1S 8. Current usage/current .
S 't 5.1sit 6. Does it 7.What is | revenue generation based .
outside or . . 9. Current 10. Does Currently
accessed have an its estimated on revenue per space . g
accessed . R surface and car park identified
directly from througha | alternative | land value? parking bay | currently as part of
) residential | development| (value per Q2 2019/20 ; .
the inner areal use? acre) 02 2021122 quality have toilets? | longer term
ring road? ) ) 2019720 EV strategy
Income
Yes Yes Yes Iezsl tShman less than £2,000 / space High Yes Yes
betWeen | otween £2,000 and £4,000 /
No No No £1.5m and ' ' Medium No No
space
£2.5m
more than more than £4000 / space Low
£2.5m/acre P

2S obed

Council car parking hierarchy

All the council car parks within the scope of the study and not excluded in the first stage have been
assessed against the Tier 2 questions to create the hierarchy below.Working from the left each car
park is determined under each question to either be a high priority or low priority for investment.

By assessing question by question on a priority basis this allows the car parks to be ranked in order.

High priority for parking investment

Low priority for parking investment

PAGE



Tier 2 / Hierarchy Questions

8. Current usage/current

4. Is it outside

5.1sit

6. Does it

€G obed

High priority | o accessed accessed have an 7. YVhat is its | revenue generation based on | 9- Current | 10. Does f:urre.:r.ntly
for parking directly from through a alternative estimated land revenue per space surface and | car park identified
0 ? .
Investment | the inner ring | residential | development value! parklng bay currer.ltly ) as part of
road? area? use? (value per acre) Q22021/22 Q2 201920 quality have toilets? | longer term
) ) ) EV strategy
] - Yes Yes Yes less than £1.5m less than £2,000 / space High Yes Yes
Ow priority between £1.5m between £2,000 and .
for parking No No No and £2.5m £4,000 / space Medium No No
Investment
more than more than £4000 / space Low
£2.5m/acre
St (I.-‘-:ie;;ges Yes No No less than £1.5m | £4.2k / space | £3.8k/ space Medium Yes Yes
Nunnery Lane Yes No No less than £1.5m | £4.5k /space | £2.7k/ space Medium Yes Yes
Esplanade Yes No No less than £1.5m | £3.7k/space | £2.2k/ space Medium No No
Union Terrace Yes No Yes more than £4.1k / space | £3.6k/ space Medium Yes Yes
£2.5m /acre
Fc;:;'?:k Yes No Yes £1.2k / space | £1.1k/ space Medium No No
Bootham Row Yes Yes Yes between £1.5m £5.2k / space | £4.4k/ space Medium No Yes
and £2m
between £1.5m :
Monk Bar Yes Yes Yes £4.4k / space | £2.2k/ space Medium No Yes
and £2.5m
M t Yes Yes Yes between £1.5m £5.5k / space £2k / space Medium No Yes
arygate and £2.5m R >
Coﬂgeéiate No No Yes £3.5k / space | £2.9k/ space Medium Yes No

PAGE



Analysis

This approach identifies that the council’s car parks which are outside the inner ring road, have the lowest impact on our communities as
they are not accessed through residential streets, have no alternative development use and therefore low land value, should be prioritised
for investment. That is because they are the least likely to be closed should parking demand reduce. These car parks are Nunnery Lane, St
George's Field and Esplanade.

This consistent with the accompanying Strategic Review of City Centre Access has established a model that is based on three key principles
— that the footstreets is an area in which people can walk or use mobility aids; that cyclist, e-scooters, buses and blue badge holders are
encouraged to be within the city centre but to pass around or park on the edge of the footstreets; and cars and vehicles are encouraged
where possible to use and park outside the inner ring road.

Cycling, e-scooters, buses
Walking and mobility aids and blue badge parking

Area outside inner ringroad

Footstreets area . City centre

PAGE 18



As this is the founding approach on which the strategy is based this has been adopted as the priority principle in assessing council owned car
parks.Where possible general parking provision should be located either outside or directly accessed from the inner ring road, to minimise the
number of vehicles that access the city centre (although disabled car parking within the inner-ring road remains a key part of the approach).
This is also consistent with the park > walk > visit strategy which was promoted in the One Year Transport and Place Strategy in response to
Covid, where parking incentives only applied to car parks outside the inner ring road, and any future consideration of a car free city centre that
was subject to a council motion in 2020.

It should be noted that within the City Centre Access model blue badge and disabled parking is encouraged within the city centre, and the
Strategic Review of City Centre Access sets out measures to continue to increase disabled parking bays across the city centre and on the edge
of the pedestrianised footstreets.

The car parks that are identified as lower priority for investment are those that may be considered for alternative uses in the future as they
have the potential for alternative development use and a land value that could help offset the loss of parking revenue if they were to close. In
some instances these car parks may be able to be developed in part if the demand reduces, whilst still retaining some car parking. It is again
important to note that there is no suggestion at this point in time that any of the car parks are to close.

GG abed

PAGE



Improving council car parks

Recommendations:

Having assessed the existing evidence bases and car parks it has been identified that the following key improvements would allow an
improved evidence base to guide wider strategic decisions in Local Transport Plan 4; improve the customer offer and experience in council
car parks; and encourage the take up of ultra-low emission vehicles and use of the park and ride.

Undertake a business case to roll out pay on exit in high priority for investment car parks, including a review of
detailed data collected and analysis from Marygate and Coppergate pay on exit to date

Bring forward future rolling investment plan to improve high priority investment car parks

Reinstate vehicle counters and variable messaging signs which give real time updates on the number of available spaces
to customers

Explore the expansion of the BIDs Moving Insight data through LTP4 to include car parks, which would provide an
improved data set including where people have travelled from, their onward route on foot in the city centre, and spend

once there

Carry out a feasibility study with First on options for Park & Ride sites to become multi-functional hubs, providing
overnight parking for city centre visitors and better inter-city bus links

Continue the roll out of EV charging strategy across the council’s car parks

PAGE

9g abed



Disabled car parking

Recommendations:

During the public engagement on city centre access some disabled people identified that proximity to the city's pedestrianised footstreets
was less important to them, and they would rather park in car parks with high standard parking bays, better facilities, and high quality access
routes in to the city centre.Whilst all car parks will undergo ongoing investment to improve the customer offer it was agreed that identifying
two council car parks within the hierarchy for priority investment in improving both the facilities for disabled people and the routes in to

the city would help to improve York's access offer. These gold standard disabled access car parks could then be promoted to residents and
visitors. It is important to note that this would not preclude those car parks from part closure or redevelopment in the future but the
disabled parking would need to be retained.

In discussion with York Disability Rights Forum it was agreed that the disabled priority car parks should be identified in consultation with
disabled people once decisions on the future geography of the footstreets have been taken as this may impact on which car park location
Is most appropriate. Consequently it is recommended that officer's work with disabled people to establish the methodology and define the
priority car parks, with a future report to Executive to agree these car parks based on the outcome and consider the investment asks and
funding routes available.

* Work with disabled groups to identify two car parks within the hierarchy for priority investment for improvement of
disabled parking facilities and onward access routes in to the city centre

PAGE

)G abed



Action Plan

Recommendations and
Requirements to implement

Budget already

identified /

Funding Source

Action
Owner

Timescales
for delivery

Parking Review Obijectives

Undertake a business case for the
wider roll out of pay on exit in high
priority for investment car parks,
including lessons learnt from Marygate

Budget required

Improve evidence base

and Coppergate. Not required EX|sténg(jParI<|ng THeatd of Suzrgrznzer

. . . udget ransport Improve customer experience
Include in the business case a review
of detailed data collected and analysis
undertaken from pay on exit to date
to strengthen evidence base.
Bring fomard futgre rollling iInvestment | Busihess case 'to Head of Surmmer Improve customer experience
plan to improve high priority Budget required | consider funding Transport H022
investment car parks source P Improve car park quality
Reinstate vehicle counters and variable . .

o L . Business case to Subject to
messaging signs which give real time . . . Head of .

. Budget required | consider funding successful | Improve customer experience
updates on the number of available Transport .
source bid
spaces to customers
Explore improved data sets through
LTP4 to provide an improved data set LTP 4 — Subject Head of
including where people have travelled £30,000 to business case March 2023 Improve evidence base
. . Transport

from, their onward route on foot in the for data

city centre, and spend once there

PAGE

3G abed



Recommendations and

Requirements to implement

Budget already
identified /

Funding Source

Action
Owner

Timescales
for delivery

Parking Review Obijectives

Work with disabled groups to identify

Budget required

centre visitors and better inter-city bus
links

. al Head of Improve customer experience
from the hierarchy for priority )
. : Regeneration :
investment, two car parks for improved . . Summer Improve car park quality
. . oy . Not required Not required & Economy/
disabled parking facilities and improved Head of 2022 _
onward access routes in to the city Teansoort Improve disabled access car
centre P parks
Report back Improve customer experience
. to Executive .
Impllemerlrt improvements and promote Budget required for a budget Head of March 2023 Improve car park quality
the identified car parks . Transport _
to implement Improve disabled access car
recommendations parks
Carry out a feasibility study with
First on options for Park & Ride sites _
to become multi-functional hubs, Subject to BSIP fundine ask Head of Improve customer experience
providing overnight parking for city funding bid & Transport

Improve car park quality

6G obed

PAGE



Recommendations and

Requirements to implement

Budget already

identified /

Funding Source

Action
Owner

Timescales
for delivery

Parking Review Obijectives

Electric Vehicle Charging Points

Budget required

Continue the roll out of the Electric
Vehicle charging strategy across the
council's car parks

® Union Terrace Hyper Hub (4
rapid and 4 ultra-rapid chargers
planned - 2022)

e Rawcliffe Bar P&R (50 planned -
2022)

e Poppleton Bar P&R (4 rapid and 4
ultra-rapid chargers planned —
by end of 2021)

e Bishopthorpe Rd (2 rapid planned
2022)

Already funded

Existing Transport
budget

Head of
Transport

2021-2023

Improve customer experience

09 abed

PAGE



Page 61

CCCCCCC

Annex 1 to the
Strategic Review of
Council Car Parking




Page 62

o

Contents
BOOThAM ROW ' .oovvvrerreresicicecnnrnensesssssssissssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssss o 3
CASTIE oottt 8
Coppergate MUILi=-SLOrEY ...eererrrssieerrrssssssmisssesssssssmssssssssssssssssssssees 12
ESPIANAAE oot 16
FOSSDANk MUMI=STOrEY oo 21
IMAIYEALE ooreerieevreresssssmieessess s 26
MONK BAF ot 31
INUNNEIY LANE ooverriireeermeeressssssesesssssmessssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssees 36
ST GEOGE'S FIEIA  oovvviivvrcrirresirresssirrssssnsssssrs s 41
UNION TEIMTACE it 46



Page 63

Car Park Profile: Bootham Row

Postcode YO30 7BP
On Bootham Row, off
Bootham, close to its
junction with Gillygate,
: half a mile from the city
Location

centre.
Marygate car park and
Union Terrace car park
in close proximity.

| £ YORK ‘

E00181 Bootham Row Car Park

Site Area (acres)

0.4 I

Aosett Propery Maragement —_|[

General Information:

Total Number of Spaces 72
Standard Spaces 58
Disabled Bays 8
EV charging spaces 6
Car Club Spaces 0
Coach Spaces 0
Tier Bays 2
Motorcycle Spaces 1
Toilets None
Season Tickets Available yes
Resident Contract Permit no
Accreditation yes
Operational Hours 24 hours
Type of Parking System (Pay and Pay & Display

Display or Pay on Exit)

Cash, card, and RinGo

Evening Parking?

yes - 6.00pm to 8.00pm £3.00
(or free with a minster badge)

Overnight parking yes
Maximum Stay no
Height restrictions no




Page 64

Parking Data:

Annual revenue generated per car
park

£339,000 per annum (2019/20)

Annual revenue per space

£4,400 per space (Q2 2019/20)

Are any of the spaces long term let
to businesses?

Yes - an area of the car park is
separated off on a long term
lease to BBC Radio York

What investment or improvements
would be need to provide a high
guality car park?

Pay and Exit, increased LED
lighting

Bootham Row Car Park Transactions and Income

40000

Transactions Income [\

A A

35000

30000 -

—

20000

A

15000

—
———

10000

2

5000 \ V\
0 T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T
Mmn Mm on < < < N [¥p] n O o O ~ ~ N o0 o0 o [e)] )] a O O O
— i i — — — — — — i — — — — — — — i — — — o (] (o]
o O o o o o o O O o o o o o O O o o o o o O o o
N N [\ N N N N N N (Q\ N N N N N (Q\ N N N N N
- s - - e - e - e - e - s e -
< 0 < o] ~N << 0 N < o) ~N < 0 < 0 < <] ~N < 0
o o - o o i o O - o O i o o — O O o o — O O

Bootham Row Car Park Income By Payment Means

400,000

W Income Phone £ MIncome Card £ ™ Income Cash £

350,000
300,000 l
250,000 I
200,000
150,000
100,000

50,000

0 w x x

T T T T

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21




Page 65

Transport Information:

Is this car park outside of, or accessed from

the inner ring road? Yes

Bootham Row car park is surrounded by mainly residential development. It
Is accessed of Bootham via a narrow access route.

The car park is well located for access to Gillygate shops, Exhibition
Square, the theatre, and entry to the footstreets via High Peter gate.

Current access for disabled users could be improved both on to Bootham
and Gillygate. Additional seating on the route in to the city centre is also
required to provide rest points. Although the car park does not have toilets,
there are public toilets on St Leonard’s Place on the route in to the
footstreets.

City Centre Access Route Assessment

e The carpark is located some 340 metres from the nearest point of
the Primary Shopping Area (by GIS assessed optimal walking route)
— the third closest car park to the PSA in the assessment.

e 6 existing seating facilities are provided, averaging 1 per 57 linear
metres, and representing the best level of provision of the assessed
car parks.

e The assessed route to the PSA is considered to be reasonably safe
at night, being largely well lit and populated, with the exception of the
immediate routes from the car park.

e Convenient and safe accessible crossings are provided to highway
crossings on the assessed route

e EXxisting footway condition on the assessed walking route is fair, with
grade 1 commensurate with the wider city, but a higher proportion at
grades 3 and 4, none is grade 5 (very poor):




Page 66

Annual (2020) Footway Condition Grade of Walking Route (%)

Bootham Row

Grade 1: Very Good,
Free from defects

Grade 2: Good,
Signs of surface wear

Grade 4: Poor, Grade 5: Very poor,
Functionally impaired Structurally impaired

Grade 3: Fair,
Mid life

e Further work (including engagement with disabled users) will
improve understanding of the quality of the routes, and help to define
improvements, including through lived experience input.

Property Information:

Does the site have
development
potential?

(Any development
would be subject to the
necessary
investigations and
consents)

There is potential for residential development on
the site, although this would be subject to the
rights of access detailed below. There have been
neighbouring residential schemes in recent
years. There could also be potential to retain the
ground floor car park, and develop apartments
above.

What known site
constraints are
there?

The site is surrounded by a mixture of
commercial premises (shops on Bootham) and
residential property. Council properties and BBC
have rights of access (part leased to BBC on a

short term lease) through part of the car park
which is adopted highway (runs through the
middle of the site). Within a conservation area.

Could the site
facilitate a smaller
footprint multi
storey?

No - The site is considered to be too constrained
to facilitate a multi-storey car park.

What is the potential
value of the site?

Between £1.5m and £2m (indicative value)




Page 67

Is there or has there Not for the whole site. There has been interest
been market interest from neighbouring developers for peripheral
in the site? areas.

EV Charging:

Number and type of

EV charging spaces 6 fast charge

Date of installation or

Apr-21
upgrade
Any planned future
upgrages Bootham Row has recently been upgraded - any

installation, including | further upgrades will be based on future demand
and timescales

Usage 30 charging events per space per month

Gross £92 per space per month + standard
parking revenue. Site Gross £6,624 per year.
Forecast 20% increase per year.

Revenue generation
per space?

Bootham Row car park is on the network of city centre car parks providing
overnight charging for residents without off street parking. The areas
served are dense terraced streets. No on street charge points can be

provided in these areas so provision for these residents is in long stay car

parks. This car park serves Guildhall and Clifton wards -
https://www.york.gov.uk/EVChargingStrategy



https://www.york.gov.uk/EVChargingStrategy

Page 68

Car Park

Profile: CosLe
Postcode YO1 9SA
Off Tower Street, to the rear of
Location Clifford's Tower in the city
centre
SIte Area 1. 6 ::&fvom(‘ E00182 Casti Cor Park 4
(acres) e =1
General Information:
Total Number of Spaces 302
Standard Spaces 280
Disabled Bays 20
EV charging spaces 2
Car Club Spaces 0
Coach Spaces 0
Tier Bays 0
Motorcycle Spaces 0

Toilets

There are no toilets in Castle car park, but
there are public toilets adjacent on Castle
Walk, including an accessible toilet

Season Tickets Available yes
Resident Contract Permit no
Accreditation yes
Operational Hours 24 hour
Type of Parking System (Pay Pay & Display

and Display or Pay on Exit)

Cash, card, RingGo

Evening Parking?

Yes — 6.00pm - 8.00pm £3.00 charge (or free
with a minster badge)

Overnight parking yes
Maximum Stay no
Height restrictions no




Page 69

Parking Data:

Annual revenue generated per car park

£1,624,000 per annum (2019/20)

Annual revenue per space

£5,100 per space (Q2 2019/20)

Are any of the spaces long term let to
businesses?

No

Castle Car Park Transactions and Income

140000
- Transactions - |ncome
120000 Aj\/j\ A A A |
AW WA L A N L
A S ARAT AV
80000 \// V
60000
40000
20000 -
0 T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T
(9] ™ (0] < < <t n n wn (o] [(e] [(e] N~ N~ ~ 0 0 0 [e)] [e)] [e)] o o o
— — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — - — — — — o o o
O O O O O O O O O O O 0O 0O O o o o o o o o o o o
N (9] (] o~ N N N N N o~ N o~ N N N N (9] (9] N N N N N N
B e - T e e T T T S
<t 00 N < 0 N S 0 N 00 N S 00 N S 00 NS o0 N < 00N
o o — o o — o o — o o — o o — o o — o o — o o —
Castle Car Park Income By Payment Means
1,400,000

® Income Phone £ ™ Income Card £

H Income Cash £

1,200,000 l
1,000,000
800,000
600,000
400,000 -
200,000
0 T T T T T T T

2013/14  2014/15  2015/16  2016/17

2017/18  2018/19  2019/20  2020/21




Page 70

Transport Information:

Is this car park outside of, or accessed from
the inner ring road?

Yes

Castle car park is accessed off Tower Street to the rear of Cliffords Tower and
gives good local access to the footstreets area and city centre amenities.

Current access for disabled users could be improved through surface conditions

improvement and additional dropped kerb provision at key locations, improved

accessible parking bay layout, and enhanced signage provision. All of the above
noting that in the longer term the plans are to repurpose this space.

City Centre Access Route Assessment

e The carpark is located some 50 metres from the nearest point of the
Primary Shopping Area (by GIS assessed optimal walking route) — the
second closest car park to the PSA in the assessment.

e No existing seating facilities are provided to the assessed route.

e The assessed route to the PSA is considered to be slightly unsafe at night,
an initial component being on the less well lit and populated Castlegate.
e Convenient and safe accessible crossings are provided to highway

crossings on the assessed route

e Existing footway condition on the assessed walking route is fair, due to it
being a very short route, all of the footway is graded as 3: Fair. None is

grade 5 (very poor):

Annual (2020) Footway Condition Grade of Walki

ng Route (%)

Grade 1: Very Good, Grade 2: Good, Grade 3: Fair, Grade 4: Poor,

100%

Grade 5: Very poor,

Free from defects Signs of surface wear Mid life Functionally impaired Structurally impaired

10




Page 71

e Further work (including engagement with disabled users) could improve
understanding of the quality of the routes, and help to define
improvements in the short term, including through lived experience input.

Property Information:

No, due to the heritage significance of

Does the site have development the area, this site is unlikely to be
potential? developed out in its entirety.
(Any development would be subject to The Castle Gateway masterplan,
the necessary investigations and approved by the Executive in 2018
consents) identifies the site as an area of world

class public realm and event space.

Bounded by Clifford's Tower, Castle

What known site constraints are Museum, Coppergate Shopping Centre
there? and River Foss. In close proximity to

flood zones from River Foss and Ouse.

Unlikely to secure planning for a multi-
storey car park due to the historical
significance of the site.

Could the site facilitate a smaller
footprint multi storey?

What is the potential value of the site? Less than £1.5m per acre
Is there or has there been market No
interest in the site?
EV Charging:
Number and type of EV charging spaces 2 fast chargers
Date of installation or upgrade 2013

Due to the car park being identified for
closure to facilitate the creation of
new event space and public realm,

there are no planned upgrades to the

EV provision.

Any planned future upgrages
installation, including and timescales

Usage n/a

Revenue generation per space? n/a

1"




Page 72

(f:a;roﬁfgzk Coppergate Multi-Storey
Postcode YO1 9NX
On Piccadilly in the city
centre.
Location Castle and St George’s
Field pars are in close
proximity.
Site Area 11
(acres)
}.ifyog'K‘ 00175 Picadil Ml Store Car Park
— sset & Property Management I~ |
General Information:
Total Number of Spaces 276
Standard Spaces 248
Disabled Bays 18
EV charging spaces 10
Car Club Spaces 0
Coach Spaces 0
Tier Bays 0
Motorcycle Spaces 0
Toilets Tollets are provided in the shopping
centre
Season Tickets Available yes
Resident Contract Permit no
Accreditation yes
Operational Hours 8.00am — 9.00pm
Type of Parking System (Pay Pay & Exit
and Display or Pay on Exit) Cash, card and RingGo
Up to 8.30pm as car park closes at 9pm
Evening Parking 6.00pm to 8.00pm £3.00 (of free with a
minster badge)
Overnight parking Yes — but cars will be locked in

12




Maximum Stay

Page 73

no

Height restrictions

yes

Parking Data:

Annual revenue generated per

car park

£682,000 per annum (2019/20)

Annual revenue per space

£2,900 per space (Q2 2019/20)

Are any of the spaces long term

let to businesses?

leased from City of York Council

Shopmobility have their own spaces

What investment or

improvements would be needed improve quality of the car park.

to provide a high quality car

park?

required. Increased LED lighting

Cosmetic improvements required to

Improved LED lighting and CCTV also

Piccadilly Car Park Transactions and Income

90000

- Transactions

——|ncome

80000

70000

A

A

60000

TR W VAR A
A | DA

§>

50000 /\
40000 ’\/\/ \\/‘ / A\
VWi /I NV

30000

20000

#

>
>
>

4

10000

3
5
|
|
<
2

04/2013

08/2013 |
12/2013
04/2014 |
08/2014
12/2014
04/2015 7

08/2015 |
12/2015 |
04/2016 |
08/2016 |
12/2016 |
04/2017
08/2017 |
12/2017
04/2018 |
08/2018 |
12/2018 |
04/2019 |
08/2019 |
12/2019
08/2020 |

12/2020 |

Piccadilly Car Park Income By Payment Means

800,000

 Income Phone £ M Income Card £ M Income Cash £

700,000

600,000

500,000

400,000

300,000

200,000

100,000

0

T T

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21

lll*
" EE




Page 74

Transport Information:

Is this car park outside of, or

: ; No
accessed from the inner ring road?

Coppergate multi-storey car park is built in to the Coppergate Shopping
centre, accessed from Piccadilly. It is surrounded by predominantly
commercial uses with some residential in the area.

The car park is in the city centre in close proximity to the main footstreet
area, as well as a number of cultural attractions including Castle Museum,
Clifford’s Tower, the Jorvik Viking Centre and Fairfax House.

Due to its location in the city centre and close proximity to a range of
destinations, the Coppergate carpark is well placed to provide disabled
access in to the city centre. However, current access routes from the car
park do require improvement to enable more people to use this car park,
particularly those with mobility issues. The improvements identified include
increasing the provision of dropped kerbs, additional seating on the routes
in to the city centre (Piccadilly and Coppergate). As the car park is a multi-
storey, without ground floor parking, those with mobility issues are reliant
on the lift for access.

City Centre Access Route Assessment

e The carpark is located within the Primary Shopping Area - the
closest to the PSA across the assessed car parks.

e Existing seating facilities were not assessed, since the car park is
within the PSA.

e The safety of the location was not assessed, since the car park is
within the PSA.

e Highway crossings were not assessed, since the car park is within
the PSA.

e EXxisting footway condition was not assessed, since the car park is
within the PSA

e Further work (including engagement with disabled users) will
improve understanding of the quality of the location, and help to
define improvements, including through lived experience input.

Property Information:

14




Does the site have

be subject to the

and consents)

development potential?
(Any development would

necessary investigations

Page 75

This car park does have the potential for
development, however due to it being
physically located within the Coppergate
Centre, incorporating both built forms would
need to be considered, requiring a holistic
scheme.

What known site
constraints are there?

This car park is integral to the Coppergate
Centre. The Council’s lease is limited to that
of the car park, so future development would
be tied to the commercial lease arrangements

of the Coppergate Centre.
The car park is located on the edge of the
River Foss.

Could the site facilitate
a smaller footprint
multi storey?

Yes - The site could facilitate a smaller
footprint multi storey, subject to the
development of a wider scheme that
incorporated the Coppergate Centre. This
would be subject to planning approval.

What is the potential
value of the site?

As the council is a leaseholder for the
property, there is no land value to the council.

Is there or has there
been market interest in
the site?

There has been interest in people looking to
invest in the Coppergate Centre.

EV Charging:

Number and type of EV
charging spaces

None - Coppergate car park is not currently
part of the city’s strategy for the provision of

EV charging.
Date of installation or
n/a
upgrade
Any planned future
upgrades installation,
: . No
including and
timescales
Usage n/a
Revenue generation
n/a
per space?

15



Page 76

Car Park Profile: Esplanade
Postcode YO26 4ZP
West Esplanade,
Location within 10 mins
walking distance of
city centre
Site Area (acres) 0.7

\x\

ol
) YORK

E00021 Esplanade Car Park

| e Asset & Property Management

General Information:

Total Number of Spaces 80
Standard Spaces 75
Disabled Bays 5

EV charging spaces 0
Car Club Spaces 0
Coach Spaces 0

Tier Bays 0
Motorcycle Spaces 0

There are no toilets in Esplanade car

Toilets park
Season Tickets Available yes
Resident Contract Permit no
Accreditation yes
Operational Hours 24 hours
Type of Parking System (Pay Pay & Display

and Display or Pay on Exit)

Cash, card, RingGo

Evening Parking?

yes - after 6.00pm £3.00 charge (or free
with a minster badge)

Overnight parking yes
Maximum Stay no
Height restrictions yes

16




Page 77

Parking Data:

Annual revenue generated per car

park £153,000 per annum (2019/20)

Annual revenue per space £2,200 per space (Q2 2019/20)

Are any of the spaces long term let Yes — Some used by City of York

to businesses? Council

Esplanade Car Park Transactions and Income

25000

- Transactions —|ncome

A

|

—

A
.JWUM WY \VN

|
\"\\/‘v“v IV

E

10000

5000

T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T
Mn o n N S < NN o in 0w O NN N N O O 0O OO O O O O
— i — — — — — — i — i — i — — — — i — i — o o o
O O O O O O O O 0O 0O o oo oo oo oo o o o o o
(9] o~ o (9] o~ (] o~ o o~ (] (9] o~ (9] o (] o~ o o~ (] o~ (9] (] o~ (9]
B T T T e T - e T - e - e e e
< 0 AN 00 NS 00O NS 00 NS 0 NS 00N S 0 NS o0 0N
O O +H O O 1 O O 4 O O W O O+ O 0O+ O o d o o -
Esplanade Car Park Income By Payment Means
250,000
© Income Phone £ M Income Card £ M Income Cash £
200,000
I 0
150,000

100,000

50,000 -

° (o]
(]
()
(o]
o
(o]
0 l
° ()
(o]
o
()
T T T T T T

T

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21

17




Page 78

Transport Information:

Is this car park outside of, or

: i Yes
accessed from the inner ring road?

Esplanade car park is accessed from Station Rise/ Leeman Road via a
short unadopted stretch of highway adjacent to Westgate Apartments and
the riverside War Memorial Garden.

The car park is well located for access to the riverside, memorial gardens
and Scarborough Bridge, though is a little distant from the core city centre
and its facilities and amenities.

Current access for disabled users could be improved by improving
access to the car park by removing steps, creating access routes to
surrounding footway network, and providing seating to routes to the city
centre. Although the car park does not have toilets, there are accessible
public facilities at the rail station (accepting this requires travelling away
from the city centre), and Rougier Street.

City Centre Access Route Assessment

e The carpark is located some 450 metres from the nearest point of
the Primary Shopping Area (by GIS assessed optimal walking
route) — middling in terms of proximity to the PSA across the
assessed car parks.

e 4 existing seating facilities are provided to the assessed route,
representing a theoretical 112m on average per seating facility —
toward the middle of the assessed suite of car parks

e The assessed route to the PSA is considered to be reasonably
safe at night, the majority of the route being well lit and populated
beyond the initial link to Station Rise.

e Convenient and safe accessible crossings are provided to highway
crossings on the assessed route

e EXxisting footway condition on the assessed walking route is good,
with almost half being grade 1: Very Good, and half Grade 3: Fair.
None is grade 5 (very poor):

18




Page 79

Annual (2020) Footway Condition Grade of Walking Route (%)

Esplanade

Grade 1: Very Good, Grade 2: Good,

Free from defects Signs of surface wear

Grade 3: Fair, Grade 4: Poor, Grade 5: Very poor,
Mid life Functionally impaired Structurally impaired

e Further work (including engagement with disabled users) will
improve understanding of the quality of the routes, and help to
define improvements, including through lived experience input.

Property Information:

Does the site have
development potential?
(Any development would be
subject to the necessary
investigations and consents)

This site does have development
potential if it formed part of a wider
proposal with any future plans for the
Royal Malil site.

However, this site has a number of site
constraints as identified below.

What known site constraints
are there?

Car park is within the active flood plain
and not protected by flood defences.
Positioned between river and Royal

Mail buildings. Royal Mail have a right

of way across the site. Long and
narrow site. Within Conservation Area.
Presence of Westgate apartments
would necessitate in rights of light
being reserved in any development on
this site prohibiting comprehensive
development of such. However, if the
neighbouring Royal Mail site was
redeveloped, this could form part of a
wider scheme.

19



Could the site facilitate a
smaller footprint multi

Page 80

No — given the site constraints above

storey?
What is the potential value of Less than £1.5m per acre (indicative
the site? value)
Is there or has there been No

market interest in the site?

EV Charging:
Number and type of EV There are no EV charge points located
charging spaces in Esplanade car park.
Date of installation or n/a
upgrade
Any planned future upgrades
installation, including and n/a
timescales
Usage n/a
Revenue generation per
n/a
space?

20



Page 81

Car Park Profile:

Fossbank Multi-Storey

Postcode YO31 7PL
At the junction of Foss Bank
Location and Jc'ewbu'ry, within 10 m{'ns
walking distance of the city
centre
Site Area (acres) 1.7 [JBvoRK| | eomos ook s st r‘ ‘
General Information:
Total Number of Spaces 320
Standard Spaces 316
Disabled Bays 4
EV charging spaces 0
Car Club Spaces 0
Coach Spaces 0
Tier Bays 0
Motorcycle Spaces 1
Toilets There are no toilets in Foss Bank car park
Season Tickets Available yes
Resident Contract Permit no
Accreditation yes
Operational Hours 8.00am - 8.00pm
Type of Parking System (Pay and Pay & Display

Display or Pay on Exit)

Cash, card, RingGo

Evening Parking?

Until 8.00pm £3.00 charge (or free with a
minster badge)

Overnight parking

Yes — but key fob required to access after 8pm

Maximum Stay

yes

Height restrictions

yes

21




Page 82

Parking Data:

Annual revenue generated per car park

£320,000 per annum (2019/20)

Annual revenue per space

£1,100 per space (Q2 2019/20)

% revenue generation per payment method:

Cash, card, ringo

See graphs below (2013-2021)

Are any of the spaces long term let to

. Yes
businesses?

What investment or improvements would be
need to provide a high quality car park?

CCTV.

Pay & Exit, cosmetic improvements to
improve quality of setting, improved LED
lighting and provision of more extensive

45000
40000
35000
30000
25000
20000
15000
10000

5000

Foss Bank Car Park Transactions and Income

Transactions Income
A L ] N
\va-/»f/\_,~\/—\,_\ A ||
T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T

o™ m m < < < n n n o [(e} (o] ~ ~ ~ (o] [ee] [ce] [e)] [e)} o] o o o
i i i — R R o) D) —l —l — R R —l — —l — R R R i [a\] o N
o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o
o o o o o~ o o o o o o~ (] o o o o o~ o~ o o o o o~ o~
S~ S~ S~ S~~~ S~ S~ S~ S~ S~ S~~~ S~ S~ S~ S~ S~ S~~~ S~ S~ S~ S~ S~ S~~~ S~ S~
< o0 (o] < o) (o] < o0 (o] < ] o~ < o0 (o] < o] o~ < 9] (g\] < o] (o]
o o i o o — o o — o o — o o — o o — o o — o o —

22




Page 83

Foss Bank Car Park Income By Payment Means

450,000
M Income Phone £ M Income Card £ M Income Cash £
400,000

350,000 -~ l
300,000 -~

250,000 -+

200,000 -~

150,000 -

100,000 -

50,000 l:
0 T T T T T T T

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21

Transport Information:

Is this car park outside of, or accessed

. . Yes
from the inner ring road?

Foss Bank Multi-Storey car park is accessed directly from the Inner Ring
Road at the junction of Foss Bank & Jewbury.

The car park is quite peripheral, and severed from the footstreets core,
but provides access into the minster quarter and independent retail via
Goodramgate.

Access for disabled users from Fossbank is extremely challenging.
Provision of benches on the route into the city centre would have some
beneficial impact.

City Centre Access Route Assessment
e The carpark is located some 380 metres from the nearest point of
the Primary Shopping Area (by GIS assessed optimal walking route)
— middling in terms of accessing the PSA across the assessed car
parks.

23



Page 84

e No existing seating facilities are currently provided to the assessed
route.

e The assessed route to the PSA is considered to be reasonably safe
at night, the route being well lit but initial elements to the Inner
Ring Road less well populated by pedestrians than other parts of
the City.

e Convenient and safe accessible crossings are provided to highway
crossings on the assessed route

e Existing footway condition on the assessed walking route is good,
with a significant proportion being grade 1: Very Good or 2: Good,
and less than average at grades 3 or 4. None is grade 5 (very poor):

Annual (2020) Footway Condition Grade of Walking Route (%)

rosshan -
Total City (items) .

Grade 1: Very Good, Grade 2: Good, Grade 3: Fair, Grade 4: Poor, Grade 5: Very poor,
Free from defects Signs of surface wear Mid life Functionally impaired Structurally impaired

e Further work (including engagement with disabled users) could
improve understanding of the quality of the routes, and help to
define improvements, including through lived experience input.

Property Information:

Does the site have
development potential?
(Any development would

be subject to the
necessary investigations
and consents)

Yes — this site has development potential. The
site would be suitable for residential or
commercial. The scale of scheme could

depend on the neighbouring sites and any
proposals coming forward.

24



What known site
constraints are there?

Page 85

CYC has a long leasehold interest only limited
to the use of the car park so we ourselves
cannot redevelop. Adjoins Sainsbury's site.

Built on a Jewish burial ground.

Could the site facilitate a
smaller footprint multi
storey?

This car park is already a multi storey.

What is the potential
value of the site?

As noted above, we do not have an
unencumbered freehold to the site which
would allow the Council to dispose.

Is there or has there

been market interest in Yes
the site?
EV Charging:
Number and type of EV There are no public use EV charge points

charging spaces

located in Fossbank car park. There are 4 fast
chargers for City of York Council Fleet only.

Date of installation or

n/a
upgrade /
Any planned future
upgrages installation, n/a
including and timescales
Usage n/a
Revenue generation per
8 P n/a

space?

25



Page 86

Car Park Profile: Marygate
Postcode YO30 7DT
Frederic Street, off
Marygate, within 10 mins
: walking distance of the
Location .
city centre.
Bootham Row car park
IS in close proximity.
Site Area (acres) 2.3 voix] S &
<18 Property Manageme I |

General Information:

Total Number of Spaces 339
Standard Spaces 312
Disabled Bays 11
EV charging spaces 16
Car Club Spaces 0
Coach Spaces 0
Tier Bays 1
Motorcycle Spaces 0
Toilets None
Season Tickets Available yes
Resident Contract Permit yes
Accreditation yes
Operational Hours 24 hours
Type of Parking System (Pay Pay & Exit

and Display or Pay on Exit)

Cash, card, RinGo

Evening Parking

yes - 6.00pm to 8.00pm £3.00 (or free
with a minster badge)

Overnight parking yes
Maximum Stay no
Height restrictions yes

26




Page 87

Parking Data:

Annual revenu;greknerated per car £654,000 per annum (2019/20)

Annual revenue per space £2,000 per space (Q2 2019/20)

Are any of the spaces long term let

) No
to businesses?

What investment or improvements
would be needed to provide a high
guality car park?

Increased LED lighting and
pedestrian permeability

Marygate Car Park Transactions and Income

o |
o000 -\ M Al Al
sooo0 N VL AN M MUAA
40000 V V\A A./ V\'f \A
30000 V\\ / V\

20000

I
10000 NA_~an I\\I N MAI\I‘A

- Transaction —— |ncome

-

—_—

'\ —\
0 T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T
N o on N < S < NN o n 0wwVWOW N NN 0 0O 0 OO0 ) O O O
I 94 4 d4 9 o4 94 4 d4 9 94 94 4 4 94 94 494 94 4 4 4 & &
O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O o o o o o o o o
N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N
<t 0 NS 0 NS 0 NS 0 NS 0N S 00N S 0N S 0 N
O O 4 O O 41 O O 4 O O 4 O O 4 O O 4 o o «+€ o o -

Marygate Car Park Income By Payment Means

800,000
® Income Phone £ M Income Cardf£ ™ Income Cash £

700,000

600,000

500,000 7 |

400,000

300,000

200,000 -

100,000

O T T T T T T
2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21

T

27



Page 88

Transport Information:

Is this car park outside of, or
accessed from the inner ring Yes
road?

Marygate car park is surrounded by mainly residential development,
with access to the car park being via a narrow residential street.

The car park is well located for access to Museum Gardens, the
riverside and on to the city centre. The car park is also well located to
access Scarborough bridge, the Railway Station beyond, and the
forthcoming York Central development.

Marygate car park is too remote from the city centre to be a primary car
park for disabled access to the city centre. However, recent
iImprovements to the car park layout and surfacing provide a good
quality accessible parking for those for whom distance is less of an
issue.

Current access from the car park does require improvement to enable
more people to use this car park, particularly those with mobility issues.
The improvements identified include increasing the provision of
dropped kerbs, additional seating on the route in to the city centre, and
better pedestrian permeability out of the car park.

Marygate car park does not have toilets. The nearest toilets would be
the train station, or the public toilets on St Leonard’s Place.

City Centre Access Assessment

e The carpark is located some 750 metres from the nearest point of
the Primary Shopping Area (by GIS assessed optimal walking
route) — the most distant car park to the PSA in the assessment.
More direct routes along the riverside and through Museum
Gardens would reduce this to 463m, making it one of the more
proximate car parks in the assessment, though these routes are
not accessible to all users and at all times of the day and year.

e 7 existing seating facilities are provided to the assessed route,
averaging 1 per 107 linear metres, and representing a
reasonable level of theoretical provision when assessed relatively
across the suite of car parks.

e The assessed route to the PSA is considered to be slightly
unsafe at night, a large portion being on the less well lit and

28




Page 89

populated Marygate, though the rest is largely well lit and
populated.

e Convenient and safe accessible crossings are provided to
highway crossings on the assessed route

e EXxisting footway condition on the assessed walking route is fair,
with the proportion at grade 1 commensurate with the wider city,
but a higher proportion at grades 3 and 4. None is grade 5 (very

poor):
Annual (2020) Footway Condition Grade of Walking Route (%)
- —
1 E
1 408 i
Grade 1: Very Good, Grade 2: Good, Grade 3: Fair, Grade 4: Poor, Grade 5: Very poor,

Free from defects Signs of surface wear Mid life Functionally impaired Structurally impaired

e Further work (including engagement with disabled users) will
improve understanding of the quality of the routes, and help to
define improvements, including through lived experience input.

Property Information:

Does the site have Prime residential development site. Given
development the size of the site a scheme could

potential? incorporate part green space, shop mobility

(Any development and facilities. Given proximity of York St
would be subject to the | Johns, would likely appeal to developers of
necessary student accommodation. Other commercial
investigations and uses could be accommodated but unlikely to
consents) attain the values of residential development.

29




What known site
constraints are there?

Page 90

Car park is within flood zone 2/3. In close
proximity to the train line which runs along
the back of the site. Within a residential area
- buildings to three sides, differing
heights/scale of property. Other nearby
streets are restricted residents permit
parking. Used by Shoppers, tourists (day
and night) - theatre goers. The largest CYC
city centre car park. High value residential
area. The site is in a Conservation area.

Could the site
facilitate a smaller
footprint multi storey?

Yes - The site could facilitate a smaller
footprint multi storey. This would be subject
to planning approval.

What is the potential
value of the site?

Between £1.5m and £2.5m (indicative value)

Is there or has there
been market interest
in the site?

Not in recent times.

EV Charging:

Number and type of
EV charging spaces

18 fast charge

Date of installation or
upgrade

Summer-21

Any planned future
upgrages installation,
including and
timescales

Marygate has recently been upgraded - any
further upgrades will be based on future
demand

Usage

This is a new site - usage information is not
yet available.

Revenue generation
per space?

Forecast revenue is Gross £92 per Fast
space per month + standard parking
revenue. Site Gross £19,872 per year.
Forecast 20% increase per year.

Marygate car park is one of the network of city centre car parks
providing overnight charging for residents without off street parking.
The areas served are dense terraced streets. No on street charge
points can be provided in these areas so provision for these residents
IS in long stay car parks. This car park serves Guildhall, Clifton, Holgate
and Micklegate wards - hitps://www.york.gov.uk/EVChargingStrategy

30



https://www.york.gov.uk/EVChargingStrategy

Page 91

Car Park Profile: Monk Bar
Postcode YO31 7QR
St John's Street, off Lord Mayor's
Walk, close to Monk Bar
Location

Foss Bank and Union Terrace car
parks are in close proximity..

Site Area (acres)

1.5

s, |
& YORK E00192 Monk Bar Car Park <~
Pt ]

ropety Management

General Information:

Total Number of Spaces 214

Standard Spaces 194
Disabled Bays 8

EV charging spaces 12
Car Club Spaces 0
Coach Spaces 0
Tier Bays 0
Motorcycle Spaces 1

Toilets There are no toilets Monk Bar car park.
Season Tickets Available yes
Resident Contract Permit yes
Accreditation yes
Operational Hours 24 hours
Type of Parking System (Pay and Pay & Display

Display or Pay on Exit)

Cash, card & RingGo

Evening Parking?

yes - after 6.00pm £3.00 charge (or free
with a minster badge)

Overnight parking yes
Maximum Stay no
Height restrictions yes

31




Page 92

Parking Data:
Annual revenue generated per car park £522,000 per annum (2019/20)
Annual revenue per space £2,200 per space (Q2 2019/20)
Are any of the spaces long term let to
. No
businesses?
What investment or improvements would be Pay & Exit, resurfacing and re-lining of bays,
needed to provide a high quality car park? Increased LED lighting

Monk Bar Car Park Transactions and Income

-~ Transactions = |ncome
60000 A i

50000 /\ /\
0 T N N N VAPV,
NS4 ISOYAISYNA POV APVEA VAl A

70000

VAS Vv

20000 BE
10000 - -
0 T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T
(42} m ™M < <t < wn n LN (Vo] (e} o ~ M~ ~ [ee] o0 0 (o)) ()} (o)) o o o

— — — - - i — - — - — - — - - — - — - - — [} [} N

O O O O O O O O O O O o o o o o o o o o o o o o

oN N N N N N N N N N oN N N N N oN N N N N N N N N

B T T U S S S T > T s - s s -

< [e] N < o) N < o) o~ < o] N < (o] N < v} N < v} N < o) (o)

O O 4 O O 4 O O 4 O o d4 O o +€H o o €4 o o +€H o o -

Monk Bar Car Park Income By Payment Means

600,000
W Income Phone £ MIncome Card£ M Income Cash £

500,000

400,000
300,000
1 ()
200,000
100,000
0 T T T T T T T

2013/14  2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21

32



Page 93

Transport Information:

Is this car park outside of, or accessed from

. . Yes
the inner ring road?

Monk Bar car park is located off Lord Mayor’s Walk, with vehicular access via a
narrow route through a residential area.

Monk bar car park is located just outside the inner ring road to the north of the city
centre. The car park is a short distance from the edge of the footstreets.

The pedestrian route from the car park requires improvement to be more
accessible. This includes seating for rest points, widening of pedestrian access and
the route, removing barriers in the route and providing additional drop kerbs.
Improvements along Monkgate and Goodramgate would also be required to ensure
a fully accessible route through to the footstreets.

City Centre Access Route Assessment

e The carpark is located some 300 metres from the nearest point of the
Primary Shopping Area (by GIS assessed optimal walking route) — the third
closest to the PSA across the assessed car parks.

e No existing seating facilities are currently provided to the assessed route.

e The assessed route to the PSA is considered to be reasonably safe at night,
the majority of the route being well lit and populated, with the exception of
very initial links to the inner ring road.

e Convenient and safe accessible crossings are provided to highway crossings
on the assessed route

e Existing footway condition on the assessed walking route is reasonably fair,
with the majority rated at grade 3: Fair, and a higher proportion than average
(around 16%) at grade 4: Poor. None is grade 5 (very poor):

33




Page 94

Annual (2020) Footway Condition Grade of Walking Route (%)

Total City (items) .

Grade 1: Very Good, Grade 2: Good, Grade 3: Fair, Grade 4: Poor, Grade 5: Very poor,
Free from defects Signs of surface wear Mid life Functionally impaired Structurally impaired

e Further work (including engagement with disabled users) will improve
understanding of the quality of the routes, and help to define improvements,
including through lived experience input.

Property Information:

Yes, this site has development potential, particularly
residential as it is mostly surrounded by residential uses
currently.

Given close proximity of York St Johns, this site would
also likely appeal to developers of student
accommodation.

Adjacent Government uses could potentially be brought
into a larger scheme but the presence of St Wilfrid's
primary school would possibly limit this and have to be
taken into account. The area was formerly residential
but was cleared as part of slum clearance.

Does the site have
development potential?
(Any development would

be subject to the
necessary investigations
and consents)

Accessed via John Street, a narrow residential road.
What known site Residential property to two sides. Former slum
constraints are there? clearance site. Primary School, DWP building and NHS

health centre adjacent. Edge of Conservation Area.

Could the site facilitate a
smaller footprint multi
storey?

Potentially — although would require further
investigation given tight access constraints and

34




Page 95

proximity of other buildings. This would also be subject
to planning approval.

What is the potential
value of the site?

Between £1.5m and £1.5m per acre (indicative value)

Is there or has there

been market interest in No
the site?
EV Charging:
Number and type of EV 12 fast charge

charging spaces

Date of installation or
upgrade

Installed Autumn 2021

Any planned future
upgrages installation,
including and timescales

Installation currently in process, any future upgrades
based on demand

Usage

Information is not yet available.

Revenue generation per
space?

Forecast revenue is Gross £92 per Fast space per month
+ standard parking revenue. Site Gross £13,248 per
year. Forecast 20% increase per year.

This car park is one of the network of City centre car parks providing overnight
charging for residents without off street parking. The areas served are dense
terraced streets. No on-street charge points can be provided in these areas so
provision for these residents is in long stay car parks. This car park serves Guildhall,
Heworth and Clifton wards - https://www.york.gov.uk/EVChargingStrategy

35



https://www.york.gov.uk/EVChargingStrategy

Page 96

Car Park Nunnery Lane
Profile: y
Postcode YO23 1AA

On Nunnery Lane, close to its || N
Location junction with Blossom Street
and Micklegate Bar. IR

Site Area
(acres)

1 . 2 ‘ ;E‘YD.RK ‘ E00042 Nunnery Lane Car Park H o |
Yo !
sset 8 Propery

3
i

&

AAAAAAAA e [ |

General Information:

Total Number of Spaces 171
Standard Spaces 139
Disabled Bays 12
EV charging spaces 20
Car Club Spaces 12
Coach Spaces 0
Tier Bays 1
Motorcycle Spaces 3

There are toilets in Nunnery Lane car park,

Toilets including an accessible toilet
Season Tickets Available yes
Resident Contract Permit yes
Accreditation yes
Operational Hours 24 hours
Type of Parking System (Pay Pay & Display

and Display or Pay on Exit)

Cash, card & RingGo

Evening Parking?

yes - after 6.00pm £3.00 charge (or free
with a minster badge)

Overnight parking yes
Maximum Stay no
Height restrictions yes

36




Page 97

Parking Data:

Annual revenue generated per car
park

£464,000 per annum (2019/20)

Annual revenue per space

£2,700 per space (Q2 2019/20)

Are any of the spaces long term
let to businesses?

Yes — to City Car Club

What investment or improvements
would be needed to provide a
high quality car park?

Pay & Exit, re-lining and re-
configuration of bays e.g. herringbone
design to improve vehicle access,
Increased LED lighting

Nunnery Lane Car Park Transactions and Income

60000
———Transactions

—|ncome

50000

40000

30000

A A AMo——Arr—AAM A AN
A/L\V/V‘“\vﬂ VYRRV

|

20000

10000

o
|t
—_—

T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T
Mm n N < s s NN o n W wWOW N N N OO 0O OO OO OO O O O
— — — — — — — i — — — — i — i — — — — i — o o o
O O O O O O O O O O O O 0O O O 0o o o o o o o o o
o N o N (o)l o (o)l o N (9] o (o)l o ()l ()] o (o)l o (o)l o N (o)l o (gl
B s T e e e R N T N
<t 00 N 00 N 00 N 00 NS 00 NS 00 NS 00N < 0N
O O «+« O O «« O O «« O O «« O O « O O «« O O «H O O «—
Nunnery Lane Car Park Income By Payment Means
600,000
W Income Phone £ ®WIncome Card £ M Income Cash £
500,000

|

400,000

300,000

|

200,000

|

100,000

|

T

0 - T
2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

T

2016/17

T T T T

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21

37




Page 98

Transport Information:

Is this car park outside of, or
accessed from the inner ring Yes
road?

Nunnery Lane car park just inside the inner ring road, accessed of
Nunnery Lane.

The car park is well located for access to commercial uses and services on
Micklegate and Blossom Street, but is some distance from the core city
centre, and the Micklegate route has a significant incline.

The topography of Micklegate will render the car park less useful as a hub
for accessing the city centre for some disabled users. Additional seating on
the route to the city could provide rest points. The car park has toilets,
including an accessible toilet, but provision could be improved further.

City Centre Access Route Assessment

e The carpark is located some 650 metres from the nearest point of
the Primary Shopping Area (by GIS assessed optimal walking route)
— the second most distant from the PSA across the assessed car
parks.

e 1 existing seating facility is currently provided to the assessed route -
a low level of provision.

e The assessed route to the PSA is considered to be reasonably safe
at night, the majority of the route being well lit and populated. The
topography of the route is adverse to some user groups.

e Convenient and safe accessible crossings are provided to highway
crossings on the assessed route

e EXxisting footway condition on the assessed walking route is fair, with
the majority rated at grade 3: Fair, and a higher proportion than
average at grade 1: Very Good. None is grade 5 (very poor):

38




Page 99

Annual (2020) Footway Condition Grade of Walking Route (%)

Nunnery Lane

Grade 4: Poor, Grade 5: Very poor,

Grade 3: Fair,
Functionally impaired Structurally impaired

Grade 1: Very Good, Grade 2: Good,
Mid life

Free from defects Signs of surface wear
Further work (including engagement with disabled users) will
improve understanding of the quality of the routes, and help to define
improvements, including through lived experience input.

Property Information:

Does the site have No, this site is unlikely to be developed
development potential? as the car park currently provides an
(Any development would be | open vista of the City Walls. A scheme is

subject to the necessary unlikely to secure planning due to the
investigations and consents) heritage impact.

Only CYC car park to the west of the city
centre within Inner Ring Road. On a long,
thin and sloping site. Directly adjoins
Scheduled Ancient Monument. Within a
conservation area in a very prominent
location.

What known site constraints
are there?

Could the site facilitate a

smaller footprint multi No — given the proximity to the City Walls

storey?
What is the potential value of Less than £1.5m per acre (indicative
the site? value)
Is there or has there been No

market interest in the site?

EV Charging:

39



Number and type of EV
charging spaces

Page 100

For public use - 4 Fast and 1 Rapid
chargers

For use by the Car Club - 6 fast charge

Date of installation or
upgrade

Installed Autumn 2021

Any planned future
upgrages installation,
including and timescales

Installation currently in process, any
future upgrades based on demand

Usage

Well used and provides City Centre
Rapid which is strategically important

Revenue generation per
space?

Forecast revenue is Gross £92 per Fast
space per month + standard parking
revenue. Site Gross £13,140 per year inc
Rapid. Forecast 20% increase per year.

This car park is one of the network of City centre car parks providing
overnight charging for residents without off street parking. The areas
served are dense terraced streets. No on-street charge points can be
provided in these areas so provision for these residents is in long stay car
parks. This car park serves Micklegate, Fishergate, Holgate, Guildhall and
Clifton wards. The Rapid charger is strategically important providing Rapid
charging for residents in the City Centre area -
https://www.york.gov.uk/EVChargingStrategy

40



https://www.york.gov.uk/EVChargingStrategy

Page 101

Car Park Profile: St George’s Field
Postcode YO10 4AB
St George's Field car park and
Location coach park, between the Foss

and the Ouse, off Tower Street

Site Area (acres) 1.6 — , —
=] e N —
General Information:

Total Number of Spaces 157

Standard Spaces 150
Disabled Bays 7
EV charging spaces 0
Car Club Spaces 0
Coach Spaces 27
Tier Bays 0
Motorcycle Spaces 0

There are toilets in St George’s Field car park,

Toilets . . . .
including an accessible toilet
Season Tickets Available yes
Resident Contract Permit yes
Accreditation yes
Operational Hours 24 hour
Type of Parking System (Pay Pay & Display

and Display or Pay on Exit)

Cash, card, RingGo

Evening Parking?

Yes — 6.00pm - 8.00pm £3.00 charge (or free with a
minster badge)

Overnight parking yes
Maximum Stay no
Height restrictions no

41




Page 102

Parking Data:

Annual revenue generated per car park £432,000 per annum (2019/20)

Annual revenue per space £3,800 per space (Q2 2019/20)

% revenue generation per payment

method: Cash, card, ringo See graphs below (2013-2021)

Are any of the spaces long term let to

. No
businesses?

St. George's Field Car Park Transactions and Income

60000

Transaction Income A

—
L

—=

o AN

<
<

L=

A .
N AN AWTL WY Vi A
V \/ vV

ey
——

20000

/

—

|

[ —
\\

10000

g{

T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T
MmO 0 O < < S S N0 N NN W WO ONDNNNOOOOOWO O OO OO O O O O
D T e I e S e B e, IO e, O e O e O e, TR e O e A e, O O e A e IO e R e S e SO e O e SO e IO o R e A e I e, R e B e Y o N o A o B o N )
O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o
AN N A AN AN N AN AN AN AN N AN AN AN N N NN NN NN AN NN NN NN
~ T~ S S > - > S " " " " " >" """ >"">"">""">"""“">""">"">"""">="-">-_"——_"=~
S N O d N O d N O da g N O dag ™~ O ddg ™~y O d g ™ O d s N O o
O O 4 O O O - O 0O O @« OO0 O+ 0O 0O O « O O o « O O o « O o o « o

St George's Car Park Income By Payment Means

500,000

450,000 W Income Phone £ MWIncome Cardf£ ™ Income Cash £
400,000
350,000
300,000
250,000
200,000
150,000
100,000
50,000
0 ‘ ‘ ‘ ! T T

T

2013/14  2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21

42




Page 103

Transport Information:

Is this car park outside of, or accessed from the

. . Yes
inner ring road?

St George’s Field car park is accessed by vehicle via a left turn only from the inner
ring road, just before the junction with Bishopgate Street.

The main pedestrian access in to the city centre from the car park is under
Skeldergate Bridge and either through Tower Gardens or along the riverside.
Pedestrian access is also facilitated via a crossing point on the inner ring road,

although this is slightly further round and does not provide a direct route.

City Centre Access Route Assessment

e The carpark is located some 490 metres from the nearest point of the
Primary Shopping Area (by GIS assessed optimal walking route) — the sixth
most distant from the PSA across the assessed car parks.

e No existing seating facilities are currently provided to the assessed route.

e The assessed route to the PSA is considered to be reasonably safe at night,
the majority of the route being well lit though perhaps less well populated
by pedestrians than other routes initially.

e Convenient and safe accessible crossings are largely provided to highway
crossings on the assessed route. Tower Street is less well provided for.

e Existing footway condition on the assessed walking route is fair, with the
majority rated at grade 3: Fair, and a lower proportion than average at
grades 1 & 2. None is grades 4 (poor) or 5 (very poor):

43




Page 104

Grade 1: Very Good, Grade 2: Good, Grade 3: Fair, Grade 4: Poor, Grade 5: Very poor,
Free from defects Signs of surface wear Mid life Functionally impaired Structurally impaired

e Further work (including engagement with disabled users) will improve
understanding of the quality of the routes, and help to define
improvements, including through lived experience input.

Property Information:

No, due this site being a functional floodplain,
there is no commercial or residential potential
on the site.

The Castle Gateway masterplan, approved by
the Executive in 2018 identifies the site as the
most appropriate location in the area for
replacement of some of the lost car parking
spaces from the closure of Castle car park.

Does the site have
development potential?
(Any development would be
subject to the necessary
investigations and consents)

What known site constraints

are there? Functional floodplain — and regularly floods.

Yes — This is what is proposed, and has a
planning permission in place, as part of the
Castle Gateway Masterplan.

Could the site facilitate a
smaller footprint multi storey?

What is the potential value of

the site? Less than £1.5m per acre

Is there or has there been

. . . No
market interest in the site?

44




Page 105

EV Charging:
N
umber a!nd type of EV None
charging spaces
Date of installation or upgrade n/a

Any planned future upgrages
installation, including and

Due to the car park regularly flooding, there are

no EV chargers planned for this car park. The
proposed multi-storey car park, which forms

part of the longer term EV strategy for the city,

timescales .
includes EV charges above the ground floor
level.
Usage n/a
Revenue generation per
8 p n/a

space?

45




Page 106

CIZDarrO]I::aer:k Union Terrace
Postcode YO31 7ES
Off Clarence Street, within 15
minutes walk of the city
Location centre.
Bootham Row and Monk Bar
car parks are in close
proximity.
Site Area - 2 e
(acres)
General Information:
Total Number of Spaces 160
Standard Spaces 145
Disabled Bays 13
EV charging spaces 2
Car Club Spaces 2
Coach Spaces 35
Tier Bays 1
Motorcycle Spaces 1

Toilets

There are toilets at Union Terrace,
including accessible toilets.

Season Tickets Available yes

Resident Contract Permit yes

Accreditation yes
Operational Hours 24 hours
Type of Parking System (Pay Pay & Exit

and Display or Pay on EXxit)

Cash, card only, RingGo

Evening Parking?

yes - after 6.00pm £3.00 charge (or free
with a minster badge)

Overnight parking yes
Maximum Stay no
Height restrictions yes

Parking Data:

46




Page 107

Annual revenue generated per car

£484,000 per annum (2019/20)
park

Annual revenue per space £3,600 per space (Q2 2019/20)

% revenue generation per payment

method: Cash, card, ringo See graphs below (2013-2021)

Are any of the spaces long term let

) No
to businesses?

What investment or improvements
would be needed to provide a high
quality car park?

Pay & Exit, re-lining of bays,
Increased LED lighting

Union Terrace Car Park Transactions and Income

60000

Transactions Income
50000

m
40000 \/__\/ V\ 7

30000 -

———

20000

|
f—
|
[

10000

T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T
™ o o < < < LN wn n X} [\ o ~ ~ ~ 0 0 o] ()] [)] )] o o (=]
- — — — - - — — - — - — — - - — — - - - — [a\] (] o
o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o
N o o N N o~ o N N N o~ o N N N o o~ N N o~ N N N o~
e S S S T T T - T T - T - T T - T s e - T
< [+9) (o] < Q0 (o] < [<9) o~ < [9) (o] < Q ()] < [<9) o~ < [9) N < Q0 (o]
o o — o o - o o — o o — o o - o o — o o — o o —

Union Terrace Car Park Income By Payment Means

600,000
® Income Phone £ M Income Card £ M Income Cash £

500,000

400,000 l l

300,000 - I

200,000 -

100,000 - l:
0 - T T T T T T T

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21

47



Page 108

Transport Information:

Is this car park outside of, or

: ; Yes
accessed from the inner ring road?

Union Terrace is located on Clarence Street, a main route linking Haxby
Road and Wigginton Road to the inner ring road.
The car park is surrounded by a mix of residential and commercial
development, with York St John’s university in close proximity.

Vehicular access to the car park is directly off Clarence street.

The car park is well located for access to the University, Gillygate and on
the city centre. The city centre can be accessed via either Gillygate or
Lord Mayors Walk. It has been identified that improved signage from the
car park would be useful for visitors to orientate themselves

City Centre Access Route Assessment

e The carpark is located some 610 metres from the nearest point of
the Primary Shopping Area (by GIS assessed optimal walking
route) — the third most distant from the PSA across the assessed
car parks.

e 9 existing seating facilities are currently provided to the assessed
route — the second best level of provision across the suite of
assessed car parks, and equating to a theoretical 67m per seat.

e The assessed route to the PSA is considered to be reasonably
safe at night, the majority of the route being well lit though perhaps
less well populated by pedestrians than other routes in its initial
stretches.

e Convenient and safe accessible crossings are provided to highway
crossings on the assessed route.

e EXxisting footway condition on the assessed walking route is fair,
with the majority rated at grade 3: Fair, and a higher proportion than
average at grades 1: Very Good, and 4: Poor. None is grade 5
(very poor):

48



Page 109

Annual (2020) Footway Condition Grade of Walking Route (%)

Grade 1: Very Good,
Free from defects

Grade 2: Good,
Signs of surface wear

Grade 4: Poor, Grade 5: Very poor,
Functionally impaired Structurally impaired

Grade 3: Fair,
Mid life

e Further work (including engagement with disabled users) will
improve understanding of the quality of the routes, and help to
define improvements, including through lived experience input.

Property Information:

Does the site have
development
potential?

(Any development
would be subject to the
necessary
investigations and
consents)

Yes, this site is a prime location for a residential
or education development scheme. Given the
size of the site there could be opportunity for a

mix of uses on the site including potentially
incorporating part green space, shop mobility
and facilities.

Given proximity of York St John University, this
site would likely appeal to developers of student
accommodation as well as to York St John
themselves for academic space.

Other commercial uses could be accommodated
but unlikely to attain the values of residential
development.

What known site
constraints are
there?

In close proximity to York St John University,
Bootham School and York District Hospital.
Coach park and drop off for tourists which also
provides trade for the nearby shops. Demand
for car parking in that location is high.
Surrounding built form to moderate height and
scale.

49




Could the site
facilitate a smaller
footprint multi
storey?

Page 110

Yes - The site could facilitate a smaller footprint
multi storey. This would be subject to planning
approval.

What is the potential
value of the site?

More than £2.5m per acre (indicative value)

Is there or has there
been market interest
in the site?

Yes

EV Charging:

Number and type of
EV charging spaces

2 fast charge

Date of installation or
upgrade

Installed in 2013

Any planned future
upgrages
installation, including
and timescales

Site will be upgraded in 2022 with 8 Fast spaces
and (subject to planning) a HyperHub - which
provides 4 Rapid and 4 Ultra Rapid chargers

Usage

Information is not available.

Revenue generation
per space?

Forecast revenue is Gross £92 per Fast space
per month + standard parking revenue. Site
Gross £8,832 per year + HyperHub estimated at
£15,000 per year. Forecast 20% increase per
year.

This car park is one of the network of City centre car parks providing
overnight charging for residents without off street parking. The areas
served are dense terraced streets. No on-street charge points can be
provided in these areas so provision for these residents is in long stay car
parks. This car park serves Guildhall, Clifton, Heworth, Micklegate and
Holgate wards. In addition this site is delivering a strategically important
HyperHub - of the three HyperHub sites, this is the only City Centre one.
HyperHubs are a critical part of the Public Charging Strategy and a City
Centre HyperHub is a critical part of the HyperHub plan. -
https://www.york.gov.uk/EVChargingStrategy

50



https://www.york.gov.uk/EVChargingStrategy

Equalities Impact Assessment

Who is submitting the proposal?

City of York Council

Directorate:

Economy and Place

Service Area:

Regeneration

Name of the proposal :

Strategic Review of City Centre Access and Council Car

Parking
Lead officer: Andy Kerr
Date assessment completed: 04/11/2021

Names of those who contributed to the assessment :

Name

Job title

Organisation

Area of expertise

Katie Peeke-Vout

Regeneration Project
Manager

City of York Council

Regeneration

Andy Kerr Head of Regeneration and | City of York Council Regeneration, economy,
Economy housing
Heidi Lehane Senior Solicitor City of York Council Legal Services

EIA 02/2021

TTT abed



Step 1 — Aims and intended outcomes

1.1

What is the purpose of the proposal?
Please explain your proposal in Plain English avoiding acronyms and jargon.

As set out in the My City Centre vision, people are crucial to the ongoing economic and social success of the city centre. The purpose
of the Strategic Reviews of City Centre Access and Council Car Parking is to improve access to the city centre to continue to support
the economic and social vibrancy of the city centre.

The Strategic Reviews of City Centre Access and Council Car Parking has been undertaken in conjunction with the creation of the My
City Centre Vision and the recommendations contained in the both strategies’ positively contribute to the aspirations set out in the long
term vision for the city centre.

The aim of the review of city centre access is to explore through public and stakeholder engagement how access can be improved to
and through the city centre and the pedestrian footstreet area, with a particular focus on disabled people, cycling and e-scooters,
deliveries, taxis and residents who live within the footstreets.

The aim of the review of the council’s car parking is to create a hierarchy that identifies priority car parks for investment and informs
future decision making.

Both elements of the Strategic Review undertaken have accompanying action plans, the recommendations of which this EIA assesses.

The two reviews are intrinsically linked, particularly in the role car parks have in improving access to the city centre for disabled people.
During the public engagement on city centre access some disabled people identified that proximity to the city’s pedestrianised
footstreets was less important to them, and they would rather park in car parks with high standard disabled parking bays, better facilities,
and high quality access routes in to the city centre. The review of council car parking has drawn on the city centre access review
engagement to inform the action plan.

EIA 02/2021

ZTT abed



1.2

Are there any external considerations? (Legislation/government directive/codes of practice etc.)

Equality Act 2010, which aims to protect people from discrimination in the workplace and in wider society. The Act includes a Public
Sector Equality Duty, which requires public bodies to consider how their decisions and policies affect people with protected
characteristics. The public body also should have evidence to show how it has done this. It also requires that public bodies have due
regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of opportunity and foster good relations between different people
when carrying out their activities. The Equality Act 2010 covers the following protected characteristics: age, disability, gender
reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The Blue Badge scheme: rights and responsibilities in England (www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-blue-badge-scheme-rights-
and-responsibilities-in-england)

EIA 02/2021

cTT abed



1.3

Who are the stakeholders and what are their interests?

All current and potential future users of the city centre are stakeholders in this review of city centre access. This includes residents,
visitors, businesses, and people travlleing through the city centre.

A number of people and representative groups who were identified as key stakeholders were targeted through direct engagement.
These groups are those particularly impacted by the city centre’s pedestrianised footstreet area. It should be noted that the Strategic
Reviews are separate to other decisions on the geography of the footstreet areas, instead it is focused on how access to and through
the footstreets could be improved.

Proposals have been put forward by various groups and individuals through previous engagement and the first phase carried out as
part of this access review. These proposals have been considered from a technical perspective, but also through targeted engagement
with those who will likely but impacted by these proposals. The majority of the proposals in the action plan provide new and additional
measures to improve the situation for those affected groups

This includes Cyclists and cycling groups who use the routes in to and around the city centre.
Disabled people, and the groups that represent and advocate the views and rights of these individuals.

City Centre business both from the perspective of those benefitting from the additional space created through the extended footstreets
and those that have been impacted negatively such as delivery/courier businesses and employees, and businesses who rely on
these services.

City Centre residents are also stakeholders as any changes to access and measure proposed will affect their access to their homes
as well as the environment in which they live.

EIA 02/2021

yTT abed



1.4

What results/outcomes do we want to achieve and for whom? This section should explain what
outcomes you want to achieve for service users, staff and/or the wider community. Demonstrate how the
proposal links to the Council Plan (2019- 2023) and other corporate strategies and plans.

Well Paid Jobs and an Inclusive Economy: Both reviews are important parts of helping to deliver the My City Centre vision in seeking
to provide a vibrant city centre with good footfall at all times to support jobs and the economy.

Greener & Cleaner City: Both strategies set out a number of sustainable transport improvements, including the ambition for all city
centre deliveries to be by ultra-low emission vehicles or cargo bike by 2030; a feasibility study in to a trans-shipment hub; improvements
to cycle routes and parking; EV charging policies; and a strategy to manage any future natural or policy led reduction in car parking
demand.

Good Health & Wellbeing: The Strategic Review of City Centre Access recommends a number of improvements to access in the city
centre, particularly for disabled people, and investment in active transport.

Safe Communities & Culture for All: The Strategic Review of City Centre Access considers how access to all groups can be improved
to the city centre and proposes a number of recommendations and funded projects to deliver the vision.

An Open and Effective Council: The Strategic Review of City Centre Access has been developed through an open, transparent,
wide-ranging and inclusive engagement approach following the ‘My’ principles set out in the report.

EIA 02/2021

GTT abed



Step 2 — Gathering the information and feedback

2.1 What sources of data, evidence and consultation feedback do we have to help us understand the

impact of the proposal on equality rights and human rights? Please consider a range of sources,
including: consultation exercises, surveys, feedback from staff, stakeholders, participants, research reports,
the views of equality groups, as well your own experience of working in this area etc.

Source of Reason for using
data/
supporting
evidence
Strategic Review of City Centre Access Engagement
Extensive
community and The review followed the council’s ‘My’ approach to public engagement that places the public and stakeholders at the heart of
stakeholder understanding and defining challenges, producing an open brief, establishing a draft vision, and then testing and refining that
engagement | Vision through further engagement.
carried out The initial engagement:
directly related '

to this review.

e Ran for 12 months, included 3 surveys distributed online and to every household in York — with freepost return — in the
council’s Our City publication.

¢ The council co-facilitated two online workshops and events with the York Disability Rights Forum in the summer of 2020
and were signed by British Sign Language interpreters and attended by 30 people.

o Officers attended specific insight meetings with York Disability Rights Forum, My Sight York, the Older People’s
Advocacy Group and others with a combined membership of several thousand.

e In 2021 there were a further seven targeted events to discuss the disabled access routes through the city centre,
Shopmobility services, cycling and couriers, deliveries and taxis.

EIA 02/2021

9TT abed



All of these events went in to producing an Open Brief (a separate annex to the report) on the issues raised. The draft
recommendations and strategy were then based on that Open Brief and the findings of two independent reviews that considered
York’s accessibility challenges. The final engagement on the draft recommendations received over 1,000 survey responses and
300 interactions on social media and helped to refine the final strategic review document.

Drawing on the

My City Centre engagement — was an ongoing engagement with residents, businesses and special interest groups. This was
an open discussion approach around what the city centre could look like in the future and was again based on a multi-platform

g;(ﬁinmszﬁty and | @pproach to engagement with face to face workshops (pre-covid), online session, questionnaires, live Facebook panel Q&A,

stakeholder and social media interactions.

engagement | city Centre Access Project (relating to the Hostile Vehicle Mitigation) - The extent of the footstreet area has been subject to

that has been - . . . .

undertaken ongoing discussions for a number of years as part of the City Centre Access project in part in response to the threat of

since 2020 terrorism, and particularly the use of hostile vehicles as a potential mode of attack. This led to the approval of a first phase of
hostile vehicle mitigation measures for the existing permanent footstreet area, but with potential future phases to expand the
area of protection.
Temporary Covid measures — When the temporary Covid measures were introduced, the Council engaged with approx. 450
individuals as well as advocacy groups representing thousands of people with disabilities and/or reduced mobility across the
city. An open community brief detailed the main themes and challenges which these changes sought to address, and the
summary of conversations with the city’s businesses and representative groups. The principles of the footstreets extension
was broadly supported by a majority of respondents to the citywide survey, which was also reflected in the support from
residents identifying themselves as disabled. There are tangible benefits for many, in particular blind and partially sighted
people, children, and older people. However, the desire from many for footstreets and spaces to be vehicle free is in contrast
to Blue Badge holders’ request for vehicular access to the pedestrianised area. These objections were articulated in a petition
signed by 1,093 people, including 501 York residents, calling for the reversal of the changes.

Independent Two independent reviews commissioned by the council and conducted in 2020 and 2021 by Disabled Motoring UK and Martin

Reports Higgett Associates which explored a range of issues and helped guide the outcomes as set out in the strategy document.

EIA 02/2021

/TT abed



York Open

Data, Council | Inform hierarchy of council car parking - namely parking data

corporate
datasets

Step 3 — Gaps in data and knowledge

3.1 What are the main gaps in information and understanding of the impact of your proposal? Please

indicate how any gaps will be dealt with.

Gaps in data or knowledge

Action to deal with this

Further feasibility work required for some of the
proposed mitigation measures

Further feasibility work, consultation with affected groups and detailed design will be
required for some of the proposals included in the Active Travel Fund bid, which aims to
secure funding to improve disabled access routes into and around the city centre.

Medium and long term impact on stakeholders

Review of new and emerging technology solutions which could potentially enable a review
of restrictions or offer different access solutions in the future.

Continuous monitoring and engagement with stakeholders to understand the medium and
long term impacts of the changes and identify further changes and potential adjustments.

There has been significant behaviour change
relating to modes of transport and city centre usage
as a result of Covid. Due to still being in the midst of
the pandemic, it is uncertain what the “new normal”
will look like for individual and corporate behaviour.

Recommendations in both the Strategic Reviews of City Centre Access and Council Car
Parking Strategy commit to continue to build evidence bases to inform future decision
making and to continue engagement with stakeholders to understand emerging needs
once behaviours settle in to a “new normal’.

EIA 02/2021

gTT abed



Step 4 — Analysing the impacts or effects.

4.1 Please consider what the evidence tells you about the likely impact (positive or negative) on people

sharing a protected characteristic, i.e. how significant could the impacts be if we did not make any
adjustments? Remember the duty is also positive — so please identify where the proposal offers
opportunities to promote equality and/or foster good relations.

Equality
Groups

and

Human Rights.

Key Findings/Impacts

Positive (+)
Negative (-)
Neutral (0)

High (H)
Medium (M)
Low (L)

Age

Overall positive impact: The access improvements identified
will improve access to the city centre for all age groups,
particularly older people who are more likely to have mobility
issues, due to the investment in improvements to the quality of
routes, pavements, dropped kerbs and provision of benches in
strategic locations in the city centre.

Many of the access improvements relate to services that support
those with mobility issues. Older people are generally more
likely to benefit from these services, but this is not limited to
older people nor at the detriment of any other age group.

Mixed: Based on the engagement undertaken, the strategy
outlines the preferred long term footstreet hours being until 7pm
in the evening (they currently run until 8om due to Covid but pre-
pandemic ran until 7pm). There was equal support for the 7pm
end to the footstreets across the age categories. Of those that
did not support the 7pm end to the footstreets, there was a
higher proportion of older people that would have preferred an

Positive

Negative/
mixed

High

Low

EIA 02/2021

6TT 9bed



earlier finish, however, this was not unanimous. However, it is
important to note that some blue badge holders who previously
parked in the footstreets when the hours started at 5pm would
no longer be able to.

It should be noted that any change to the permanent footstreet
hours will need a separate statutory consultation and full
Equalities Impact Assessment before the decision is made.

Disability

Overall positive impact: The range of measures proposed in
the access review provide a wide range of improvements and
investment in improving access for disabled people based on
the issues that were identified through engagement. There is
also an action to appoint an Access Officer which was a direct
request of disabled advocacy groups and will take forward a
number of measures to ensure that access continues to be
improved.

The review of council car parking commits to working with
disabled people to identify two car parks for targeted investment
with high standard disabled parking bays, better facilities, and
high quality access routes in to the city centre.

Negative Impact: There are some blue badge holders who
have made clear that there are no improvement to access that is
sufficient to replace their ability to be able to park in the
footstreet areas. Whilst this review does not contain any
decisions in relation to the geography of the footstreets, the
proposal to consider the footstreet hours to be permanently

Positive

Negative

Medium

Low

EIA 02/2021

02T abed



extended to 7pm would mean they could not park in these areas
until later than pre-pandemic. However, as noted above the
impact on these blue badge holders would be considered in full
as part of a separate statutory consultation and Equalities
Impact Assessment which included consideration of the Human
Rights Act 1998 that would accompany any changes to
permanent footstreet hours.

Gender No differential impact identified.
Although no differential impact identified, the engagement Positive Low
showed that females are significantly more likely to support the
improvement of facilities (ie toilets) in the city centre, suggesting
that the proposed improvement to facilities available will have a
particularly positive impact for females.
Gender No differential impact identified.
Reassignment
Marriage and No differential impact identified.
civil
partnership
Pregnancy The proposals have been identified as having a positive impact
and maternity | on pregnancy and maternity when considering the potential
Positive Low

impact on women who may experience pregnancy related
mobility impairments, especially in later stages of pregnancy.

The improvements to access services, access routes, improved
facilities and increased provision of benches across the city
centre may have a positive impact on women who may

EIA 02/2021

TZT abed



experience pregnancy related mobility issues. The
improvements may also positively impact on parents and carers
of younger children in pushchairs through improved routes and
facilities.

Positive impacts — As evidenced by the consultation
responses, some people living with a disability benefit from the
reduction in the number of vehicles and cycles accessing the
footstreet area, making it a safer environment for all users.
Adopting the City Centre Access model outlined in the strategy
which reaffirms the restriction of cycling and e-scooters from
being in the footstreets whilst improving cycle parking and
routes on the edge of the area would provide a safer
environment for mothers, fathers and carers of young children
young children.

Race No differential impact anticipated
Religion The proposals have been identified as having a positive impact
and belief

on access to places of worship in the footstreet area for people
who live with reduced mobility or a disability.

The recommendations identified in the strategy provide a range
of different access improvements to the city centre. These
access improvements to the city centre are also improvements
that support access to places of worship in the city centre St
Sampson’s Centre (Church Street), The Holy Trinity Church
(Goodramgate), St Helen’s Church (Stonegate), and St Martin le
Grand (Coney Street).

Positive

Low

EIA 02/2021

22T abed



Sexual

No differential impact anticipated

orientation
Other Socio- Could other socio-economic groups be affected e.g. carers,
economic ex-offenders, low incomes?
groups
including :
Carer The proposals have been identified as having a positive impact
carers. This includes carers of disabled people, people with Positive Medium
mobility issues, children and adults.
The positive impacts for carers mirror those identified above
under Disability, Age, and Pregnancy and Maternity.
Negative: As noted earlier a change to 7pm from the 5pm pre- | Negative Low
coivd permanent footstreet hours would impact on some blue
badge holders who used to park in the footstreets, and by
extension may impact on their carers at those times.
Low income Mixed: Improved access to the city through route improvements
groups and improved access to facilities could have a positive impact
on low income groups with limited mobility. Improving access to | Neutral Low

leisure and employment opportunities in the city centre.

Some of the services identified that support access to the city
centre through the provision of mobility aids and transport
require incur a cost to the user. This could preclude low income
groups from accessing these services. The cost of using these
services is kept to a minimum.

EIA 02/2021

c2T abed



Veterans, No differential impact anticipated
Armed Forces
Community

Other

Impact on
human rights:

List any human | Article 8 of the Human Rights Act 1998 - right to respect for
rights impacted. | private and family life

This Convention Right is broad and covers a person’s right to
develop your personal identity and to forge friendships and other
relationships. This includes a right to participate in essential
economic, social, cultural and leisure activities.

The Strategic Reviews reflect significant commitments that
improve access to the city centre for disabled people, whilst
noting that some blue badge holders may be negatively
impacted by any future formal change to later footstreet hours.

Use the following guidance to inform your responses:

Indicate:

- Where you think that the proposal could have a POSITIVE impact on any of the equality groups like promoting
equality and equal opportunities or improving relations within equality groups

- Where you think that the proposal could have a NEGATIVE impact on any of the equality groups, i.e. it could
disadvantage them

- Where you think that this proposal has a NEUTRAL effect on any of the equality groups listed below i.e. it has
no effect currently on equality groups.

EIA 02/2021

y2T abed




It is important to remember that a proposal may be highly relevant to one aspect of equality and not relevant to

another.

High impact
(The proposal or
process is very
equality relevant)

There is significant potential for or evidence of adverse impact

The proposal is institution wide or public facing

The proposal has consequences for or affects significant numbers of people

The proposal has the potential to make a significant contribution to promoting equality and
the exercise of human rights.

Medium impact
(The proposal or
process is
somewhat
equality relevant)

There is some evidence to suggest potential for or evidence of adverse impact

The proposal is institution wide or across services, but mainly internal

The proposal has consequences for or affects some people

The proposal has the potential to make a contribution to promoting equality and the exercise
of human rights

Low impact

(The proposal or
process might be
equality relevant)

There is little evidence to suggest that the proposal could result in adverse impact

The proposal operates in a limited way

The proposal has consequences for or affects few people

The proposal may have the potential to contribute to promoting equality and the exercise of
human rights

EIA 02/2021

GZT abed



Step 5 - Mitigating adverse impacts and maximising positive impacts

5.1 Based on your findings, explain ways you plan to mitigate any unlawful prohibited conduct or
unwanted adverse impact. Where positive impacts have been identified, what is been done to
optimise opportunities to advance equality or foster good relations?

The positive impacts identified in this Equalities Impact Assessment are the product of significant engagement to
design solutions that improve access to the city centre and identified investment streams to deliver them. As in
any exercise there may be further ideas and requests from those engaged but not all can be delivered due to
technical or budget constraints.

In terms of negative impacts, the only identified impact is on some blue badge holders should a formal decision
be taken to enact the proposed permanent change to the footstreet hours. However, this will require further
consideration of the impact, a statutory consultation and separate Equalities Impact Assessment to consider this
in detail.

Some of the proposals may have a legal requirement for consultation, as well as the need for other consents,
approvals or legal processes. The requirements for each specific proposal will need to be carefully considered
with the Council’s legal team to ensure decisions relating to them are properly made.

EIA 02/2021

oZT abed



Ste

p 6 — Recommendations and conclusions of the assessment

6.1

Having considered the potential or actual impacts you should be in a position to make an
informed judgement on what should be done. In all cases, document your reasoning that
justifies your decision. There are four main options you can take:

jus

No major change to the proposal — the EIA demonstrates the proposal is robust. There is no potential for
unlawful discrimination or adverse impact and you have taken all opportunities to advance equality and foster
good relations, subject to continuing monitor and review.

- Adjust the proposal — the EIA identifies potential problems or missed opportunities. This involves taking

steps to remove any barriers, to better advance quality or to foster good relations.

Continue with the proposal (despite the potential for adverse impact) — you should clearly set out the

justifications for doing this and how you believe the decision is compatible with our obligations under the duty

Stop and remove the proposal — if there are adverse effects that are not justified and cannot be mitigated,
you should consider stopping the proposal altogether. If a proposal leads to unlawful discrimination it should
be removed or changed.

Important: If there are any adverse impacts you cannot mitigate, please provide a compelling reason in the

tification column.

EIA 02/2021

/2T abed



Option

Conclusions/justification

the proposal

selected
The proposals are considered to have a significant positive impact on access to the city centre,
with clear actions identified to continue to improve access to the city centre for all.

No major . o e .

change to Where known or potential negative impact is identified, this is balanced by the range of measures

being proposed so ensure that there are improvements for all. Further work is identified to
continue to explore additional services or access improvements through ongoing engagement
with the identified stakeholder groups.

Step 7 — Summary of agreed actions resulting from the assessment

7.1 What action, by whom, will be undertaken as a result of the impact assessment.

Impact/issue Action to be taken Person Timescale

responsible

open.

This report identifies that
7pm is the preferred time
for the footstreets to re-

Any approval to proceed with
changing the footstreet hours
will require a statutory Head of Transport Decision yet to be taken
consultation and its own EIA.

EIA 02/2021

82T abed



Step 8 - Monitor, review and improve

8.1

How will the impact of your proposal be monitored and improved upon going forward?
Consider how will you identify the impact of activities on protected characteristics and other
marginalised groups going forward? How will any learning and enhancements be capitalised
on and embedded?

The impacts of the proposals will continue to be monitored through the following activities:

e Ongoing liaison with key disabled groups through the Access Officer (once appointed — subject to
approval)

e The creation of a York Standard will increase awareness across all stakeholders the barriers to
accessing the city centre and establish a city wide commitment to continued improvement

e Ongoing engagement with the business community in the city centre through representative groups
such as the BID

EIA 02/2021

62T abed



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	 
	3 Minutes
	4 Called-in Item: Strategic Reviews of City Centre Access and Council Car Parking
	Annex A - Executive decisions
	Annex B - report to Executive
	Annex B2 - Strategic Review of Council Car Parking
	Structure Bookmarks
	Document
	Article 1�
	Figure
	Strategic Review of Council Car Parking
	Strategic Review of Council Car Parking

	November 2021
	November 2021

	Figure

	Article 2o畮捩氠䍡爠偡牫楮最
	Executive Summary
	Executive Summary

	The Strategic Review of Council Car Parking has two primary purposes. The first is to provide an assessment of council owned car parks in the city and create a hierarchy of those car parks to inform and prioritise immediate investment decisions. The second it so identify information gaps in car parking usage that can be improved to guide future evidence based decision making in Local Transport Plan 4 about the city wide role of car parking in our integrated transport system. 
	The Strategic Review of Council Car Parking has two primary purposes. The first is to provide an assessment of council owned car parks in the city and create a hierarchy of those car parks to inform and prioritise immediate investment decisions. The second it so identify information gaps in car parking usage that can be improved to guide future evidence based decision making in Local Transport Plan 4 about the city wide role of car parking in our integrated transport system. 
	The review establishes a hierarchy of council car parks to manage future parking demand, and which council car parks should be prioritised for investment and improvements. The approach identifies that the council’s car parks which are outside the inner ring road, have the lowest impact on our residential communities, and have no viable alternative development use are the highest priority for investment. That is because they are the least likely to be closed should there be any future natural or policy drive
	It is important to note that the council cannot use its own car parks in isolation to influence car journeys. Should the city seek to take a future approach to reducing car journeys through car parking it needs to be determined through Local Transport Plan 4 and supported by appropriate planning policy. If the council tried to reduce car journeys through the closure of any of its car parks without this policy framework it could result in the private sector capitalising on the demand created by the reduced s
	In addition to establishing the hierarchy, the review includes a series of recommendations to improve the quality of evidence bases relating to council car parks; the customer experience; encouraging the use of the park and ride and electric vehicles; and working with disabled groups to identify two car parks within the hierarchy as priorities for investment in disabled parking bays, facilities and access routes in to the city centre. 


	Article 3i獨楮朠瑨攠桩敲慲捨礬⁴桥⁲敶楥眠楮捬畤敳⁡⁳敲楥猠潦⁲散潭浥湤慴楯湳⁴漠業灲潶攠瑨攠煵慬楴礠潦⁥癩摥湣攠扡獥猠牥污瑩湧⁴漠捯畮捩氠捡爠灡牫猻⁴桥⁣畳瑯浥爠數灥物敮捥㬠敮捯畲慧楮朠瑨攠畳攠潦⁴桥⁰慲欠慮搠物摥⁡湤⁥汥捴物挠癥桩捬敳㬠慮搠睯牫楮朠睩瑨⁤楳慢汥搠杲潵灳⁴漠楤敮瑩晹⁴睯⁣慲⁰慲歳⁷楴桩渠瑨攠桩敲慲捨礠慳⁰物潲楴楥猠景爠楮癥獴浥湴⁩渠摩獡扬敤⁰慲歩湧⁢慹猬⁦慣楬楴楥猠慮搠慣捥獳⁲潵瑥猠楮⁴漠瑨攠捩瑹⁣敮瑲攮 渠瑨攠灲楶慴攠獥捴潲⁣慰楴慬楳楮朠潮⁴桥⁤敭慮搠捲敡瑥搠批⁴桥⁲敤畣敤⁳
	Background
	Background

	Whilst the council’s priority is for people to use sustainable modes of transport, car parking also has a role to play in a successful city centre economy, in allowing the city centre to compete with out of town retail that offer free or discounted car parking. As set out in the My City Centre vision, people and footfall are crucial to the ongoing economic and social success of the city centre, and for some cars will remain the preferred mode of transport. It should be noted that a resident travelling to th
	Whilst the council’s priority is for people to use sustainable modes of transport, car parking also has a role to play in a successful city centre economy, in allowing the city centre to compete with out of town retail that offer free or discounted car parking. As set out in the My City Centre vision, people and footfall are crucial to the ongoing economic and social success of the city centre, and for some cars will remain the preferred mode of transport. It should be noted that a resident travelling to th
	The council has 19 car parks across the city in addition to on street pay and display, from the park and ride sites that are a key part of our sustainable transport network, to large car parks servicing the city centre, and small local car parks serving secondary centres. Collectively the car parks generate £7m each year, which is an important income stream in funding the wider services provided by the council. Charging for car parking is not just about income generation, it is also an important tool in enc
	In addition to the council car parks there are many privately owned and operated car parks within and on the periphery of the city centre. Again whilst the council’s preference is for people to use alternative modes of transport where people will park, the principle is that the council should be the parking provider of choice, enabling the revenue generated to be retained in the city and to support the provision of council services.
	This review was commissioned in November 2020 by the Executive and the scope agreed in April 2021. The primary driver of the review is to improve the evidence bases to guide immediate council investment decisions in relation to its car parks, and on car parking usage to inform strategic transport decisions in the upcoming Local Transport Plan 4.


	Article 4s獩潮敤⁩渠乯癥浢敲′〲〠批⁴桥⁅硥捵瑩癥⁡湤⁴桥⁳捯灥⁡杲敥搠楮⁁灲楬′〲ㄮ⁔桥⁰物浡特⁤物癥爠潦⁴桥⁲敶楥眠楳⁴漠業灲潶攠瑨攠敶楤敮捥⁢慳敳⁴漠杵楤攠業浥摩慴攠捯畮捩氠楮癥獴浥湴⁤散楳楯湳⁩渠牥污瑩潮⁴漠楴猠捡爠灡牫猬⁡湤⁯渠捡爠灡牫楮朠畳慧攠瑯⁩湦潲洠獴牡瑥杩挠瑲慮獰潲琠摥捩獩潮猠楮⁴桥⁵灣潭楮朠䱯捡氠呲慮獰潲琠偬慮‴⸀攠来湥牡瑥搠瑯⁢攠牥瑡楮敤⁩渠瑨攠捩瑹⁡湤⁴漠獵灰潲琠瑨攠灲潶楳楯渠潦⁣潵湣楬⁳敲癩捥献n朠楳⁮潴⁪畳琠慢潵琠楮捯浥⁧敮敲慴楯測⁩琠楳⁡汳漠慮⁩浰潲瑡湴⁴潯氠楮⁥湣
	Review methodology
	Review methodology

	The main aim of the review of parking is to create a hierarchy of council car parks that can be used in the future to inform a strategy of how future parking demand is managed and which council car parks should be prioritised for investment and improvements. 
	The main aim of the review of parking is to create a hierarchy of council car parks that can be used in the future to inform a strategy of how future parking demand is managed and which council car parks should be prioritised for investment and improvements. 
	There are four objectives identified in the review of council car parking:
	a. Provide an improved evidence base for future decision making
	b. Identify strategic priority council car parks for investment and retention should parking decline in the future
	c. Optimise and future proof council car parks
	d. Respond to disabled access parking requirements

	City Centre Car Parking
	City Centre Car Parking

	Provide improved evidence base for future decision making
	Provide improved evidence base for future decision making

	Identify strategic priority car parks for investment and retention
	Identify strategic priority car parks for investment and retention

	Optimise and future proof CYC car parks including revenue consideration
	Optimise and future proof CYC car parks including revenue consideration

	Respond to disabled access parking requirements
	Respond to disabled access parking requirements


	Article 5c捥獳⁰慲歩湧⁲敱畩牥浥湴猀朠牥癥湵攠捯湳楤敲慴楯渀湴楯渠獨潵汤⁰慲歩湧⁤散汩湥⁩渠瑨攠晵瑵牥t漠楮景牭⁡⁳瑲慴敧礠潦⁨潷⁦畴畲攠灡牫楮朠摥浡湤⁩猠浡湡来搠慮搠睨楣栠捯畮捩氠捡爠灡牫猠獨潵汤⁢攠灲楯物瑩獥搠景爠楮癥獴浥湴⁡湤⁩浰牯癥浥湴献 朠畳慧攠瑯⁩湦潲洠獴牡瑥杩挠瑲慮獰潲琠摥捩獩潮猠楮⁴桥⁵灣潭楮朠䱯捡氠呲慮獰潲琠偬慮‴⸀攠来湥牡瑥搠瑯⁢攠牥瑡楮敤⁩渠瑨攠捩瑹⁡湤⁴漠獵灰潲琠瑨攠灲潶楳楯渠潦⁣潵湣楬⁳敲癩捥献n朠楳⁮潴⁪畳琠慢潵琠楮捯浥⁧敮敲慴楯測⁩琠楳⁡汳漠慮⁩浰潲瑡湴⁴潯氠楮⁥湣
	Under each of these objectives are a number of outcomes:
	Under each of these objectives are a number of outcomes:
	a. Evidence Base
	• 
	• 
	• 
	• 

	Collate all the existing available data

	• 
	• 
	• 

	Identify and implement measures to improve future evidence base


	b. Priority car park locations
	• 
	• 
	• 
	• 

	Provide a matrix for assessment of car parks using available data to produce a hierarchy of council car parks

	• 
	• 
	• 

	Assess car parks against the above matrix to create a hierarchy to target future investment 


	c. Optimise and future proof council car parks
	• 
	• 
	• 
	• 

	Improve customer experience and the quality of council car parks

	• 
	• 
	• 

	Review the pricing and payment options to allow flexibility based on demand and prioritisation

	• 
	• 
	• 

	Optimise capacity within council car parks and the revenue generation

	• 
	• 
	• 

	Target Electric Vehicle (EV) charging

	• 
	• 
	• 

	Maximise the use of the Park and Rides


	d. Disabled access and parking
	• 
	• 
	• 
	• 

	Implement the Strategic Review of City Centre Access recommendations 

	• 
	• 
	• 

	Implement improvements to the Shop-mobility service

	• 
	• 
	• 

	Identify gold standard accessibility car parks with disabled people and advocacy groups


	It is important to note that the council cannot influence car journeys through its car parks in isolation. Should the city seek to take a future proactive approach to reducing car journeys through car parking it needs to be determined through Local Transport Plan 4 and supported by planning policies. If the council tried to reduce car journeys through the closure of any of its car parks without this it could result in the private sector capitalising on that demand and building new car parks, and the policy 

	Outcomes
	Outcomes


	Article 6t攠瑨慴⁴桥⁣潵湣楬⁣慮湯琠楮晬略湣攠捡爠橯畲湥祳⁴桲潵杨⁩瑳⁣慲⁰慲歳⁩渠楳潬慴楯渮⁓桯畬搠瑨攠捩瑹⁳敥欠瑯⁴慫攠愠晵瑵牥⁰牯慣瑩癥⁡灰牯慣栠瑯⁲敤畣楮朠捡爠橯畲湥祳⁴桲潵杨⁣慲⁰慲歩湧⁩琠湥敤猠瑯⁢攠摥瑥牭楮敤⁴桲潵杨⁌潣慬⁔牡湳灯牴⁐污渠㐠慮搠獵灰潲瑥搠批⁰污湮楮朠灯汩捩敳⸠䥦⁴桥⁣潵湣楬⁴物敤⁴漠牥摵捥⁣慲⁪潵牮敹猠瑨牯畧栠瑨攠捬潳畲攠潦⁡湹⁯映楴猠捡爠灡牫猠睩瑨潵琠瑨楳⁩琠捯畬搠牥獵汴⁩渠瑨攠灲楶慴攠獥捴潲⁣慰楴慬楳楮朠潮⁴桡琠摥浡湤⁡湤⁢畩汤楮朠湥眠捡爠灡牫猬⁡湤⁴桥⁰潬楣礠
	Evidence Base
	Evidence Base

	Outputs
	Outputs
	• 
	• 
	• 
	• 

	Collate all available data

	• 
	• 
	• 

	Identify and implement measures to improve future evidence base


	The first step in the parking review was to identify and asses the existing evidence relating to the council’s car parks, to allow an assessment of the car parks to be undertaken at this stage and identify where there are gaps in data collection and analysis that could be improved to aid future strategic decision making.
	Using the data available, a profile of each car park was produced (annex 1) that set out the following:
	a. General information – The actual number of spaces in each car park fluctuates over time as different uses are flexed in response to demand, such as cycle parking, disabled bays, EV charging. The numbers contained in this review are based on an in person count undertaken in October 2021 and reflect the position at that date.
	b. Parking Data – to understand how well used the car park is, who it is typically used by, and how much revenue it generates
	c. Transport Information – to understand the impact the car park location has on the transport network and the impact on the surrounding area and communities, location in relation to destination, and accessibility to and from the car park.
	d. Property Information – to understand whether there is an alternative development use for the car park and its land value, and also to consider whether consolidating in to a smaller footprint multi-storey car park is possible with the remaining area developed or used for a different purpose.
	e. Electric Vehicle Charging – based on the council’s Electric Vehicle (EV) strategy 2020-2025, this section is to understand the role car parks can play in provide EV charging points in the city centre, particularly in relation to providing an alternative to on street charging for residents who live in terraced streets where installing EV charging is challenging.
	f. External Influences – This section is to identify any other influences that should be considered that fall outside of the categories above. Although this is not a demand driven assessment, the expected increase in visitor numbers to the city from regeneration and development, such as to the world class public realm in the Castle Gateway Masterplan and York Central, and a significant increase in the number of hotel rooms and car free developments, has been taken in to consideration.
	Each car park has a detailed profile in Annex 1, but the key facts are summarised on the following map.


	Article 7e瑡楬敤⁰牯晩汥⁩渠䅮湥砠ㄬ⁢畴⁴桥⁫敹⁦慣瑳⁡牥⁳畭浡物獥搠潮⁴桥⁦潬汯睩湧⁭慰⸀⁦慬氠潵瑳楤攠潦⁴桥⁣慴敧潲楥猠慢潶攮⁁汴桯畧栠瑨楳⁩猠湯琠愠摥浡湤⁤物癥渠慳獥獳浥湴Ⱐ瑨攠數灥捴敤⁩湣牥慳攠楮⁶楳楴潲⁮畭扥牳⁴漠瑨攠捩瑹⁦牯洠牥来湥牡瑩潮⁡湤⁤敶敬潰浥湴Ⱐ獵捨⁡猠瑯⁴桥⁷潲汤⁣污獳⁰畢汩挠牥慬洠楮⁴桥⁃慳瑬攠䝡瑥睡礠䵡獴敲灬慮⁡湤⁙潲欠䍥湴牡氬⁡湤⁡⁳楧湩晩捡湴⁩湣牥慳攠楮⁴桥⁮畭扥爠潦⁨潴敬⁲潯浳⁡湤⁣慲⁦牥攠摥癥汯灭敮瑳Ⱐ桡猠扥敮⁴慫敮⁩渠瑯⁣潮獩摥牡瑩潮⸀灡牫猬⁡湤⁴桥⁰潬楣礠
	Council car parks servicing the city centre 
	Council car parks servicing the city centre 

	Figure
	4. Bootham Row
	4. Bootham Row
	0.4 acres
	58 Standard Spaces
	8 Disabled bays
	£339k per year
	£5.2k per space

	5. Union Terrace
	5. Union Terrace
	2.2 acres
	145 Standard Spaces
	13 Disabled bays
	£484k per year
	£4.1k per space

	6. Monk Bar
	6. Monk Bar
	1.5 acres
	194 Standard Spaces
	8 Disabled bays
	£522k per year
	£4.4k per space

	7. Fossbank MSCP
	7. Fossbank MSCP
	1.7 acres
	316 Standard Spaces
	4 Disabled bays
	£230k per year
	£1.2k per space

	Car park profiles:
	Car park profiles:
	- Annual revenue generation based on 2019/20
	- Revenue per space based on Q2 2020/21

	8. Coppergate MSCP
	8. Coppergate MSCP
	1.1 acres
	248 Standard Spaces
	18 Disabled bays
	£682k per year
	£3.5k per space

	9. Castle
	9. Castle
	1.6 acres
	280 Standard Spaces
	20 Disabled bays
	£1,068k per year
	£6.1k per space

	10. St George’s Field
	10. St George’s Field
	2.2 acres
	150 Standard Spaces
	7 Disabled bays
	£432k per year
	£4.5k per space

	3. Marygate
	3. Marygate
	2.3 acres
	312 Standard Spaces
	11 Disabled bays
	£655k per year
	£5.5k per space

	2. Esplanade
	2. Esplanade
	0.7 acres
	75 Standard Spaces
	5 Disabled bays
	£153k per year
	£3.7k per space

	1. Nunnery Lane 
	1. Nunnery Lane 
	1.2 acres
	139 Standard Spaces
	12 Disabled bays
	£464k per year
	£4.5k per space

	1. Nunnery Lane
	1. Nunnery Lane

	2. Esplanade
	2. Esplanade

	3. Marygate
	3. Marygate

	4. Bootham Row
	4. Bootham Row

	5. Union Terrace
	5. Union Terrace

	6. Monk Bar
	6. Monk Bar

	7. Fossbank MSCP
	7. Fossbank MSCP

	8. Coppergate MSCP
	8. Coppergate MSCP

	9. Castle Car Park
	9. Castle Car Park

	10. St George’s Field
	10. St George’s Field


	Article 8
	Park and Ride car parks
	Park and Ride car parks

	Park and Ride Car Parks
	Park and Ride Car Parks
	The use of Park and Rides and other public transport remains the preferred means of accessing the city centre after walking and cycling.
	EV strategy includes significant increase in charging points to be installed in the Park and Ride Sites. There are also ambitions to increase the role the Park and Ride sites in improving the inter-city connectivity by bus.

	Figure
	Story
	Body
	Table
	THead
	TR
	Spaces
	Spaces



	Askham Bar (P&R)
	Askham Bar (P&R)
	Askham Bar (P&R)
	Askham Bar (P&R)

	1100
	1100


	Grimston Bar P&R)
	Grimston Bar P&R)
	Grimston Bar P&R)

	920
	920


	Poppleton Bar (P&R)
	Poppleton Bar (P&R)
	Poppleton Bar (P&R)

	600
	600


	Rawcliffe Bar (P&R)
	Rawcliffe Bar (P&R)
	Rawcliffe Bar (P&R)

	1000
	1000


	Monks Cross (P&R)
	Monks Cross (P&R)
	Monks Cross (P&R)

	800
	800


	Designer Outlet (P&R)
	Designer Outlet (P&R)
	Designer Outlet (P&R)

	600
	600


	Total P&R provision
	Total P&R provision
	Total P&R provision

	5020
	5020







	Article 9
	Council car park usage  
	Council car park usage  

	A variety of mechanisms can be applied to assess usage of council car parks, though it is important to note that this is not currently a core metric analysed in its own right as part of the council’s business intelligence or monitoring functions. As a result, data has not been available in a full and consistent manner over a meaningful period of time. There is information held on car park income, and car park usage has been analysed manually through CCTV since May 2020. Additionally, some count data is held
	A variety of mechanisms can be applied to assess usage of council car parks, though it is important to note that this is not currently a core metric analysed in its own right as part of the council’s business intelligence or monitoring functions. As a result, data has not been available in a full and consistent manner over a meaningful period of time. There is information held on car park income, and car park usage has been analysed manually through CCTV since May 2020. Additionally, some count data is held
	However, these do not provide a clear and consistent data set, and this could be improved. Automatic Number Plate Recognition infrastructure is planned at some car parks, and pay on exit recently installed at Marygate and Coppergate Centre car parks will assist by improving the availability of accurate information. The strategy sets out recommendations elsewhere to ensure improved information and monitoring of the council’s car parking.
	The current most accurate measure of car parking usage is the revenue that is generated. Analysis of these figures shows that parking demand fluctuates significantly during the year, with the council’s car parks at high capacity at peak times during school holidays and the run up to the festive period, but then much quieter in other parts of the year and midweek. It is important that the capacity exits to meet those peak periods in supporting the city centre economy with sufficient car parking provision.

	Car parking revenue by month
	Car parking revenue by month

	Figure

	Article 10m潮瑨s畲攠潦⁣慲⁰慲歩湧⁵獡来⁩猠瑨攠牥癥湵攠瑨慴⁩猠来湥牡瑥搮⁁湡汹獩猠潦⁴桥獥⁦楧畲敳⁳桯睳⁴桡琠灡牫楮朠摥浡湤⁦汵捴畡瑥猠獩杮楦楣慮瑬礠摵物湧⁴桥⁹敡爬⁷楴栠瑨攠捯畮捩沐猠捡爠灡牫猠慴⁨楧栠捡灡捩瑹⁡琠灥慫⁴業敳⁤畲楮朠獣桯潬⁨潬楤慹猠慮搠瑨攠牵渠異⁴漠瑨攠晥獴楶攠灥物潤Ⱐ扵琠瑨敮⁭畣栠煵楥瑥爠楮⁯瑨敲⁰慲瑳⁯映瑨攠祥慲⁡湤⁭楤睥敫⸠䥴⁩猠業灯牴慮琠瑨慴⁴桥⁣慰慣楴礠數楴猠瑯⁭敥琠瑨潳攠灥慫⁰敲楯摳⁩渠獵灰潲瑩湧⁴桥⁣楴礠捥湴牥⁥捯湯浹⁷楴栠獵晦楣楥湴⁣慲⁰慲歩湧⁰牯癩獩潮⸀汤
	Impact of the pandemic on council car parks
	Impact of the pandemic on council car parks

	The graph opposite illustrates the usage of a series of 9 council car parks in the city centre, established through the observation of CCTV footage by transport officers. This clearly illustrates both the impacts of the pandemic lockdowns on usage, and the fact that occupancy is now at or above the levels that existed pre-pandemic. Whilst the pandemic is still happening, and current behaviours may continue to fluctuate, the data clearly illustrates that demand for parking has returned, and the majority of t
	The graph opposite illustrates the usage of a series of 9 council car parks in the city centre, established through the observation of CCTV footage by transport officers. This clearly illustrates both the impacts of the pandemic lockdowns on usage, and the fact that occupancy is now at or above the levels that existed pre-pandemic. Whilst the pandemic is still happening, and current behaviours may continue to fluctuate, the data clearly illustrates that demand for parking has returned, and the majority of t

	Observed Average Peak Occupancy by Car Park (%) May 2020-Sept 2021
	Observed Average Peak Occupancy by Car Park (%) May 2020-Sept 2021

	Figure

	Article 11c捵灡湣礠批⁃慲⁐慲欠⠥⤠䵡礠㈰㈰ⵓ数琠㈰㈱a爠灡牫猠楮⁴桥⁣楴礠捥湴牥Ⱐ敳瑡扬楳桥搠瑨牯畧栠瑨攠潢獥牶慴楯渠潦⁃䍔嘠景潴慧攠批⁴牡湳灯牴⁯晦楣敲献⁔桩猠捬敡牬礠楬汵獴牡瑥猠扯瑨⁴桥⁩浰慣瑳⁯映瑨攠灡湤敭楣⁬潣此潷湳⁯渠畳慧攬⁡湤⁴桥⁦慣琠瑨慴⁯捣異慮捹⁩猠湯眠慴⁯爠慢潶攠瑨攠汥癥汳⁴桡琠數楳瑥搠灲攭灡湤敭楣⸠坨楬獴⁴桥⁰慮摥浩挠楳⁳瑩汬⁨慰灥湩湧Ⱐ慮搠捵牲敮琠扥桡癩潵牳⁭慹⁣潮瑩湵攠瑯⁦汵捴畡瑥Ⱐ瑨攠摡瑡⁣汥慲汹⁩汬畳瑲慴敳⁴桡琠摥浡湤⁦潲⁰慲歩湧⁨慳⁲整畲湥搬⁡湤⁴桥⁭慪潲楴礠潦⁴
	This view is reiterated in the additional information presented below, which shows revenue income exceeding pre-pandemic levels, with the revenue generated by each space in summer 2019 in orange, being compared with the revenue generated in summer 2021.
	This view is reiterated in the additional information presented below, which shows revenue income exceeding pre-pandemic levels, with the revenue generated by each space in summer 2019 in orange, being compared with the revenue generated in summer 2021.

	Figure
	It should also be noted that the Rose Theatre was in place during July and August 2019, meaning that Piccadilly and St Georges Field car park incomes were actually higher than typical at that time, meaning the increased revenue in summer 2021 is notably high. The size of the increase at Marygate is however an anomaly as the new pay on exit parking system was experiencing operational issues, leading to revenue losses.  It should also be noted that parking charges have increased slightly since 2019, but these
	It should also be noted that the Rose Theatre was in place during July and August 2019, meaning that Piccadilly and St Georges Field car park incomes were actually higher than typical at that time, meaning the increased revenue in summer 2021 is notably high. The size of the increase at Marygate is however an anomaly as the new pay on exit parking system was experiencing operational issues, leading to revenue losses.  It should also be noted that parking charges have increased slightly since 2019, but these


	Article 12 瑨慴⁴桥⁒潳攠周敡瑲攠睡猠楮⁰污捥⁤畲楮朠䩵汹⁡湤⁁畧畳琠㈰ㄹⰠ浥慮楮朠瑨慴⁐楣捡摩汬礠慮搠却⁇敯牧敳⁆楥汤⁣慲⁰慲欠楮捯浥猠睥牥⁡捴畡汬礠桩杨敲⁴桡渠瑹灩捡氠慴⁴桡琠瑩浥Ⱐ浥慮楮朠瑨攠楮捲敡獥搠牥癥湵攠楮⁳畭浥爠㈰㈱⁩猠湯瑡扬礠桩杨⸠周攠獩穥⁯映瑨攠楮捲敡獥⁡琠䵡特条瑥⁩猠桯睥癥爠慮⁡湯浡汹⁡猠瑨攠湥眠灡礠潮⁥硩琠灡牫楮朠獹獴敭⁷慳⁥硰敲楥湣楮朠潰敲慴楯湡氠楳獵敳Ⱐ汥慤楮朠瑯⁲敶敮略⁬潳獥献†䥴⁳桯畬搠慬獯⁢攠湯瑥搠瑨慴⁰慲歩湧⁣桡牧敳⁨慶攠楮捲敡獥搠獬楧桴汹⁳楮捥′〱㤬⁢畴⁴桥獥
	Hierarchy of council car parks
	Hierarchy of council car parks

	Outputs
	Outputs
	• 
	• 
	• 
	• 

	Provide a matrix for assessment of car parks using available data to produce a hierarchy

	• 
	• 
	• 

	Assess car parks to create that hierarchy to target future investment 


	Methodology
	The primary purpose of the review is to use the available information to create a matrix to assess the council’s car parks and place them within a hierarchy. This hierarchy will then be used to prioritise investment decisions, and ensure that any spend over and above general improvements and maintenance is focused on council car parks that are likely to remain as car parks should any natural or policy led decline in car parking demand occur.
	Based on the information contained within each of the car park profiles, an assessment matrix was established to allow a comparison and ranking of the council’s car parks. The assessment process has two stages. The first is to assess the car parks against Tier 1 or Threshold questions. This identifies which car parks should be automatically excluded from the hierarchy as they are already predetermined to remain as car parks (park and ride) or have already been identified for closure (Castle Car Park).
	The second stage is to then assess the remaining car parks against Tier 2 or Hierarchy questions, to rank and establish a hierarchy of the councils’ car parks to guide future investment decisions. The Tier 2 questions run in order of importance from left to right, to create a sequential ranking system aligned on the council’s priorities.
	The hierarchy is to be used as a tool to indicate priority car parks for investment and which car parks may be appropriate for alternative uses. This is not a definitive decision making tool. Any future decisions on investment or alternative uses would be subject to individual business cases and Executive decisions.


	Article 13u獥搠慳⁡⁴潯氠瑯⁩湤楣慴攠灲楯物瑹⁣慲⁰慲歳⁦潲⁩湶敳瑭敮琠慮搠睨楣栠捡爠灡牫猠浡礠扥⁡灰牯灲楡瑥⁦潲⁡汴敲湡瑩癥⁵獥献⁔桩猠楳⁮潴⁡⁤敦楮楴楶攠摥捩獩潮⁭慫楮朠瑯潬⸠䅮礠晵瑵牥⁤散楳楯湳⁯渠楮癥獴浥湴⁯爠慬瑥牮慴楶攠畳敳⁷潵汤⁢攠獵扪散琠瑯⁩湤楶楤畡氠扵獩湥獳⁣慳敳⁡湤⁅硥捵瑩癥⁤散楳楯湳⸀捯畮捩沐猠灲楯物瑩敳⸀汹⁥硣汵摥搠晲潭⁴桥⁨楥牡牣桹⁡猠瑨敹⁡牥⁡汲敡摹⁰牥摥瑥牭楮敤⁴漠牥浡楮⁡猠捡爠灡牫猠⡰慲欠慮搠物摥⤠潲⁨慶攠慬牥慤礠扥敮⁩摥湴楦楥搠景爠捬潳畲攠⡃慳瑬攠䍡爠偡牫⤮t桥獥
	Tier 1/Threshold stage
	Tier 1/Threshold stage

	1. Is it part of our Sustainable Transport System?
	1. Is it part of our Sustainable Transport System?
	This automatically puts Park and Ride car parks at the top of the priority list and excludes them from the Tier 2 consideration.

	YES - Grimston Bar / Monks Cross / Poppleton Bar / Askham Bar / Rawcliffe Bar
	YES - Grimston Bar / Monks Cross / Poppleton Bar / Askham Bar / Rawcliffe Bar

	NO - Bootham Row / Castle / Esplanade / Fossbank / Nunnery Lane / Marygate / Monk Bar / Piccadilly / St George's Field / Union Terrace
	NO - Bootham Row / Castle / Esplanade / Fossbank / Nunnery Lane / Marygate / Monk Bar / Piccadilly / St George's Field / Union Terrace

	2. Has it been identified for closure as part of an on going programme?
	2. Has it been identified for closure as part of an on going programme?
	 

	This identifies where there is already a committment or requirement to close a car park through Executive decision, planning or statutory requirement.

	YES - Castle
	YES - Castle

	NO - Bootham Row / Castle / Esplanade / Fossbank / Nunnery Lane / Marygate / Monk Bar / Piccadilly / St George's Field / Union Terrace
	NO - Bootham Row / Castle / Esplanade / Fossbank / Nunnery Lane / Marygate / Monk Bar / Piccadilly / St George's Field / Union Terrace


	Article 14l攠⼠䕳灬慮慤攠⼠䙯獳扡湫 ⁎畮湥特⁌慮攠⼠䵡特条瑥 ⁍潮欠䉡爠⼠偩捣慤楬汹 ⁓琠䝥潲来❳⁆楥汤 ⁕湩潮⁔敲牡捥r礠牥煵楲敭敮琮s⁮潴⁡⁤敦楮楴楶攠摥捩獩潮⁭慫楮朠瑯潬⸠䅮礠晵瑵牥⁤散楳楯湳⁯渠楮癥獴浥湴⁯爠慬瑥牮慴楶攠畳敳⁷潵汤⁢攠獵扪散琠瑯⁩湤楶楤畡氠扵獩湥獳⁣慳敳⁡湤⁅硥捵瑩癥⁤散楳楯湳⸀捯畮捩沐猠灲楯物瑩敳⸀汹⁥硣汵摥搠晲潭⁴桥⁨楥牡牣桹⁡猠瑨敹⁡牥⁡汲敡摹⁰牥摥瑥牭楮敤⁴漠牥浡楮⁡猠捡爠灡牫猠⡰慲欠慮搠物摥⤠潲⁨慶攠慬牥慤礠扥敮⁩摥湴楦楥搠景爠捬潳畲攠⡃慳瑬攠䍡爠偡牫⤮t桥獥
	Tier 2/Hierarchy stage
	Tier 2/Hierarchy stage
	The Tier 2/Hierarchy questions are listed in order of importance, with questions to the left of the table having greater influence than those on the right. The questions are split into categories which are set out below:
	a. The greatest influence is given to alignment to strategic priorities for the city centre and a sustainability/air quality measure. Questions 3 and 4 identify whether the car parks in the hierarchy align with the car free ambition to reduce the number of journeys in the city centre, the access model for the city centre in the Strategic Review of City Centre Access that determines vehicles should where possible use and park outside the inner-ring road, and indicate what impact the car park has on sustainab
	3. Is it outside or accessed directly from the inner ring road?
	4. Is it accessed through a residential area?
	b. Questions 5 and 6 in the hierarchy identifies which car parks have an alternative development use and the land value of the car parks as a development asset. Those with an alternative development use that could contribute to the city’s housing or employment demand are less likely to be retained as a car parks unless parking could be consolidated in to smaller more efficient footprint multi storeys.  Those with no alternative development use of lower land values are more likely to remain as car parks. 
	5. Does it have an alternative development use?
	6. What is its estimated land value? (value per hectare?)
	*There are two locations where the council is the leaseholder only of the property, and therefore presents no land value to the council (Fossbank and Coppergate Centre). The land values are indicative only and final values would be subject to full checks of services and legal encumbrances. These would be included in any potential businesses cases informing future decisions.
	c. Revenue generation is an important consideration in any future decision making given its role in funding wider council services.  Current usage is also an indication of preference, ease of use, and the desirability of a location. (This is one area where data is currently limited and forms a recommendation for improvement). However this is not the highest priority as even if a car park is well used, if it does not meet over city strategic priorities it could still close, as evidenced by the future redevel
	7. Current usage/current revenue generation based on revenue per space
	*Both the pre-Covid and current revenue per space figures have been included – Q2 2019/20 and Q2 2021/22Only the pre-Covid annual revenue figure has been included due to the unpredictability of the rest of 2021/22
	 

	d. Questions 8 and 9 consider the costs of improving each of the car parks, this is assessed through the current surface and parking bay quality and whether the car park has existing toilet facilities. This is a lower priority as all car parks can be improved if they meet the wider strategic aims.
	8. Current surface and parking bay quality
	9. Does car park currently have toilets?
	e. Finally, the hierarchy also considers the role each car park plays in delivering the current EV strategy 2020-2025 and whether there has been recent or planned EV installations.
	10. Part of longer term EV strategy


	Article 16 䕖⁳瑲慴敧礀摥牳⁴桥⁲潬攠敡捨⁣慲⁰慲欠灬慹猠楮⁤敬楶敲楮朠瑨攠捵牲敮琠䕖⁳瑲慴敧礠㈰㈰ⴲ〲㔠慮搠睨整桥爠瑨敲攠桡猠扥敮⁲散敮琠潲⁰污湮敤⁅嘠楮獴慬污瑩潮献g⁴潩汥琠晡捩汩瑩敳⸠周楳⁩猠愠汯睥爠灲楯物瑹⁡猠慬氠捡爠灡牫猠捡渠扥⁩浰牯癥搠楦⁴桥礠浥整⁴桥⁷楤敲⁳瑲慴敧楣⁡業献m浥湤慴楯渠景爠業灲潶敭敮琩⸠䡯睥癥爠瑨楳⁩猠湯琠瑨攠桩杨敳琠灲楯物瑹⁡猠敶敮⁩映愠捡爠灡牫⁩猠睥汬⁵獥搬⁩映楴⁤潥猠湯琠浥整⁯癥爠捩瑹⁳瑲慴敧楣⁰物潲楴楥猠楴⁣潵汤⁳瑩汬⁣汯獥Ⱐ慳⁥癩摥湣敤⁢礠瑨攠晵瑵牥⁲敤敶敬
	Tier 2 / Hierarchy Questions
	Tier 2 / Hierarchy Questions
	Tier 2 / Hierarchy Questions
	Tier 2 / Hierarchy Questions
	Tier 2 / Hierarchy Questions
	Tier 2 / Hierarchy Questions
	Tier 2 / Hierarchy Questions



	4. Is it outside or accessed directly from the inner ring road?
	4. Is it outside or accessed directly from the inner ring road?
	4. Is it outside or accessed directly from the inner ring road?
	4. Is it outside or accessed directly from the inner ring road?

	5. Is it accessed through a residential area?
	5. Is it accessed through a residential area?

	6. Does it have an alternative development use?
	6. Does it have an alternative development use?

	7. What is its estimated land value?(value per acre)
	7. What is its estimated land value?(value per acre)
	 


	8. Current usage/current revenue generation based on revenue per space
	8. Current usage/current revenue generation based on revenue per space

	9. Current surface and parking bay quality
	9. Current surface and parking bay quality

	10. Does car park currently have toilets?
	10. Does car park currently have toilets?

	11. Currently identified as part of longer term EV strategy
	11. Currently identified as part of longer term EV strategy


	Q2 2021/22
	Q2 2021/22
	Q2 2021/22

	Q2 2019/20 
	Q2 2019/20 
	2019/20 Income


	Yes
	Yes
	Yes

	Yes
	Yes

	Yes
	Yes

	less than £1.5m
	less than £1.5m

	less than £2,000 / space
	less than £2,000 / space

	 High
	 High

	Yes
	Yes

	Yes 
	Yes 


	No
	No
	No

	No
	No

	No
	No

	between £1.5m and £2.5m
	between £1.5m and £2.5m

	between £2,000 and £4,000 / space
	between £2,000 and £4,000 / space

	 Medium
	 Medium

	No
	No

	No
	No


	 
	 
	 

	 
	 

	 
	 

	more than £2.5m/acre
	more than £2.5m/acre

	more than £4000 / space
	more than £4000 / space

	 Low
	 Low

	 
	 

	 
	 






	Council car parking hierarchy
	Council car parking hierarchy
	All the council car parks within the scope of the study and not excluded in the first stage have been assessed against the Tier 2 questions to create the hierarchy below. Working from the left each car park is determined under each question to either be a high priority or low priority for investment. By assessing question by question on a priority basis this allows the car parks to be ranked in order.

	High priority for parking investment 
	High priority for parking investment 

	Low priority for parking investment 
	Low priority for parking investment 


	Article 17g⁩湶敳瑭敮琠
	Tier 2 / Hierarchy Questions
	Tier 2 / Hierarchy Questions
	Tier 2 / Hierarchy Questions
	Tier 2 / Hierarchy Questions
	Tier 2 / Hierarchy Questions
	Tier 2 / Hierarchy Questions
	Tier 2 / Hierarchy Questions



	High priority for parking investment
	High priority for parking investment
	High priority for parking investment
	High priority for parking investment

	4. Is it outside 
	4. Is it outside 
	4. Is it outside 
	or accessed 
	directly from 
	the inner ring 
	road?


	5. Is it 
	5. Is it 
	5. Is it 
	accessed 
	through a 
	residential 
	area?


	6. Does it 
	6. Does it 
	6. Does it 
	have an 
	alternative 
	development 
	use?


	7. What is its 
	7. What is its 
	7. What is its 
	estimated land 
	value?
	 
	(value per acre)


	8. Current usage/current 
	8. Current usage/current 
	8. Current usage/current 
	revenue generation based on 
	revenue per space


	9. Current 
	9. Current 
	9. Current 
	surface and 
	parking bay 
	quality


	10. Does 
	10. Does 
	10. Does 
	car park 
	currently 
	have toilets?


	11. 
	11. 
	11. 
	Currently 
	identified 
	as part of 
	longer term 
	EV strategy



	Q2 2021/22
	Q2 2021/22
	Q2 2021/22
	Q2 2021/22


	Q2 2019/20
	Q2 2019/20
	Q2 2019/20



	Low priority for parking investment
	Low priority for parking investment
	Low priority for parking investment


	Yes
	Yes
	Yes
	Yes


	Yes
	Yes
	Yes


	Yes
	Yes
	Yes


	less than £1.5m
	less than £1.5m
	less than £1.5m


	less than £2,000 / space
	less than £2,000 / space
	less than £2,000 / space


	 High
	 High
	 High


	Yes
	Yes
	Yes


	Yes 
	Yes 
	Yes 



	No
	No
	No
	No


	No
	No
	No


	No
	No
	No


	between £1.5m 
	between £1.5m 
	between £1.5m 
	and £2.5m


	between £2,000 and 
	between £2,000 and 
	between £2,000 and 
	 
	£4,000 / space


	 Medium
	 Medium
	 Medium


	No
	No
	No


	No
	No
	No



	 
	 
	 
	 


	 
	 
	 


	 
	 
	 


	more than 
	more than 
	more than 
	£2.5m/acre


	more than £4000 / space
	more than £4000 / space
	more than £4000 / space


	 Low
	 Low
	 Low


	 
	 
	 


	 
	 
	 



	St George's 
	St George's 
	St George's 
	St George's 
	Field


	Yes
	Yes
	Yes


	No
	No
	No


	No
	No
	No


	less than £1.5m
	less than £1.5m
	less than £1.5m


	£4.2k / space
	£4.2k / space
	£4.2k / space


	£3.8k / space 
	£3.8k / space 
	£3.8k / space 


	Medium
	Medium
	Medium


	Yes
	Yes
	Yes


	Yes
	Yes
	Yes



	Nunnery Lane
	Nunnery Lane
	Nunnery Lane
	Nunnery Lane


	Yes
	Yes
	Yes


	No
	No
	No


	No
	No
	No


	less than £1.5m
	less than £1.5m
	less than £1.5m


	£4.5k /space
	£4.5k /space
	£4.5k /space


	£2.7k / space 
	£2.7k / space 
	£2.7k / space 


	Medium
	Medium
	Medium


	Yes
	Yes
	Yes


	Yes
	Yes
	Yes



	Esplanade
	Esplanade
	Esplanade
	Esplanade


	Yes
	Yes
	Yes


	No
	No
	No


	No
	No
	No


	less than £1.5m
	less than £1.5m
	less than £1.5m


	£3.7k / space
	£3.7k / space
	£3.7k / space


	£2.2k / space
	£2.2k / space
	£2.2k / space


	Medium
	Medium
	Medium


	No
	No
	No


	No
	No
	No



	Union Terrace 
	Union Terrace 
	Union Terrace 
	Union Terrace 


	Yes
	Yes
	Yes


	No
	No
	No


	Yes
	Yes
	Yes


	more than 
	more than 
	more than 
	£2.5m /acre


	£4.1k / space
	£4.1k / space
	£4.1k / space


	£3.6k / space
	£3.6k / space
	£3.6k / space


	Medium
	Medium
	Medium


	Yes
	Yes
	Yes


	Yes
	Yes
	Yes



	Fossbank 
	Fossbank 
	Fossbank 
	Fossbank 
	MSCP


	Yes
	Yes
	Yes


	No
	No
	No


	Yes
	Yes
	Yes


	£1.2k / space
	£1.2k / space
	£1.2k / space


	£1.1k / space 
	£1.1k / space 
	£1.1k / space 


	Medium
	Medium
	Medium


	No
	No
	No


	No
	No
	No



	Bootham Row  
	Bootham Row  
	Bootham Row  
	Bootham Row  


	Yes
	Yes
	Yes


	Yes
	Yes
	Yes


	Yes
	Yes
	Yes


	between £1.5m 
	between £1.5m 
	between £1.5m 
	and £2m


	£5.2k / space
	£5.2k / space
	£5.2k / space


	£4.4k / space 
	£4.4k / space 
	£4.4k / space 


	Medium
	Medium
	Medium


	No
	No
	No


	Yes
	Yes
	Yes



	Monk Bar 
	Monk Bar 
	Monk Bar 
	Monk Bar 


	Yes
	Yes
	Yes


	Yes
	Yes
	Yes


	Yes
	Yes
	Yes


	between £1.5m 
	between £1.5m 
	between £1.5m 
	and £2.5m


	£4.4k / space
	£4.4k / space
	£4.4k / space


	£2.2k / space 
	£2.2k / space 
	£2.2k / space 


	Medium
	Medium
	Medium


	No
	No
	No


	Yes
	Yes
	Yes



	Marygate
	Marygate
	Marygate
	Marygate


	Yes
	Yes
	Yes


	Yes
	Yes
	Yes


	Yes
	Yes
	Yes


	between £1.5m 
	between £1.5m 
	between £1.5m 
	and £2.5m


	£5.5k / space
	£5.5k / space
	£5.5k / space


	£2k / space
	£2k / space
	£2k / space


	Medium
	Medium
	Medium


	No
	No
	No


	Yes
	Yes
	Yes



	Coppergate 
	Coppergate 
	Coppergate 
	Coppergate 
	MSCP


	No
	No
	No


	No
	No
	No


	Yes
	Yes
	Yes


	£3.5k / space
	£3.5k / space
	£3.5k / space


	£2.9k / space
	£2.9k / space
	£2.9k / space


	Medium
	Medium
	Medium


	Yes
	Yes
	Yes


	No
	No
	No








	Article 18
	Analysis
	Analysis

	This approach identifies that the council’s car parks which are outside the inner ring road, have the lowest impact on our communities as they are not accessed through residential streets, have no alternative development use and therefore low land value, should be prioritised for investment. That is because they are the least likely to be closed should parking demand reduce. These car parks are Nunnery Lane, St George’s Field and Esplanade. 
	This approach identifies that the council’s car parks which are outside the inner ring road, have the lowest impact on our communities as they are not accessed through residential streets, have no alternative development use and therefore low land value, should be prioritised for investment. That is because they are the least likely to be closed should parking demand reduce. These car parks are Nunnery Lane, St George’s Field and Esplanade. 
	This consistent with the accompanying Strategic Review of City Centre Access has established a model that is based on three key principles – that the footstreets is an area in which people can walk or use mobility aids; that cyclist, e-scooters, buses and blue badge holders are encouraged to be within the city centre but to pass around or park on the edge of the footstreets; and cars and vehicles are encouraged where possible to use and park outside the inner ring road.

	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Walking and mobility aids
	Walking and mobility aids

	Cycling, e-scooters, buses and blue badge parking
	Cycling, e-scooters, buses and blue badge parking

	Cars
	Cars

	Footstreets area
	Footstreets area
	Figure


	City centre
	City centre
	Figure


	Area outside inner ringroad
	Area outside inner ringroad
	Figure



	Article 19r潡搀湤⁢汵攠扡摧攠灡牫楮最癩敷⁯映䍩瑹⁃敮瑲攠䅣捥獳⁨慳⁥獴慢汩獨敤⁡⁭潤敬⁴桡琠楳⁢慳敤⁯渠瑨牥攠步礠灲楮捩灬敳₅⁴桡琠瑨攠景潴獴牥整猠楳⁡渠慲敡⁩渠睨楣栠灥潰汥⁣慮⁷慬欠潲⁵獥⁭潢楬楴礠慩摳㬠瑨慴⁣祣汩獴Ⱐ攭獣潯瑥牳Ⱐ扵獥猠慮搠扬略⁢慤来⁨潬摥牳⁡牥⁥湣潵牡来搠瑯⁢攠睩瑨楮⁴桥⁣楴礠捥湴牥⁢畴⁴漠灡獳⁡牯畮搠潲⁰慲欠潮⁴桥⁥摧攠潦⁴桥⁦潯瑳瑲敥瑳㬠慮搠捡牳⁡湤⁶敨楣汥猠慲攠敮捯畲慧敤⁷桥牥⁰潳獩扬攠瑯⁵獥⁡湤⁰慲欠潵瑳楤攠瑨攠楮湥爠物湧⁲潡搮eⰠ慳⁥癩摥湣敤⁢礠瑨攠晵瑵牥⁲敤敶敬
	As this is the founding approach on which the strategy is based this has been adopted as the priority principle in assessing council owned car parks. Where possible general parking provision should be located either outside or directly accessed from the inner ring road, to minimise the number of vehicles that access the city centre (although disabled car parking within the inner-ring road remains a key part of the approach). This is also consistent with the park > walk > visit strategy which was promoted in
	As this is the founding approach on which the strategy is based this has been adopted as the priority principle in assessing council owned car parks. Where possible general parking provision should be located either outside or directly accessed from the inner ring road, to minimise the number of vehicles that access the city centre (although disabled car parking within the inner-ring road remains a key part of the approach). This is also consistent with the park > walk > visit strategy which was promoted in
	It should be noted that within the City Centre Access model blue badge and disabled parking is encouraged within the city centre, and the Strategic Review of City Centre Access sets out measures to continue to increase disabled parking bays across the city centre and on the edge of the pedestrianised footstreets.
	The car parks that are identified as lower priority for investment are those that may be considered for alternative uses in the future as they have the potential for alternative development use and a land value that could help offset the loss of parking revenue if they were to close. In some instances these car parks may be able to be developed in part if the demand reduces, whilst still retaining some car parking. It is again important to note that there is no suggestion at this point in time that any of t


	Article 20i摥湴楦楥搠慳⁬潷敲⁰物潲楴礠景爠楮癥獴浥湴⁡牥⁴桯獥⁴桡琠浡礠扥⁣潮獩摥牥搠景爠慬瑥牮慴楶攠畳敳⁩渠瑨攠晵瑵牥⁡猠瑨敹⁨慶攠瑨攠灯瑥湴楡氠景爠慬瑥牮慴楶攠摥癥汯灭敮琠畳攠慮搠愠污湤⁶慬略⁴桡琠捯畬搠桥汰⁯晦獥琠瑨攠汯獳⁯映灡牫楮朠牥癥湵攠楦⁴桥礠睥牥⁴漠捬潳攮⁉渠獯浥⁩湳瑡湣敳⁴桥獥⁣慲⁰慲歳⁭慹⁢攠慢汥⁴漠扥⁤敶敬潰敤⁩渠灡牴⁩映瑨攠摥浡湤⁲敤畣敳Ⱐ睨楬獴⁳瑩汬⁲整慩湩湧⁳潭攠捡爠灡牫楮朮⁉琠楳⁡条楮⁩浰潲瑡湴⁴漠湯瑥⁴桡琠瑨敲攠楳⁮漠獵杧敳瑩潮⁡琠瑨楳⁰潩湴⁩渠瑩浥⁴桡琠慮礠潦⁴
	Improving council car parks
	Improving council car parks

	Recommendations:
	Recommendations:
	Having assessed the existing evidence bases and car parks it has been identified that the following key improvements would allow an improved evidence base to guide wider strategic decisions in Local Transport Plan 4; improve the customer offer and experience in council car parks; and encourage the take up of ultra-low emission vehicles and use of the park and ride.
	• 
	• 
	• 
	• 

	Undertake a business case to roll out pay on exit in high priority for investment car parks, including a review of detailed data collected and analysis from Marygate and Coppergate pay on exit to date

	• 
	• 
	• 

	Bring forward future rolling investment plan to improve high priority investment car parks

	• 
	• 
	• 

	Reinstate vehicle counters and variable messaging signs which give real time updates on the number of available spaces to customers

	• 
	• 
	• 

	Explore the expansion of the BIDs Moving Insight data through LTP4 to include car parks, which would provide an improved data set including where people have travelled from, their onward route on foot in the city centre, and spend once there

	• 
	• 
	• 

	Carry out a feasibility study with First on options for Park & Ride sites to become multi-functional hubs, providing overnight parking for city centre visitors and better inter-city bus links

	• 
	• 
	• 

	Continue the roll out of EV charging strategy across the council’s car parks




	Article 21f⁅嘠捨慲杩湧⁳瑲慴敧礠慣牯獳⁴桥⁣潵湣楬遳⁣慲⁰慲歳b散潭攠浵汴椭晵湣瑩潮慬⁨畢猬⁰牯癩摩湧⁯癥牮楧桴⁰慲歩湧⁦潲⁣楴礠捥湴牥⁶楳楴潲猠慮搠扥瑴敲⁩湴敲ⵣ楴礠扵猠汩湫猀⁯渠景潴⁩渠瑨攠捩瑹⁣敮瑲攬⁡湤⁳灥湤⁯湣攠瑨敲攀爠慮搠數灥物敮捥⁩渠捯畮捩氠捡爠灡牫猻⁡湤⁥湣潵牡来⁴桥⁴慫攠異⁯映畬瑲愭汯眠敭楳獩潮⁶敨楣汥猠慮搠畳攠潦⁴桥⁰慲欠慮搠物摥⸀⁲敤畣敳Ⱐ睨楬獴⁳瑩汬⁲整慩湩湧⁳潭攠捡爠灡牫楮朮⁉琠楳⁡条楮⁩浰潲瑡湴⁴漠湯瑥⁴桡琠瑨敲攠楳⁮漠獵杧敳瑩潮⁡琠瑨楳⁰潩湴⁩渠瑩浥⁴桡琠慮礠潦⁴
	Disabled car parking
	Disabled car parking

	Recommendations:
	Recommendations:
	During the public engagement on city centre access some disabled people identified that proximity to the city’s pedestrianised footstreets was less important to them, and they would rather park in car parks with high standard parking bays, better facilities, and high quality access routes in to the city centre. Whilst all car parks will undergo ongoing investment to improve the customer offer it was agreed that identifying two council car parks within the hierarchy for priority investment in improving both 
	In discussion with York Disability Rights Forum it was agreed that the disabled priority car parks should be identified in consultation with disabled people once decisions on the future geography of the footstreets have been taken as this may impact on which car park location is most appropriate. Consequently it is recommended that officer’s work with disabled people to establish the methodology and define the priority car parks, with a future report to Executive to agree these car parks based on the outcom
	• 
	• 
	• 
	• 

	Work with disabled groups to identify two car parks within the hierarchy for priority investment for improvement of disabled parking facilities and onward access routes in to the city centre




	Article 22p猠瑯⁩摥湴楦礠瑷漠捡爠灡牫猠睩瑨楮⁴桥⁨楥牡牣桹⁦潲⁰物潲楴礠楮癥獴浥湴⁦潲⁩浰牯癥浥湴⁯映摩獡扬敤⁰慲歩湧⁦慣楬楴楥猠慮搠潮睡牤⁡捣敳猠牯畴敳⁩渠瑯⁴桥⁣楴礠捥湴牥a灨礠潦⁴桥⁦潯瑳瑲敥瑳⁨慶攠扥敮⁴慫敮⁡猠瑨楳⁭慹⁩浰慣琠潮⁷桩捨⁣慲⁰慲欠汯捡瑩潮⁩猠浯獴⁡灰牯灲楡瑥⸠䍯湳敱略湴汹⁩琠楳⁲散潭浥湤敤⁴桡琠潦晩捥犐猠睯牫⁷楴栠摩獡扬敤⁰敯灬攠瑯⁥獴慢汩獨⁴桥⁭整桯摯汯杹⁡湤⁤敦楮攠瑨攠灲楯物瑹⁣慲⁰慲歳Ⱐ睩瑨⁡⁦畴畲攠牥灯牴⁴漠䕸散畴楶攠瑯⁡杲敥⁴桥獥⁣慲⁰慲歳⁢慳敤⁯渠瑨攠潵瑣潭
	Action Plan
	Action Plan

	Recommendations and Requirements to implement 
	Recommendations and Requirements to implement 
	Recommendations and Requirements to implement 
	Recommendations and Requirements to implement 
	Recommendations and Requirements to implement 
	Recommendations and Requirements to implement 
	Recommendations and Requirements to implement 

	Budget already identified / Budget required
	Budget already identified / Budget required

	Funding Source
	Funding Source

	Action Owner
	Action Owner

	Timescales for delivery
	Timescales for delivery

	Parking Review Objectives
	Parking Review Objectives



	Undertake a business case for the wider roll out of pay on exit in high priority for investment car parks, including lessons learnt from Marygate and Coppergate. 
	Undertake a business case for the wider roll out of pay on exit in high priority for investment car parks, including lessons learnt from Marygate and Coppergate. 
	Undertake a business case for the wider roll out of pay on exit in high priority for investment car parks, including lessons learnt from Marygate and Coppergate. 
	Undertake a business case for the wider roll out of pay on exit in high priority for investment car parks, including lessons learnt from Marygate and Coppergate. 
	Include in the business case a review of detailed data collected and analysis undertaken from pay on exit to date to strengthen evidence base.

	Not required
	Not required

	Existing Parking Budget
	Existing Parking Budget

	Head of Transport 
	Head of Transport 

	Summer 2022 
	Summer 2022 

	Improve evidence base
	Improve evidence base
	Improve customer experience


	Bring forward future rolling investment plan to improve high priority investment car parks
	Bring forward future rolling investment plan to improve high priority investment car parks
	Bring forward future rolling investment plan to improve high priority investment car parks

	Budget required
	Budget required

	Business case to consider funding source
	Business case to consider funding source

	Head of Transport
	Head of Transport

	Summer 2022
	Summer 2022

	Improve customer experience
	Improve customer experience
	Improve car park quality


	Reinstate vehicle counters and variable messaging signs which give real time updates on the number of available spaces to customers
	Reinstate vehicle counters and variable messaging signs which give real time updates on the number of available spaces to customers
	Reinstate vehicle counters and variable messaging signs which give real time updates on the number of available spaces to customers

	Budget required
	Budget required

	Business case to consider funding source
	Business case to consider funding source

	Head of Transport
	Head of Transport

	Subject to successful bid
	Subject to successful bid

	Improve customer experience
	Improve customer experience


	Explore improved data sets through LTP4 to provide an improved data set including where people have travelled from, their onward route on foot in the city centre, and spend once there
	Explore improved data sets through LTP4 to provide an improved data set including where people have travelled from, their onward route on foot in the city centre, and spend once there
	Explore improved data sets through LTP4 to provide an improved data set including where people have travelled from, their onward route on foot in the city centre, and spend once there

	£30,000
	£30,000

	LTP 4 – Subject to business case for data
	LTP 4 – Subject to business case for data

	Head of Transport 
	Head of Transport 

	 March 2023
	 March 2023

	Improve evidence base
	Improve evidence base



	Recommendations and Requirements to implement 
	Recommendations and Requirements to implement 
	Recommendations and Requirements to implement 
	Recommendations and Requirements to implement 

	Budget already identified / Budget required
	Budget already identified / Budget required

	Funding Source
	Funding Source

	Action Owner
	Action Owner

	Timescales for delivery
	Timescales for delivery

	Parking Review Objectives
	Parking Review Objectives



	Work with disabled groups to identify from the hierarchy for priority investment, two car parks for improved disabled parking facilities and improved onward access routes in to the city centre 
	Work with disabled groups to identify from the hierarchy for priority investment, two car parks for improved disabled parking facilities and improved onward access routes in to the city centre 
	Work with disabled groups to identify from the hierarchy for priority investment, two car parks for improved disabled parking facilities and improved onward access routes in to the city centre 
	Work with disabled groups to identify from the hierarchy for priority investment, two car parks for improved disabled parking facilities and improved onward access routes in to the city centre 

	Not required 
	Not required 

	Not required  
	Not required  

	Head of Regeneration & Economy/ Head of Transport 
	Head of Regeneration & Economy/ Head of Transport 

	 Summer 2022
	 Summer 2022

	Improve customer experience
	Improve customer experience
	Improve car park quality
	Improve disabled access car parks


	Implement improvements and promote the identified car parks
	Implement improvements and promote the identified car parks
	Implement improvements and promote the identified car parks

	 Budget required
	 Budget required

	Report back to Executive for a budget to implement recommendations 
	Report back to Executive for a budget to implement recommendations 

	Head of Transport 
	Head of Transport 

	 March 2023
	 March 2023

	Improve customer experience
	Improve customer experience
	Improve car park quality
	Improve disabled access car parks


	Carry out a feasibility study with First on options for Park & Ride sites to become multi-functional hubs, providing overnight parking for city centre visitors and better inter-city bus links
	Carry out a feasibility study with First on options for Park & Ride sites to become multi-functional hubs, providing overnight parking for city centre visitors and better inter-city bus links
	Carry out a feasibility study with First on options for Park & Ride sites to become multi-functional hubs, providing overnight parking for city centre visitors and better inter-city bus links

	Subject to funding bid
	Subject to funding bid

	BSIP funding ask
	BSIP funding ask

	Head of Transport
	Head of Transport

	Improve customer experience
	Improve customer experience
	Improve car park quality



	Recommendations and Requirements to implement 
	Recommendations and Requirements to implement 
	Recommendations and Requirements to implement 
	Recommendations and Requirements to implement 

	Budget already identified / Budget required
	Budget already identified / Budget required

	Funding Source
	Funding Source

	Action Owner
	Action Owner

	Timescales for delivery
	Timescales for delivery

	Parking Review Objectives
	Parking Review Objectives



	Electric Vehicle Charging Points
	Electric Vehicle Charging Points
	Electric Vehicle Charging Points
	Electric Vehicle Charging Points


	Continue the roll out of the Electric Vehicle charging strategy across the council’s car parks
	Continue the roll out of the Electric Vehicle charging strategy across the council’s car parks
	Continue the roll out of the Electric Vehicle charging strategy across the council’s car parks
	• 
	• 
	• 
	• 

	Union Terrace Hyper Hub (4 rapid and 4 ultra-rapid chargers planned - 2022)

	• 
	• 
	• 

	Rawcliffe Bar P&R (50 planned - 2022)

	• 
	• 
	• 

	Poppleton Bar P&R (4 rapid and 4 ultra-rapid chargers planned – by end of 2021)
	 


	• 
	• 
	• 

	Bishopthorpe Rd (2 rapid planned 2022)



	Already funded 
	Already funded 

	Existing Transport budget
	Existing Transport budget

	Head of Transport 
	Head of Transport 

	2021-2023
	2021-2023

	Improve customer experience
	Improve customer experience










	Annex B2a - Annex 1 to the Strategic Review of Council Car Parking
	Annex cover
	Bootham Row
	Castle
	Coppergate MSCP
	Esplanade
	Fossbank MSCP
	Marygate
	Monk Bar
	Nunnery Lane
	St George's Field
	Union Terrace

	Annex B3 - Equalities Impact Assessment for this Report




